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The board of directors (the “Board”), supervisory committee (the “Supervisory
Committee”), directors (the “Directors”), supervisors (the “Supervisors”) and senior
management of Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company
Limited (the “Company”) confirmed that the information in this report does not
contain any false information, misleading statements or material omissions, and
accept joint and several responsibility for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness

of the content.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public Accountants Limited
Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers have issued standard and unqualified audic

report of the Company.

Ms. Ma Baiyu, the Company’s chairman, Mr. Gu Qifeng, the officer in charge of
the accounting work and the general manager and Ms. Shi Zhenjuan, the officer
in charge of the accounting department (executive in charge for accounting) and
the chief accountant, have declared that they are responsible for the truthfulness

and completeness of the financial reports contained in the 2008 annual report.
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Legal Chinese name of the Company

Abbreviation of the

Chinese name of the Company

English name of the Company

Abbreviation of the

English name of the Company

Legal representative of the Company
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Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection

Group Company Limited

TCEPC

Ma Baiyu

Profile of the Company’s Secretary to the Board

Name of the Secretary to the Board

Correspondence address of the

Secretary to the Board

Telephone number of the

Secretary to the Board

Facsimile number of the

Secretary to the Board

E-mail address of the Secretary

to the Board
Profile of the Company Secretary
Name of the Company Secretary

Correspondence address of the

Company Secretary

Telephone number of the

Company Secretary

Facsimile number of the

Company Secretary
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Fu Yana

TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road,
Nankai District, Tianjin,

the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

86-22-23930128

86-22-23930126

fu_yn@tjcep.com

Lo Wai Keung, Eric

22/F, Worldwide House,
Central, Hong Kong

8522218 0920

8522501 0028
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E-mail address of the

Company Secretary

cosec@tjcep.com

Profile of the Securities Affairs Representative of the Company:

Name of the Securities Affairs

Representative

Correspondence address of the

Securities Affairs Representative

Telephone number of the

Securities Affairs Representative

Facsimile number of the

Securities Affairs Representative

E-mail address of the

Securities Affairs Representative

Registered address of the Company

Address of the Company’s office

Postal code of the Company’s office

Website of the Company

E-mail address of the Company

Name of the newspaper designated
for the disclosure of the

Company’s information

Website designated by the
China Securities Regulatory
Committee (“CSRC”) for the
disclosure of the Company’s

annual report
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Guo Fengxian

TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road,
Nankai District, Tianjin, the PRC

86-22-23930128

86-22-23930126

guo_fx@tjcep.com

No. 45 Guizhou Road,

Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC

TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road,

Nankai District, Tianjin, the PRC

300381

heep:/www.tjcep.com

tjcep@tjcep.com

Shanghai Securities News

hetp://www.sse.com.cn
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Place where the Company’s
annual report is available for

inspection
Profile of the shares of the Company

Stock exchange for listing A Shares
of the Company

Short form of A Shares
of the Company

Stock code of A Shares
of the Company

Short form of A Shares
of the Company before

its change

Stock exchange for listing H Shares
of the Company

Short form of the H Shares

of the Company

Stock code of the H Shares
of the Company

Short form of H Shares
of the Company before

its change
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Office of the Secretary to the Board,
16/E TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road,
Nankai District, Tianjin, the PRC

Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “SSE”)

A EBRR

600874

i T

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”)
Tianjin Capital

1065

Tianjin Bohai
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Other relevant information

Date of first registration of

the Company

The first registered address of
the Company

Dates of changes in registration of

the Company

Change in registered address of
the Company

Number of business licence of

corporate legal person
Tax registration number

Organization structure code

8 June 1993

No. 10 Hubei Road, Heping District,
Tianjin, the PRC

26 August 1998

8 January 2001
23 July 2001

25 February 2003

No. 45 Guizhou Road, Heping District,
Tianjin, the PRC

120000400079927

120114103065501

10306550-1

Profile of the accountants engaged by the Company

Name of the PRC accountant engaged

by the Company

Office address of the PRC accountant

engaged by the Company

Name of the Hong Kong accountant

engaged by the Company

Office address of the Hong Kong

accountant engaged by the Company

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
TRT R

PricewatethouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified

Public Accountants Limited Company

11/E, PricewaterhouseCoopers Center,

202 Hu Bin Road, Shanghai, the PRC

PricewaterhouseCoopers

22/, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong



F R B EAEMIEE.  Major Financial Information and Benchmarks

(=) 70 3 3 300 3 22 0 5 0% (1) Major financial data for the reporting period

Hif : Too Wil AR
Unit: ’000 Currency: RMB

£ |
¥H Item Amount
BRI Operating profit 308,492.00
A Total profit 310,238.00
5 R A A2 M SR 1 A Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company 231,065.00
B A AR 2 R IBCR BT 48 Net profit after deduction of extraordinary items attributable
AR 1 A to sharcholders of the Company 229,756.00
KB B A I B TR R A Net cash flows from operating activities 304,600.00
=) Al e R S R (2) Difference in accounting standards between the PRC and overseas
AL AN G A 22 L o No differences in net profit and net assets exist.

=) FEH P 2 H A (3)  Extraordinary profit and loss items and amounts

Wi : To0 Wbl - AR
Unit: 000 Currency: RMB

Ex |
TR PR H Extraordinary profit and loss project Amount
) R R A Gain and loss from disposal of non-current assets -934
B bl A B 2 A A S MRS Income and expenses from other operations other than the above 2,680 7
P A3 5 B Impact of income tax -437

&t Total 1,309

Fh 5805 PEAE 2 W] A0 3 S AL g Basis of preparation for breakdown table of extraordinary profit and loss items

W CABIEE TR A5 MR A5 Pursuant to the requirements of “Q&A No. 01 of Regulated Information Disclosure by
0155 - FACH ML) MBIE > FEHIIEE  Companies with Publicly Issued Securities — Extraordinary Profit and Loss”, extraordinary
SEFEALS RIS I AR SER IR HEBAMR - DL profic and loss represents the profit and loss arisen from transactions and matters that

SRR SER AR o (H R HOMEE - %5 have no direct relationship with the operations of the Company and those that although
PR BT IEW AN TR » BF] related to its operations, but that have affected the Company’s operation and earning
REI TR Y ~ IR LR A o ability due to their nature, amount and frequency.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




FE I A e Major Financial Information and Benchmarks

() |BARARA G Z4AETLEE 4 Principal Accounting Data and Financial Highlights For the Three

wh SR A 5 o B Years Prior to the end of the Reporting Period
Wi : o0 Wl = AR
Unit’000  Currency: RMB
A
LA
Increase(+)
Decrease(-)
from last year
2008 2007 (%) 2006
A kg i Ek )
After Before After Before
adjustment  adjustment adjustment  adjustment
CELIUN Operating income 1,159,307 1002042 1,004,117 15.69 797,681 812,184
il AR Total profic 310,238 309,592 274,959 0.21 246,236 236,006
S5 B 7 A2 ) JE SR A 1 A Net profit attributable to Shareholders
of the Company 231,065 209,328 183,813 10.38 165,605 158,689
i B A A R B Net profit after deduction of extraordinary
TR ARG VAR 4 Y 1A T items attributable to Shareholders
of the Company 229,756 210,306 184,791 9.25 160,882 153,966
WA O/ )) Basic earnings per Share 0.16 0.15 0.13 6.67 0.12 0.12
MiRERE R O/ Diluted earnings per Share 0.16 0.15 0.13 6.67 0.12 0.12
ERIE L VAR A R Basic earnings per Share after deduction of
Wy AR Bl as (oc,/ %) extraordinary items 0.16 0.15 0.13 6.67 0.12 0.12
TIVHEEF- 20 WA (%) Weighted average return ratio 7.44 7.56 667 W 01208 6.48 6.57
on equity (%) EViE
Decrease by
0.12
percentage
points
IR IR AL P AR A 4 1O R Weighted average return ratio on equity
T AR R (%) after deduction of extraordinary items (%) 7.39 7.60 671 Wh o2 6.30 6.37
ERE
Decrease by
0.21
percentage
points
RO TR B A Y Net cash flow from operating
B8 U R activities 304,600 255,914 255914 19.02 197,462 197,462
A B AR Y Net cash flow from operating activities
BamsisE oo/ k) per Share (Yuan/Share) 021 0.18 0.18 16.67 0.15 0.15
A Total assets 7560263 5944066 5,886,672 2719 5905221 5882459
Pt E R G (SRR 4 ) Owners' equity (or shareholders” equity) 3,107,702 2933726 2,893,168 593 2401902 2,386,858
S B A A2 R IBR A Net asset value per Share attributable to
HRFEE 0o/ ) shareholders of the Company (Yuan/Share) 218 2.06 203 5.83 1.81 179
R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R



BRSPS e ki Major Financial Information and Benchmarks

(i) HE95 7 s I 05 ¢ s v 1) 4 A (5) DPrepared in accordance with the HKFRS

£33 Results
BE 12 7 31 HILARE
For the year ended 31st December,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
AR®ET AR¥TT AR¥TLT AR¥TT AR¥ETIC
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
eSS Turnover 1,135,101 978,953 755595 580,495 713,737
BB i A Profit before taxation 310,238 309,592 246,236 259,981 465,965
Bl Taxation (76,753) (99,224) (82,948) (84,345)  (154,856)
FRBiLAR ZUF Profit after taxation 233,485 210,368 163,288 175,636 311,109
DR HE R Minority interests (2,420) (1,040) 2,317 1,839 802
e FRME A 2 ) Profi attributable
to equity holders of the
Company 231,065 209,328 165,605 177,475 311,911
i 358 Dividend 57,089 57,089 56,105 53,226 133,000
Bt aE Note:
Q
A 2008412 H 31 H 1E FUA4FE 2 245 T4 Bk 1 L The results for each of the five years ended 31st December, 2008 have been extracted from the
AP Z AR SR AR R 2 S S AR R o previous annual reports and the audited consolidated income statement as set out in this annual
GCOl't.
Y R s Assets and Liabilities
A12A31H
As at 31st December,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
AR#T G ARWT T ARWT T AR¥ETT AR¥ETT
RMB’000  RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000  RMB’000
Wil Fixed assets 2,704,364 2,726,943 2,746,173 3,119,863 2,755,054
ETE W Intangible assets 1,884,264 1,174,341 1,163,914 — —
g Associated company 39,878 63,979 61,660 — —
AR A Available-for-sale financial assets 4,000 4,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
TRIWIRE N R Long-term receivables 331,254 326,980 318,234 — —
TR 5 MR Trade receivables due after one year 697,763 697,763 749,973 466,185 —
JUfth FF ri By Other non-current assets 47,252 23,778 46,113 94,975 20,000
B (AR EE Net current (liabilities)/assets (98,687)  (158,829)  (405,995)  (165,716) 1,336,861
5,698,907 4,858,955 4,686,072 3,521,307 4,117,915
DRI HE R Minority interests 118,496 117,358 116,318 49,132 16,581
RINA R Long-term liabilities 2,472,709 1,807,871 2,167,853 1,190,814 1,776,642
T Net assets 3,107,702 2,933,726 2,401,901 2,281,361 2,324,692

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




Je AR %2 ) B B RAG DL Details of Changes in Share Capital and Shareholders

(—) JBe A %2 W) 15 Ot (1) Changes in share capital
1. e 58 w4 DL 1. Table of changes in share

Wip s
Unit: share

oAk B AKZHHE (+5-) BeA g%
Before the changes in share capital Increase/reduction during the reporting period (+, -) After the changes in share capital
AR
AT Transfer
Y il %) New Bl of surplus Hib ik L il %)
Quantity ~ Percentage shares issued  Bonusissue to capital Others  Sub-total ~ Quantity  Percentage
(%) (%)

= HRERMRS
1. Restricted shares
1 BRfR
1. State-owned shares 730,619,604 51.19 — — — 06,533,006 -66,533,006 664,086,598 46,53
1 BAEAS
2. State-owned legal person shares — — — — — — — — —
3 JUbER
3. Shares held by other domestic enities — — — — — — — — —
ot - SRR R AR
Including: shares held by domestic legal persons — — — — — — — — —
BR AR
Shares held by domestic natural persons — — — — — — — — —
4 ShEFRH
4. Shares held by other foreign entities — — — — — — — — —
Joft + SEANE AFEA
Including: shares held by overseas legal persons — — — — — — — — —
UVNERINGId
Shares held by overseas natural persons — — — — — — — — —
HRE AR H A5
Total restricted shares 730,619,604 5119 — — — 006,533,006 66,533,006 664,086,598 46.53
= ERERRERR
Il Non-restricted circulating shares
 ARMEER
RMB ordinary shares 356,608,826 24.99 — — — 66,533,006 66,533,006 423,141,832 29.65
MBI E R
Domestic listed foreign shares — — — — — — — — —
- BANEMIN R
Overseas listed foreign shares 340,000,000 23.82 — — — 0 0 340,000,000 23.82
e
Others
WRERITER RO
Total non-restricted circulating shares 696,608,826 48.81 — — — 06,533,006 66,533,006 763,141,832 53.47
© RBEK
Total number of shares 1,427,228,430 100 — — — 0 0 1,427,228 430 100

=l

B 5 o e b 5 L < Approvals for the changes in the share capital:

HAEAL F] 2006 43 A 20 H BB A BET1i%  Pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Share Segregation Reform Proposal approved
B G sk e AR I By B0 7 R)  at the relevant general meeting for the A shares shareholders of the Company held on
MABBE > 2008 4 A21 H > &4 20th March 2006, as at 21 April 2008, there were an aggregate of 66,533,006 restricted
66,533,006 A IR EWRAFA A A iR BT circulating A shares of the Company circulating in the market.

W o

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
TRT R




JRe AR A B R e RIE YL Details of Changes in Share Capital and Shareholders

2. AR OROR IRy S B Bk 2. Table of change in restricted shares
BUpE ¢ B
Unit: share
SERIRLY TRAES# B RAERE SEARY
B R Y R Y T
Number of Number of Number of Number of
testricted shares restricted restricted  restricted shares RERH JRBR R
Name of atthe beginning  shares released  shares increased at the end Reasons for L]
Sk shareholder of theyear  during the year ~ during the year of the year festriction Release date
THMBR G AR Tianjin Municipal 730,619,604 66,533,006 0 664,086,598 Wi Bk 2008
(g% Investment Company Share Segregation 4H2H
Limited (“TMICL”) Reform Undertakings 21 April 2008
ait Total 730619604 66,533,006 0 664,086,598 - -
(Z) BHFETH LSS (2). Issue and listing of securities
1~ WEAEREKGEF BT 1. Issue of securities in the past three years
BUEAHRIAR /=4 AR H For the three years ended at the end of this reporting period, the Company
AR IR T L LI has no issue and listing of securities.
2~ ARG ) By A R A R SR N 2. Changes in the total number and structure of shares of the Company
o
WA A ~ BB IR During the reporting period, there were no changes in the total number
IR A ) B 3 S8 D A e e 5 and structure of shares of the Company due to bonus issue and share
[/ allotment.
3~ BUF PO TEIR B Bt 3. Existing internal employee shares
ARHA I AR A )40 A A T o There was no internal employee share as at the end of the reporting period.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008



JRe AR S B R B HIE YL Details of Changes in Share Capital and Shareholders

(=) B A EL B A5 0L (3). Details of shareholders and ultimate shareholders
1~ BRI B R UL 1. Number of shareholders and shares held
e AR IR AR 117,544 F > Frp H RO 98 F

The number of shareholders is 117,518 among
which 72 are shareholders of H Shares

Total number of shareholders as at the end of the reporting period

i 4% B R IR 4
Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders
PR R
FeBAY  WEHINR By
JRERCRER P B (%) Total  Increase/Decrease Number of
IR 4R Nature of Percentage of number of  during the restricted
Name of Shareholders the Shareholders  shareholding shares held  reporting period Shares held
(%)
B E B R 5430 774984445 0 664,086,598
TMICL State-owned Shareholder
iR (REA) ARAH i 2364 337432900 D 584,000 0
HKSCC Nominees Limited Others Decreased by 584,000
JAE it 0.42 5,980,000 N 182,745 0
Zhou Jun Others Increased by 182,745
BB A A A R b 0.21 3,000,000 ¥ 41,880 0
Senyang Railway Coal Dealing Co., Ltd. Others Decreased by 41,880
R A Rix ] 0.19 2725000 0 0
China Southern Securities Co., Ltd. Others
PERIT - BEER 00 HEEAR S b 0.15 2,079,966 ¥ib 281,025 0
BOC - Shanghai Shenzhen 300 Index Others Decreased by 281,025
Securities Investment Fund
EWIE it 0.1 1,572,200 % 2,368 0
Wang Ming Li Others Increased by 2,368
HEAL s 0.09 1,228,020 311 226,300 0
Pan Zhi Hong Others Increased by 226,300
Bl pixl 0.08 1,183,200 3471 1,183,200 0
Zhong Congrong Others Increased by 1,183,200
R R AT - MR R R pixl 0.08 1,145,809 3471 1,145,809 0
China Construction Bank -Bosera Yuhu Others Increased by 1,145,809
Securities Investment Fund
PRIFIES Ve Sh ] S A]

TRT R

LT

Unit: share

b
it B B
Number of Shares
pledged or frozen

EL# 279,520,000
Pledged 279,520,000
T

Unknown

KA

Unknown

T

Unknown

T

Unknown

AR

Unknown

T
Unknown
KA
Unknown
T
Unknown
T

Unknown



JRe AR A B R e RIE YL Details of Changes in Share Capital and Shareholders

1 4 406 AR G DB B SR I A

Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted circulating Shares Shareholders

A R BT
By
Number of
non-restricted
circulating JBe By Rl
IS4 Name of Shareholders Shares held Type of Shares
B RATT (A ARAH HKSCC Nominees Limited 337,432,900 HM
H Shares
[ Eracy TMICL 110,897,847 ARWEEM
RMB Ordinary Shares
JAE Zhou Jun 5,980,000 NS E
RMB Ordinary Shares
T b BB R R A AT IR A ) Senyang Railway Coal Dealing Co., Ltd. 3,000,000 NGNS 3] e
RMB Ordinary Shares
F RS R W China Southern Securities Co., Ltd. 2,725,000 AR
RMB Ordinary Shares
ESRAT — 3 ELUE VR 300 FEBGE ARG 4 BOC - Shanghai Shenzhen ‘300 Index 2,079,966 AR
Securities Investment Fund RMB Ordinary Shares
TEWI Wang Ming Li 1,572,200  ARMEE
RMB Ordinary Shares
AL Pan Zhi Hong 1,228,020  ARWE@EMK
RMB Ordinary Shares
B AR Zhong Congrong 1,183,200 Nl L3 il1d
RMB Ordinary Shares
B B ERA T — RS R IR RO China Construction Bank -Bosera Yuhu 1,145,809 AR WS g
Securities Investment Fund RMB Ordinary Shares

e R i B R e — AT B )

5 143 55 10 4 IO 2 TR AR A 75 771 e W Bl
1% -

T 2% B0 T A 20 R 073 P SRR T 4 R R

Z TR A B AR o

1. TR P85 (LA A1 /A 7 (HKSCC NOMI-
NEES LIMITED){2 (i Bk 44 i - HoFif 2 H A1

JIREZA0R B AT - WM % B R AL R
HARA 5% b I 2 Bk

2. T4 AT A A B BRI L

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Notes on the connected relationship or parties acting in concert among the above

Shareholders

It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship among the first and the tenth

shareholders.

It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship between the top 10 non-

restricted circulating shares sharcholders and the top 10 shareholders.

1. According to the register of members of the Company as provided by HKSCC Nominees Limited, those

H Shares held by it were held on behalf of various clients. There was no client who owned 5% or more

interest in the total share capital of the Company.

2. The top ten Shareholders are not strategic investors of the Company.

Annual Report 2008




JRe AR S B R B HIE YL Details of Changes in Share Capital and Shareholders

2 R B OB A B SO B B B A

s

A7 A BB By
P BoRA R

Serial Names of restricted

No.  Shares Shareholders

1 T HE
TMICL

KA A
W By 9 ik
Number of
restricted

Shares held

664,086,598

Shareholdings of the top ten restricted shares shareholders and the restriction conditions

A BB BAR B L2
Listing and trading in restricted Shares
W Ll s 5
JBe By ek
W L% Sy g Addition number
Time to be of Shares to be
listed and traded listed and traded
in the market in the market
200944 H 20 H 664,086,598
20th April, 2009
TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A

TRT R

BLpL : B

Unit: share

WA A

Restriction conditions

M

@

JIPRSAT (A Wy 11 R B A5 R
Tz FE - 12 8 AR L a5 ol i
o

All the shares of the Comapny held shall not
be listed, traded or transferred within 12
months commencing from the date of the
implementation of the Share Segregation
Reform Proposal.

TE FIER i S A% > 8 TSP s
oy BB > R AL R
B+ WA AR E 2
I A HEARAERE S Z T -
Upon expiry of the aforesaid commitment
period, the number of Shares sold through the
SSE shall not exceed 5% of the total number
of Shares of the Company within 12 months
and shall not exceed 10% within 24 months.



JRe AR A B R e RIE YL Details of Changes in Share Capital and Shareholders

2~ ARAIPEIBOB R B BB E B 2. Details of the controlling shareholder and the ultimate shareholder of the

o Company

(1)  IEANEEBR AN (1) Description of the legal person controlling shareholder

FE 4 A HBBE Name of Shareholders: TMICL

EEAEAN T BAE Legal representative: Ma Baiyu

LA 1,820,000,000 JG Registered capital: 1,820,000,000

AR 1998 4F 1 20 H Date of incorporation: 20 January 1998

FEER RER R e Principal operations: The investment, construction,
[IEE-335'3 /N operation and management of city
e % K% B s infrastructure, road construction and
MAETRE - auxiliary facilities with internal funds;
"o RERE development, operation and leasing
B HbE BH S of real estates; property management;
K MR investment and management in Yin
PR LA He Park with internal funds; leasing 2
HE S HEI A of facilities (except motor vehicles);
BEAT R E N import and export business of
B Rk selfmanufacturing and distribution of
GRIEBRSM) 5 A various commodities and
AR LB technologies (except commodities
ol BB A 1 A ¢ and technologies restricted or
MY (BRR prohibited by the State for trading)
REUNIE G- g (in accordance with the State
1k AR T regulations for specific projects and
fi 145 9 B A1 ) operations).
(LA b AR
A RE I E
) % B
) o
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(2)  IENEBEEER SN

2R

LI INE

R
W A

TERE

KR S B B B
R BE LA IR
K] (B )

THR=E
16,100,000,000
20044E7 H 23 H

LB AT i
AR BEE L ~ M
O MRS - Mo
TEH MR
B O A AT 4%
& BERE S &
FE MG W
BRI 5 A
HEREME ; A
s AL B DA B2
i it H H B 8% 58
B KB HEE

BERR MR AT AE
B R RN
L5 Bt TP
SEMATRE - BB ?
i (R ED)
B B R
L&ﬁgaﬁ(u

HENEKAH
%gﬁﬁEM%ﬁ
EHE) o

(2).  Description of legal person ultimate shareholder

Name:

Legal representative:

Registered capital:

Date of incorporation:

Principal operations:

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R

Tianjin City Infrastructure
Construction and Investment Group
Company Limited (“Tianjin

Investment Group”)
Wang Zhou Xi
16,100,000,000

23 July 2004

It uses its own funds to invest in the
development and reconstruction of
seas and rivers, railways, city roads
and bridges, underground tube
network, urban environmental
infrastructure facilities; investment
and planning; corporate management
and consulting; market establishment
and development services; leasing of
self-owned housing; leasing of
infrastructural facilities and the
development and operation of public
facilities projects; operating
infrastructure franchise under the
authorisation of the government and
franchise transfer; production,
development and operation of
construction materials, decoration
materials, mechanical and electrical
products (excluding motor vehicles);
construction, investment and
consulting (in accordance with the
State regulations for specific projects

and operations).
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(3) AL FAIFERIBR R
WA E I

FEIREERIA © B

AN IR 2007 46 H 7 HE R FEK
JRCR T B A - AR T
IR R ECLAER (1B
BB A N) SR
B TR o 2 I B 1 o

AN 2007412 H 14 B8
B E R - SR A 3 K
ARBUGEA G EEEHER
TR R B R T
YN E g yete SN I PRE ]
BB AT PR R FERE A A R A
) (B & FERE2007]120 %)
) 755 44 T IR 1) 2 R R T
T LA R A A %5 R S
Fi o MEAE I A H £ 2006
F12H31H -

A3 AR 2008 4E 4 J 25 HE A1
1 IR A R PR PR SR B A e
Bl A ) - AN EBRERA
BTy AR o

3)

Change in the controlling shareholder and the ultimate shareholder of the

Company

Name of the new Tianjin Investment Group

ultimate shareholder:

On 7th June 2007, the Company was notified by its controlling
shareholder, TMICL, that, with the approval of the municipal
government of Tianjin, the Tianjin Municipal Engineering Bureau
(holder of the state-owned assets of TMICL) transferred the shares

in TMICL it held to Tianjin Investment Group.

On 14th December 2007, the Company was notified by TMICL
that, Tianjin Investment Group received the “Approval related to the
issues on the transfer of ownership rights of Tianjin Expressway
Investment & Construction Development Company and Tianjin
Municipal Investment Company Limited at nil consideration” (Jin
Guo Asset Ownership [2007] No. 120) issued by the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the People’s
Government of Tianjin, which has approved the transfer of the entire
ownership rights of TMICL from Tianjin Municipal Engineering
Bureau to Tianjin Investment Group at nil consideration. The transfer

at nil consideration came into effect on 31 December 2006.

The Company issued “Announcement in relation to the transfer of
state-owned assets of the controlling shareholder of the Company”
to the public on 25 April 2008 that the ultimate shareholder of the

Company was changed to Tianjin Investment Group.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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(4) Ao A BEBEEERA Z ]
142 FE L 3 1) Bl 4 1) 7 HE
[

KH A RBUG B 7

RS TR B

100%

‘ S H ‘

100%

‘ e ‘

54.30%

‘ AT

2l

3. HfbFBAEE A Z U R
JBE

WA AR A
TEA 7 2 A VAL BIENJBOR -

(4)  Flowchart on the shareholding interests and relationship of control between

the Company and its ultimate shareholder

Stated-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of
the People’s Government of Tianjin

100%

‘ Tianjin Investment Group ‘

100%

‘ TMICL ‘

54.30%

‘ The Company ‘

3. Other legal shareholders holding more than 10% of the Shares

As at the end of the reporting period, there was no other legal shareholders

holding more than 10% of the shares of the Company.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R
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(1Y) 32 % JBe OB 2

(a)

(b)

20084 12 A 31 H » FEAAFIN
o BT B AN
AME AR IFE
B (RN R ES - R mAT
I ON= S /NS L 3
B Gy (GOEIRE) shoef R
5 L BB XV 5 2 K 34
FRZE AR A R R £ SR A

JBOR 4%
Name of Shareholder

T
TMICL

ISIS Asset Management Plc

TS
(Fits) AR
HSBC Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited

Wik LSRR -

Wi B SO R E S BEAS A R
F o BFEaURASTTBONE TR > i
200812 A 31 H » A A+
(AANEMESR - BERRmiTE
NEBRAM) A2 5] 1 Ry A A
Jetn (BLEEARE) A AR aE 25
J BB XV 5 2 & 3 43
IR AN AR SORE -
PRl R AT B REAR AT AT AT 1
DT IR AR B A B A RO
b B AT ] R A T (A
10% s Lk b s o

(4)  Substantial Shareholders Interests

(@) Asat31st December 2008, so far as is known to, or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiries by, the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the
Company, the following entities (other than a Director, Supervisor or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares (including options) of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:
ik 2 5 2
CHAT R
WA B BEAH 4 B
BRI 2 e Approximate
WHRUH Approximate percentage in
B percentage the total issued
E-2s Number and in the relevant share capital
Capacity class of securities class of securities of the Company
(Wtat)
(Note)
FLARHEA A 774,984,445 72.09% 54.30%
Beneficial Owner A (L)
A Shares (L)
Eracvisi 17,286,000 5.08% 1.21%
Investment Manager H& (L)
H Shares (L)
i<yt 20,000,000 5.88% 1.40%
Investment Manager H & (L)
H Shares (L)

Note:  The letter “L” represents the person’s long position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other person (other than a Director,
Supervisor or chief executive of the Company) so far as is known to the
Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the Company who, as at 31
December 2008, had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares (including options) of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, had,
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general

meetings of any members of the Group.
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w - B REMAR  Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

(—) P B GREHARN () Directors, Supervisors and senior management

" BLpL : B

Unit: Shares
B TR R
Option incentives granted during the reporting period
HEMAR
AR
iy AR
ELE Llir s
(W) Libhs
(i) LIRS
Toul - i
RAE  remuneration W& Remuneration
{ii (138 LYTEL before tax Resif and
iz ] L2] AR Rt Jebt A received from () subsidies
REHY i A REWE R EiL e Remuneration ~ the Company ~ WHFHERLH TR TR Shareprice  recefved from
Commencement ~ Sharcholding Hh Share Noof  Incemend  SBEH  and subsides during No.of No.of () artheend sharcholders’
4 R AR andespiryof  at beginning  Shareholding  options of the westriced ~ reduction Reason  received from  the period options options  Exercise price  of the period  units or other
Name Position Gender Age employment ofyear  atend of year Companyheld  shares granted ofshares  for changes ~ the Company (0000) exercisable exercised (doltar) (dollar)  related units
EpE #3R & i w6k 9RE 0 0 0 0 0 0 it 15 0 0 0 0 i
Ma Baiyu Chairman F 2009121181 Y Y
From 19 December 2006 to
18 December 2009
LEE AR L 8 w69 AE 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 6337 0 0 0 0 &
GuQifeng Vice chairman and M 2009121181 Y N
general manager From 19 December 2006 to
18 December 2009
&k s B o meFiAYRE 0 0 0 0 0 0 i 10 0 0 0 0 i
AnPindong Exccuive Director M W09 12118 H
From 19 December 2006 to
18 December 2009
Eik Yiris ] s neERAVAE 60l sl 0 0 0 0 i 10 0 0 0 0 &
Wang Zhanying  Executive Director M 2009127181 Q)i Q)i Y N
From 19 December 2006 to 6,500 6,580
18 December 2009 Domestic Domestic
Shares Shares
ki s ] s n06EIAYARE 0 0 0 0 0 0 i 10 0 0 0 0 i
Tan Zhaofu Exccutive Director M 200951251 181 Y Y
From 19 December 2006 to
18 December 2009
ik BIrE AAEEL & 3 w06EIRTIHAE 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 4679 0 0 0 0 &
FuYana A F 009412118 H ¥ N
Executive Director, From 19 December 2006 to
deputy general manager 18 December 2009
and Board secretary
FEH BAHTER % sio neFERAYAE 0 0 0 0 0 0 R’ OnERE 0 0 0 0 B
Ko Poming Independent M 20095125 181 Y HK$200,000 N
Non-executive Director From 19 December 2006 to
18 December 2009
HiiE BUHEE B 0 WsETI6HE 0 0 0 0 0 0 osnEbk 0 0 0 0 &
Gao Zongze Independent M N8E4A 150 Y HKS38300 N
Non-executive Director From 16 April 2005 to
15 April 2008
Ak BikaEY ] 8 wsEAAI6RE 0 0 0 0 0 0 sk 0 0 0 0 &
Wang Xiangfei Independent M 200844151 Y HK$58,300 N
Non-executive Director From 16 April 2005 to
15 April 2008
Ak BiFHTER 5 57 NsEAISHE 0 0 0 0 0 0 R’ ERE 0 0 0 0 &
Xie Rong Independent M 200951251 181 Y HKS$150,000 N
Non-executive Director From 15 April 2008 to
18 December 2009
i BUHTES ] @ aETISRE 0 0 0 0 0 0 I 0 0 0 0 &
Di Xiaofeng Independent M W09 12118 H Y HKS150,000 N
Non-executive Director From 15 April 2008 to
18 December 2009

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
TERTEER
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AR P  B R
Option incentives granted during the reporting period
Rt
AR
iy RETRA
pLE i
(W) Libhs
(Bii) KR
Total B -
A remuncration WA Remuneration
fii i34 AR before tax Reiibi and
iz ] L2] ARl R Rt W received from i (%) subsidies
RLHY e A ORRWE RS R Remuneration ~ the Company ~ WHFHRY  CrHig () Shareprice received from
Commencement  Sharcholding b Share No.of  Incemend  SBFH  and subsidies during No.of No.of Exercise  attheend  shareholders’
it Rt 2] Le andexpiryof  atbeginning  Sharcholding ~ options of the estricted reduction Reason  received from e period options options price of the period  units or other
Name Position Gender Age employment of year  atend ofyear  Company held  shares granted ofshares  for changes  the Company (0000)  exercisable exercised (dollar) (dollar)  related units
fa SHOER % s n06EIAYRE 0 0 0 0 0 0 R 6952 0 0 0 0 &
Zhang Wenhui Chairman of Supervisory M W09 12118 H Y
Committee From 19 December 2006 to
18 December 2009
RE E¥ B oo nEIFEE 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 17.14 0 0 0 0 &
Zhang Minggi Supervisor M WOFI A 18H Y N
From 19 September 2007 to
18 September 2010
it B % W weERAAE 9598 959l 0 0 0 0 3 18.16 0 0 0 0 &
NieYouzhuang ~ Supervisor M 00941211 18 H N M Y N
From 19 December 2006 to 959 959
18 December 2009 Domestic Domestic
Shares Shares
il E¥ 5 3B 08F0160% 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 17.19 0 0 0 0 &
Xu Zhiyong Supervisor M WA 15H Y N
From 16 October 2008 to
15 October 2011
I E & 8 W6FERAYEE 0 0 0 0 0 0 # 1728 0 0 0 0 &
Wang Yanmin Supervisor F 20095 1218 H Y
From 19 December 2006 to
18 December 2009
FEE B % Mo BEAIRE 0 0 0 0 0 0 R 58 0 0 0 0 &
Li Yuging Supervisor M W09 121181 Y
From 9 October 2008 to
18 December 2009
ok Ha 5 52 eERYAE 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 4653 0 0 0 0 &
Lin Wenbo Deputy general manager -~ M 009121181 Y N
From 19 December 2006 to
18 December 2009
L s 5 i 6EIA9HE 0 0 0 0 0 0 R 339 0 0 0 0 5
Liu Wenya Deputy general manager -~ M W09% 35 H Y N
From 19 December 2006 to
5 March 2009
Elid (ETEE B B 0meERRE 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 3 0 0 0 0 &
Deng Biao Chief engineer M W09 121181 Y
From 19 December 2006 to
18 December 2009
(i) FI4E (i) 0093 5 0 E
Deputy general manager 2009127181
From 5 March 2009 to
18 December 2009
Bk At kS B w6ERANAE 0 0 0 0 0 0 R 369 0 0 0 0 &
Chen Yinxing Chief accountant F 00943115 H Y N
From 19 March 2006 to
5 March 2009
G| L] a0 weEnRAnHE 0 0 0 0 0 0 R 37 0 0 0 0 &
Chang Xiaolan Chief cconomist F W09%3 /15 H Y
From 19 December 2006 to
5 March 2009
B Ha 5 3 weERIYAE 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3942 0 0 0 0 &
Guo Hui Deputy general manager M 2085 12318 Y N
From 19 December 2006 to
31December 2008
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4

Name

Hi
Jia Liang

Zhong Huifang

(]
Gu Wenhui

Fefkl
Shi Zhenjuan

it
Yang Guang

i
Zhang Qiang

IR
Lo Wai Keung,
Eric

A
Al

Toul

LB R SORSEA: - RHRIA L L - B
eSS - ] A 200948 3 S AE
RO TR > TR AN A8 5 i A5 3 1 3 P 1

I o

LU}

Position

Agan

Deputy general manager

alsan

Deputy general manager

A

Chief economist

At

Chief economist

Deputy general manager

ATHE (FiE)
Company &ECICL]I"\'

(Hong Kong)

i3]
Gender

L
M

h

M

[
h

M

M

gt

4

4

3

4

3

[iz.]
RILHM
Commencement
and expiry of
employment

W12 19 HE
W93 15 H

From 19 December 2006
105 March 2009

W88 2 HE
W09 12118 H
From 21 August 2008 to
18 December 2009

W93 HE
W9 12181
From 5 March 2009 to
18 December 2009

W93 SHE
W9 12181
From 5 March 2009 to
18 December 2009

W09%3 15 HE
W09 12118 H
From 5 March 2009 to
18 December 2009

W93 HE
W9 12181
From 5 March 2009 to
18 December 2009

N08E4 N30 AE
009412118 H
From 30 April 2008 1o
18 December 2009

#H

L2 ] A
% A REE
Sharcholding kil Share

atbeginning  Sharcholding ~ options of the
ofyear  atend of year  Company held

0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0

— 7809 B AR 7,809 B g

7809 7809

Domestic Shares Domestic Shares

iy
et b
R i W

No.of  Increment/
estricted teduction
shares granted of shates

0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0

SHER
Reason
for changes

0

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TERTEER

1373
ARTR
i
Remuneration
and subsidies
teceived from
the Company
3

v

o

y

reporting period have not been disclosed.

R
AR
iy

min
(#7)
(Bii)

Toul
femuneration
before tax
received from
the Company
during

the period
(0000)

4024

3356

1EET
US$20,000

695.1

SRR MR

Option incentives granted during the reporting period

WA
No.of
options
exercisable

i P
No.of
options
exercised

fikif
(%)
Exercise
price

(dollar)

0

L3
Rt
(%)

Share price
at the end
of the period

(dollar)

0

RETRA
Wik
LibHs
KR
-
Remuneration
and

subsidies
teceived from
shareholders
units or other
related units

&

=

=

Since the above senior management, Mr. Gu Wenhui, Ms Shi Zhenjuan, Mr. Yang Guang

and Mr. Zhang Qiang were appointed since March 2009, their remunerations during the
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LR 19964F £ 1998 4F » T K
W B LA A MR R R > W R
HAT TR B R R A W) AR AR
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B EEER > 2007 4F 1 A BAGHT A%
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BAEL+H 2000 4 12 H 20 HE{LA
NREFR o
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B3 > 1998 4F % 2000 4F 12 AL THIEL
PG R4 TR - A TARAT o BT
20004F 12 AT A2 R A8 TAZAT - 7722002
AR BRIRFAT A A R ARACHE > 2003 4F
2 H k2 AS A 4 TARRTERES > 20034F7
FATA RIS R4S > H 20034F 12
HBIUR AT AN R ARAEHE - BSEAEHE 2000
12 ARBEALA R ES - 2006 4F 12 1
19 HBEAAFRIERER -

R BUEAARIES - 1997 4%
1999 4 12 AF KBRS 0 38 e 2 W )
PAHSTRACE o 1999 445 2000 4F 12 H 1T
B B ARG 5T o % SR A AE 2000
12 A B AEA A R G SR » 20054F
2 AREEAL ARG SIS - 2003 4F
12 BT B S AR - 2
2000 4F 12 HBAEA N A # S -

Major working experience of Directors, Supervisors, senior management in the recent

five years:

ey

)

Ma Baiyu, is the Chairman of the Company and general manager of Tianjin
Investment Group. From 1996 to 1998, she was the deputy director of the Foreign
Economic Division of Tianjin Municipal Engineering Bureau, at the same time
was also the chief economist of Tianjin Road Construction Development Company
Limited. From 1998 to December 2001, Ms. Ma worked as the general manager
in TMICL. In August 2003, she was appointed as the chief economist of Tianjin
Municipal Corporation. From December 2003, she was the chairman of TMICL.
From January 2007, she was the general manager of Tianjin Investment Group.
Ms. Ma has over twenty years experience in the urban construction and

management. Ms. Ma is the Chairman of the Company since 20 December, 2000.

Gu Qifeng, is the vice Chairman and general manager of the Company. He was
the assistant chief engineer of Tianjin No.3 Municipal Services Company in 1997,
and was the deputy chief engineer and chief engineer of TMICL from 1998 to
December 2000. In December 2000, Mr. Gu worked as the chief engineer of the
Company, and from 2002, he was also the deputy general manager of the Company.
In February 2003, he resigned from his office as the chief engineer, and was the
executive deputy general manager of the Company from July 2003. He was the
general manager of the Company since December 2003 and is the Director of the
Company since December 2000. He is the vice Chairman of the Company since

19 December 2006.

An Pindong, is the Director of the Company. From 1997 to December 1999, Mr.
An was the manager of the financial department of Tianjin Jin Zheng Transport
Development Company. From 1999 to December 2000, Mr. An worked as the
assistant chief accountant in TMICL. From December 2000, he was the chief
accountant of the Company. In February 2005, he resigned from the position as
the Company’s chief accountant. From December 2003, he was the general manager
of TMICL. Mr. An was appointed the Director of the Company since December
2000.
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©)

Wang Zhanying, is a Director of the Company. He had been the accountant at the
finance division of Tianjin No. 4 Urban Construction Bureau, the accountant of
the command division for project on diverting water from Luan River to Tianjin,
the accountant, deputy head and head of the finance department of Tianjin
Municipal Corporation as well as the chief accountant of Tianjin Highway
Construction and Development Company. In October 2002, he worked as the
Supervisor of the Company, and in October 2003, he resigned from the position

as the Supervisor. Mr. Wang is the Director of the Company since December 2003.

Tan Zhaofu, is the Director of the Company. Mr. Tan joined Tianjin Sewage
Management Division since graduation in 1975. He has been in charge of financial
management of finance division of Tianjin Sewage Company and its subsidiaries.
During the period when he was the deputy head of the financial department of
Tianjin Sewage Management Division, he organized and completed the
management and reforms of the Tianjin Sewage Management Division, and
successfully organized the Tianjin Sewage Company, and has been the chief
accountant and general manager of the company. Mr. Tan has more than twenty-
five years of experience in the construction, management and financing of urban
infrastructure facilities. He started developing the Company’s business in 2003,
pending the construction of municipal water drainage project and he had completed
investment of RMB800 million in construction, making contribution to the
upgrading of function of municipal infrastructural facilities. Mr. Tan is a Director

of the Company since December 2003.

Fu Yana, is the Director, deputy general manager and secretary of the Board of the
Company. Ms. Fu joined Tianjin Sewage Management Division after graduation.
From August 1998 to December 2000, she was the deputy head and head of the
General Office of TMICL, and has been the secretary of the Board since December
2000. She is the Director and the deputy general manager of the Company since
December 2003.
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Ko Poming, is the chief executive officer of Piper Jaffray Asia Limited. Mr. Ko
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in
business administration. Mr. Ko has been the independent non-executive director
of Nanjing Panda Electronics Co., Ltd. (1996-1999), Shanghai Dazhong
Transportation (Group) Co., Ltd. (1997-2003), iMerchants Limited (2000-2004)
and Jin Ying Asset Management Co. (2002-2008) and is currently the independent
non-executive Director of the Company. In addition, Mr. Ko has been appointed
as member of the Main Board and Growth Enterprise Market Listing Committee

of the Stock Exchange.

Xie Rong, is the independent non-executive Director of the Company. He is
currently vice-president of Shanghai National Accounting Institute, member of
the guidance committee for master degree education of the accounting profession
under the Academic Degree Committee of the State Council, executive director of
the Accounting Society of China, director of China Audit Society, vice-chairman
of Shanghai Institute for Cost Research, independent non-executive directors of
various listed companies, including Eastern Airlines, China Shipping Development
and CITIC Bank and external director of SAIC Motor. Mr. Xie obtained a master
degree in economics from the Department of Accounting of the Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics in 1985. He received a doctorate degree in economics
from the Auditing Practice Department of the Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in 1992. From December 1985 to December 1994, he served as teaching
assistant, lecturer, associate professor and professor at the Department of Accounting
of the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. He took up the post of
instructor for doctorate students of the Department of Accounting of the Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics since December 1994. From December 1994
to March 1997, he was deputy head of the Department of Accounting of the
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. From December 1997 to October
2002, he became a partner of KPMG Huazhen and a certified public accountant
in China. Since October 2002, he took up the post of vice-president of Shanghai
National Accounting Institute. Mr. Xie was appointed as the independent non-

executive Director of the Company since 16 April 2008.
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Di Xiaofeng, is the independent non-executive Director of the company, and a
partner of the Commerce & Finance Law Offices. Mr. Di received a bachelor
degree of law from Peking University in 1983 and a master degree of law from the
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 1986. From August 1986 to March 1988,
he worked for the Secretariat of China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission, specializing in external economic and trade arbitration. From March
1988 to May 1992, he worked as a full-time lawyer for the China Legal Affairs
Centre under the supervision of the Ministry of Justice. During the period between
April 1989 and May 1992, he also served as the chief of the economic lawyers
office of that centre. From January to July 1992, he worked and practised as a
trainee solicitor in Livasiri & Co., a Hong Kong law firm. Mr. Di Xiaofeng was
qualified as a solicitor in 1988 and further qualified to practise as a securities lawyer
in 1993. He is currently engaged in legal advisory services in the areas of corporate
business, finance, securities, finance lease, real estate, foreign investment and
international arbitration. Mr. Di was appointed the independent non-executive

Director of the Company since 16 April 2008.

Zhang Wenhui, is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Company.
Since 1980, Mr. Zhang served as the deputy head of No.4 Branch of Tianjin Sewage
Management Division, deputy chief, chief and party secretary of Tianjin Sewage
Management Division, and the vice-chairman of the labour union of Urban
Construction Bureau, and has nearly 30 years experience in municipal public
administration industry. From 20 December 2000 to 19 December 2003, Mr.
Zhang was a Director of the Company, and was appointed the chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company since 19 December 2003. He was the

party secretary of the Company since October 2006.
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Mr. Zhang Minggi, is the Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from
the Party School of the Central Communist Party in 2000, majoring in economic
management, and served in Tianjin Sewage Management Division since 1980,
holding various positions ranging from committee member for party affairs, deputy
secretary of party sub-committee of No. 2 Sewage Station and motor vehicle team,
member of party discipline committee, deputy factory manager and deputy secretary
of party sub-committee of Dongjiao Sewage Water Treatment Plant. Mr. Zhang
joined the Company in 2001 and became a Supervisor on behalf of the Company’s
staff of the Company in September 2001. Mr. Zhang was appointed as the vice
party secretary of the Company since 24 February 2009.

Nie Youzhuang, is the supervisor of the Company. He obtained a bachelor degree
and a master degree in project management and is a senior engineer. He served at
the electric machinery department, operation department of Tianjin Dongjiao
Sewage Water Treatment Plant in charge of operation management. Mr. Nie served
at the development and construction branch of Tianjin Sewage Company since
March 2000, and participated in the sewage treatment projects for Haihe River.
He joined the Company in January 2001 as worked in the production operation
department, and held positions as departmental deputy general manager, manager
and deputy chief engineer, primarily engaging in the operation of water treatment
plants. He has extensive management experience and contributes to certain
innovations in respect of the Group-wide operation and management. Mr. Nie has
been a Supervisor since 19 December 2003. He is currently the general manager of

a water business branch of the Company.

Xu Zhiyong, is the Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Xu joined the Planning Division
of Tianjin Sewage Management Division since 1994, and joined the chief engineer’s
office of the Company in August, 2002, in charge of the sewage water treatment
engineering project of the Haihe waters, planning management of Beicang Sewage
Water Treatment Plant project and the secretary to the chief engineer. He has been
the deputy manager of the Engineering Management Division, deputy head and
head of complex office and manager of general office. He is currently the head of
the general office of the Company, and has been elected as the Supervisor of the
Company by the general meeting of the staff representative of the Company on 16

October 2005.
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Wang Yanmin, is the Supervisor of the Company, graduated from Tianjin Academy
of Finance and Economics in 1987 with a bachelor degree in accounting. She had
served in Tianjin Textile Industry Company and Tianjin Commercial Committee
respectively, and had been dedicated in the finance and audit sectors in the capacities
of department head and deputy supervisor. She has nearly 20 years of management
experience in finance and economics, and has been appraised as an Advanced
Worker by Tianjin Commercial Committee for a number of times. Ms. Wang
jointed the Company in September 2004, and is currently the manager of the
Audit Department of the Company, and was appointed as the Supervisor of the

Company since 19 December 2006.

Mr. Li Yuqing, is the Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from the
Tianjin University of Technology (K2I2 T ZPr) in 1987 with a bachelor degree
in electrical automation and possesses the qualifications of state registered safety
engineer and bid evaluation expert of Tianjin. From 1987 to 2000, he worked for
the production and operation section and the facility power section of Dongjiao
Sewage Water Treatment Plant under Tianjin Sewage Management Bureau,
engaging in sewage treatment plant technical management, production and
operation management and facility management, and held the positions of chief
engineer for facilities, section chief and deputy factory head. From 2001 to 2008,
he worked for Dongjiao Sewage Treatment Plant, water supply branch and the
production and operation department of the Company and held the positions of
deputy factory head, factory head, general manager of water supply branch, manager
of the operation department and deputy chief engineer of the Company, engaging
in the operation and management of the Company. Mr. Li has been engaged in
the operation and management of the water supply industry for many years and is
familiar with the operational techniques and production and operation management
of the water supply industry with extensive experience in primary level management

and the operation of the water supply industry.
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Lin Wenbo, is the deputy general manager of the Company. M. Lin joined Tianjin
Municipal Engineering Bureau in 1980, and had been the head of the dispatch
office, deputy factory head and factory head of Tianjin Jizhuangzhi, Dongjiao,
Xianyanglu Sewage Water Treatment Plants. He headed in the preparation for the
construction of the Xianyanglu Sewage Water Treatment Plant in the Tianjin Sewage
Water Treatment Projects of the Haihe River Basin in Tianjin in the capacity as
project manager. He held positions as general manager and board chairman, etc. at
Guizhou Capital Company Limited, Hangzhou Tianchuang Water Co., Ltd.,
Baoying Capital Water Co., Ltd. and Wengdeng Capital Water Company Limited.
Mr. Lin has extensive experience in sewage water operation and management. Mr.
Lin joined the Company since December 2000 as deputy general manager, in

charge of the Company’s operations and market development.

Deng Biao, is the deputy general manager and chief engineer of the Company. Mr.
Deng has been engaged in the construction, operation management, technical
research of municipal sewage water treatment facilities, and has extensive experience
in the construction, operation and technical research of municipal sewage water
treatment plants. Mr. Deng had headed in the completion of various topics regarding
sewage water treatment techniques of the Ministry of Construction and in Tianjin
City, and had been granted with various patents in sewage treatment techniques as
the first inventor. Mr. Deng had also headed in setting the national standards for
industrial water from the recycling of municipal sewage water. Mr. Deng joined
the Company in March, 2002 as deputy chief engineer, and has been the chief
engineer of the Company since December, 2003. Since 5 March 2009, he was the

deputy general manager and chief engineer of the Company.
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Zhong Huifang, is the deputy general manager of the Company. Ms. Zhong
graduated from Tianjin University in 1991 with double degrees in mechanical
manufacturing and water supply and drainage, and possesses the qualification of
state registered investment consultant. From 1991 to 2002, she successively worked
for Lingzhuang Water Factory, production technology division, water production
division and scientific development division of Tianjin Waterworks Group Company
Limited and was engaged in the technological reform and design, production
technology management and the scientific development and management of water
supply of Tianjin Tap Water Plant. From 2002 to August 2008, she successively
held the positions of manager assistant, deputy manager and manager of the market
development division of the Company and deputy chief engineer and general
manager assistant of the Company, and participated as a key member in market
development of the Company. She has extensive experience in the water industry
and is familiar with water production technology, production management, water
market economy, policies and regulations and various market business operation
models and has accumulated a wealth of practical experience in corporate market
development. Ms. Zhong was the deputy general manager of the Company since

21 August 2008.

Gu Wenhui, is the chief economist of the Company. Mr. Gu received a master
degree in management from Commercial College of Nankai University in 2002,
and he was an economist and management consultant. He joined the Company in
November 2002 and successively served as the project manager of market
development department, the assistant supervisor and supervisor of the Board
secretariat from 2002 to 2006. In 2006, he worked as the manager of planning
department in charge of the preparation of the strategic planning and the
implementation of the plan of the Group, the construction of organizational process
and standardized management systems, research on the Company’s development
and support of the management’s decisions. Mr. Gu has accumulated extensive
experience in operational planning and management. Mr. Gu was the Company’s

chief economist since 5 March 2009.
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Shi Zhenjuan, is the chief accountant of the Company. Ms. Shi graduated from
Tianjin University of Finance and Economics with a bachelor degree in economics,
majoring in Finance in July 1993. From June 2004 to December 2005, she studied
in Nankai University in Tianjin, majoring in EMBA and obtained a master degree
in business administration. From July 1993 to January 1999, she served at the
financial department of Tianjin Second Municipal Highway Engineering Co., Ltd.
From 1999 to 2000, she worked at the financial department of TMICL and was
involved in the whole process of the asset reorganization and domestic and foreign
listing of the Company. From December 2000 to August 2004, she successively
served as the accountant, deputy manager and manager of financial department of
the Company. From August 2004 till now, she has been the deputy general manager
and chief accountant of Tianjin Water Recycling Company Limited. From March
2008 till now, she has been the financial controller of the controlling shareholders
office. Ms. Shi was appointed as the vice chief accountant of the Company since
February 2008. She is equipped with good professional quality and has several
years’ experience in financial management. Ms. Shi has been the chief accountant

of the Company since 5 March 2009.

Zhang Qiang, is the deputy general manager of the Company, holding the title of
Senior Engineer and Grade one road architect. Mr. Zhang graduated from the
engineering branch school of Tianjin University in July 1985, majoring in water
supply and sewage, with bachelor degree of engineering. From August 2003 to
October 2007, he served as deputy general manger in Tianjin Third Municipal
Highway Engineering Co., Ltd. in charge of the modification works of Xianyang
Road in Tianjin, Celerity Road of Dongfeng Overpass and the operation and
development of the Company. From October 2007 to February 2009, he was
appointed as chairman and the general manager of Tianjin Seventh Municipal
Highway Engineering Co., Ltd. in charge of the overall work. Mr. Zhang served as
the deputy general manager of the Company since 5 March 2009.
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Yang Guang, is the deputy general manager and engineer of the Company. Mr.
Yang started his career since graduation from Tianjin Municipal Work Institute
(KT T ERPL) in 1990. He graduated from Tianjin Urban Construction
Institute, majoring in water supply and sewage in 1997. He served as the deputy
factory manager of Jizhuangzhi Sewage Water Treatment Plant from 1997 to 2003.
From March to June 2003, he was appointed as the deputy manager of the operation
department of the Company. He worked as the deputy general manager in Guizhou
Capital Water Company Limited from June 2003 to December 2006 and after
that he was promoted as the general manager in Guizhou Capital Water Company
Limited. Mr. Yang Guang was appraised as an Advanced Worker of Tianjin
Municipal Engineering Bureau and Tianjin Investment Group since 2004 and he
was awarded as Working Model of Tianjin in 2007. Mr. Yang Guang has been
engaged in the operation management in sewage water treatment enterprises and
accumulated extensive techniques in sewage water treatment and rich experience
in operation management. Mr. Yang has been the deputy general manager of the

Company since 5 March 2009.

Mr. Lo Wai Keung, Eric, the Company Secretary (Hong Kong) of the Company.
Mr. Lo graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree in business administration. Mr. Lo obtained a postgraduate diploma in
laws from the Manchester Metropolitan University and a postgraduate certificate
in laws from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lo is a solicitor admitted in Hong
Kong and has extensive experience in handling compliance related matters for

listed companies.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and the Company’s chief executives’ interests and/
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations

As at 31st December 2008, the interests and/or short positions of the Directors, Supervisors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or otherwise, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, to be notified to

the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

A H) R

CHEAT B AR

I BERY T 4 1o

Approximate

W2 H percentage in the

yZ | total issued share

E- 274 Number and capital of the Company/

Capacity class of securities associated corporations
(FfF&E)
(Note)

g i 2PN 6,850 M A B M 0.00048%
Beneficial owner (PR m ) (U )
6,850 domestic Shares
(non-restricted circulating Shares) (L)

g i 2PN 959 Mtk it 0.000067%
Beneficial owner (FEBRE Ry (Ar)
959 domestic Shares

(non-restricted circulating Shares) (L)

Note:  The letter “L” represents the person’s long positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company

or its associated corporations.

As at 31st December 2008, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the
Company or their spouses or children under 18 years of age were granted or had exercised
any right to subscribe for any equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the

Company, who, as at 31st December 2008, had any interests or short positions in any

shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which would have to be notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the

SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the

register referred to therein, or otherwise, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

(II) Positions held at the Shareholder’s entity

i

AL 0

PEAT 10 R 5 Commencement
Positions held of employment
FR 2003 4F 11 H 21 H
Chairman 21 November 2003
b 200542 /122 H

General Manager 22 February 2005

id.|
#ak |
End of

employment

Pkt
TP e
Any remuneration,
allowance received

i

No

=)
T
Yes

Save as the above, the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the

Company did not take up any non-director positions for the controlling shareholder.

Positions held at other entities

Apart from the above positions, for details of positions held by the Directors,

Supervisors and senior management of the Company, please refer to “Major working

experience of Directors, Supervisors, senior management in the recent five years”

in this section.
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(IIT) Remunerations of Directors, Supervisors and senior management

The procedures for determining the remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors
and the senior management of the Company: the remuneration of the Directors
and Supervisors will be determined in accordance with the service agreements
entered into with the Directors and Supervisors as approved in the Company’s
general meetings and the Company’s operating results. The Supervisors of the
Company do not receive remunerations. The incomes of the senior
management officers were determined on the basis of their operational and
management result performances, responsibilities and risk exposures and an

annual income system was implemented.

The basis for determining the remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors
and the senior management: the remuneration of the Company’s senior
management will be distributed in accordance with the achievements in
production and operation and the usual management activities. The annual
remuneration and bonus will be determined upon the achievement of annual
operating targets and performance indicators and performance appraisal

results.

During the financial year, the Company did not pay any housing allowance,
other allowance and benefits in kind and bonus to Directors, Supervisors
and senior management, nor any payment to them as an inducement to
join the Company or as compensation for loss of office of Directors,
Supervisors, senior management. None of the Directors, Supervisors and
senior management of the Company waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments. The Company has not provided any loans to Directors,
Supervisors or senior management. Except for remuneration, the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management of the Company have not derived other
benefits from other contracts. The Company, during the reporting period,
did not enter into any administration or management contracts for all or

material part of its business.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into service contracts with
the Company that are not terminable by the Company within a year without

paying compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Guo Hui

Bl
Liu Wenya
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Chen Yinxing
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Chang Xiaolan
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(Fu) A2+ B T3

TEk H LA
The total number of on-duty employees
AR T ARAS T R AR T

(IV) Change of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the

Company
LAER ) 2 - iy L
Position held Reasons for leaving the post
il AR AR PN
Deputy general manager Personal reasons
e T AR
Deputy general manager Job transfer
A T{FH)
Chief accountant Job transfer
kil TAEFRE)
Chief economist Job transfer
e T AR
Deputy general manager Job transfer
K EREE () AT
Company secretary (Hong Kong) Job transfer

The 18th meeting of the Fourth Board of the Company considered and approved the
appointment of Mr. Lo Wai Keung, Eric as the Company Secretary (Hong Kong). The
21st meeting of the Fourth Board considered and approved the appointment of Ms. Zhong
Huifang as a deputy general manager of the Company. The 26th meeting of the Fourth
Board considered and approved the appointment of Mr. Zhang Qiang, Mr. Yang Guang
and Mr. Deng Biao as deputy general managers of the Company, the appointment of Ms.
Shi Zhenjuan as the chief accountant of the Company and the appointment of Mr. Gu
Wenhui as the chief economist of the Company. Please refer to the section “Director,
Supervisor and Senior Management” for details of the biography of the above appointed

senior management.

(V)  Employees of the Company

572

0

The number of retired employees for whom the Company is required to afford charges

AR ) B TR DL R

Description of employees of the Company

FERE LI 572 A
572 on-duty employees in total
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BTHEEHMT - Staff structure was as follows:

L HCERRSRAND 1. By profession

KON A Category of profession Number of persons
AR 94 Administration 94
MH AR 22 Finance 22
Hefif N B 173 Technical 173
T5K B A B 283 Sewage water treatment plants and others 283
2. BAEREHNR 2. Byeducation
Fsn A Category of education Number of persons
A 1 Doctor 1
Tt 32 Master 32
AR 260 Undergraduate 260
PN 124 Tertiary 124
LN 155 Senior Secondary School and under 155
&t 572 Total 572
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AP Structure of Corporate Governance

The conditions of the Company’s corporate governance

During the reporting period, the Company strictly complied with the requirements
under the Company Law, Securities Law and Stock Listing Rules of the PRC, the
Articles of Association of the Company and the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations of the CSRC to standardize its daily operation, strengthen its
information disclosure and make continued efforts in improving its corporate
governance structure. Currently, the actual conditions of the corporate governance
structure basically comply with the requirements of the relevant laws and regulations

of the Code on Corporate Governance for Listed Companies”:

(1) In respect of shareholders and general meeting: The Company treats all
shareholders equally and ensures shareholders can duly exercise their rights
and safeguards the legitimate interests of all shareholders; In accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company and the relevant regulations,
the Company has developed the Rules of the Procedures of General Meetings
and is able to convene and hold general meetings in strict compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations and ensures shareholders can exercise their
voting rights duly and successfully. During the reporting period, the number
of shareholders attending general meetings of the Company and shares
represented by them complied with the relevant provisions of the Company

Law of the PRC and the Articles of Association of the Company.

(2)  In respect of the relationship between the controlling shareholder and the
listed company: The controlling shareholder has exercised its shareholders’
rights in strict compliance with the relevant provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company without the existence of intervening in the
Company’s major decision making and production and operation activities
by overriding the Board and the general meeting. The board and internal
organs of the Company operate independently to a full extent. For connected
transactions, the Company has performed the relevant transaction approval
and of the Company examination procedures in strict compliance with the
Articles of Association of the Company and the stock listing rules in Shanghai

and Hong Kong, ensuring the fairness and reasonableness of the transactions.
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Structure of Corporate Governance AN AR BLAE

The conditions of the Company’s corporate governance (Continued)

In respect of Directors and the Board:The Board of the Company has
performed work independently under the support of its subordinate audit
committee, remuneration and assessment committee, nomination committee
and strategy committee. In accordance with the Rules of the Procedures of
Board Meetings, all Directors have duly discharged their duties in a diligent
way, have independently performed their duties and have paid sufficient

attention to the interests of all medium and small shareholders.

In respect of Supervisors and the Supervisory Committee: The members
and composition of the Supervisory Committee of the Company comply
with the requirements of laws and regulations. The Supervisors of the
Company are able to conscientiously perform their duties in accordance
with the Rules of the Procedures of the Meetings of the Supervisory
Committee, and by adhering to the spirit of being accountable to
shareholders, supervise the finance of the Company and the legality and
compliance of the performance of duties by Directors, managers and other

senior management members.

In respect of performance appraisal and incentive control mechanism: The
general meeting of the Company approves the remuneration standard for
Directors. A strict remuneration and performance appraisal and incentive
system has been implemented upon approval by the Board to conduct
appraisal and evaluation on the performance of employees of the manager

level or below.

In respect of stakeholders: The Company is able to duly respect and safeguard
the legitimate interests of other stakeholders such as banks, other creditors
and staff, and realize good communication with each other, jointly promote

the sustained and healthy development of the Company.
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1.

The conditions of the Company’s corporate governance (Continued)

(7)  In respect of information disclosure and transparency: In accordance with
the stock listing rules in Shanghai and Hong Kong and the Information
Disclosure Management System of the Company, the Company has
internally established expedite information collection channels, ensuring
timeliness, fairness, truthfulness, accuracy and integrity in relation to
information disclosure of the Company. The Company has also established
the Investor Relations Management System to conscientiously receive
investors paying visits and conducting on-site inspections. The official website
of the Company has established an investor column which serves as a
platform for timely communication between the Company and investors.
The establishment of a sound communication channel between the
Company and investors is of great help to improve the Company’s operational

management standard and corporate governance.

Corporate governance activities

In 2008, the Company, on the basis of the special governance activities carried out
by the Company in the previous year, further conducted special governance self-
examination and rectification activities in accordance with the Company Law and
Securities Law of the PRC, Code on Corporate Governance for Listed Companies
and the requirements of the relevant laws and regulations and notices such as “Notice
regarding Issues relevant to Enhancing Special Corporate Governance Activities of
Listed Companies” and “Notice regarding Announcements on Special Corporate
Governance Activities” of the CSRC. Upon consideration and approval by the
Board, the Company disclosed the “Explanation on Corporate Governance

Rectification” to the public on the website of SSE on 19 July 2008.

In 2008, the Company further improved the internal control system, established
the cyclical framework system for the 10 key businesses, formed a complete system
for the establishment, renewal and improvement of systems and processes. The
relevant units and departments of the Company conducted evaluations on existing
business risks during the execution of the business processes and established and
improved a database for the 10 major risks. The persons in charge of the processes
examined the execution of the processes for which they were responsible on a
regular basis and provided an effective feedback for the rectification of internal

control defects and the renewal of the processes.
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Corporate governance activities (Continued)

The establishment and effective implementation of the Company’s internal control
system has laid a solid legal system basis for the sustained and steady development
of the Company. Through refining its internal management process according to
law, the Company has speeded up the resolution of difficuldes in the development
of the Company, effectively avoided the impact of staff movement on its operations,
and established a unified and standardized internal control system that is in line
with the modern enterprise management system and meets the actual conditions
of the Company and improved the corporate governance structure that fits the

standard management mode.

In 2006, the Company established the investment review committee in order to
improve the efficiency of significant investment decision making and the quality
of decision making. The committee is an internal investment review organ under
the Company’s managers” union and its major duty is to provide advice and
recommendations for investment decision making by the general manager of the
Company so that the general manager can make decisions which are most favourable
to the development of the Company within the shortest possible time. Members
of the committee comprise senior management of the Company and relevant
experts. The focus of the meetings of the investment review committee is: whether
the proposed investment project is in line with the Company’s development strategy
and whether it is favourable to the long-term development of the Company; whether
the proposed investment plan and risk prevention measures are practicable;; whether
the expected operating return is reasonable and meets the Company’s investment
interests and safety and can be realized; whether resources such as capital and

manpower can meet the project demand.
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Corporate governance activities (Continued)

In 2008, the Company took various measures to strengthen the management of its
subsidiaries. In recent years, with the continued expansion of the Company’s
operations, the Company has currently established 14 subsidiaries in various cities,
including Guiyang, Hangzhou, Qujing and Hong Kong. How to manage its
subsidiaries has become an important task for the Company at present and over a
period of time in the future. Following several years™ efforts in exploration and
attempt, the Company has initially developed an effective management mode that
meets the needs of all parties in the water industry. This includes prudent and
scientific decision making during the establishment of subsidiaries; sending directors
and chief representatives to act on behalf of shareholders; establishing sound
organization and management systems; information disclosure jointly made by

subsidiaries and the Company.

The Company has established a subsidiary affairs office to focus on providing
services and support for regional business units and subsidiaries in the aspects of
financial management and technology management and perform the management
functions of the Group, and coordinate the relationship between subsidiaries and
the management of the Group and the functional departments, and strengthen
the management of subsidiaries during routine operations through the
implementation of management systems such as market development, capital,
budget and internal audit. In accordance with the “Information Disclosure
Management System” published by the Company, the general manager of each
subsidiary is the person responsible for information disclosure of the company.
Each subsidiary has assigned a person as the contact person for information
disclosure to communicate with the relevant departments of the Company so as to

ensure the timeliness and accuracy of information disclosure.
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Corporate governance activities (Continued)

In September 2008, in accordance with the requirements of the “Notice regarding
Conducting Large-scale Examinations on Regulated Operation” of Tianjin Securities
Bureau, Tianjin Securities Bureau conducted an examination on special corporate
governance of the Company and the appropriation of fund of the listed company
by the controlling shareholder. The examination included off-site examination and
on-site examination. The off-site examination mainly included two aspects. On
one hand, this involved the result of the rectification of irregularities in corporate
governance undertaken by the Company within a time limit and mainly focused
on examining the duties of the Company’s independent non-executive Directors,
the performance of the role played by board committees and the compliance of
information disclosure. On the other hand, this involved an examination on the
independence of the listed company and mainly focused on examining whether
the Company had established a mechanism for preventing substantial shareholders
from appropriate the fund of the listed company and whether there were violations
and embezzlement of funds on the part of substantial shareholders and connected
parties. Following the examination, Tianjin Securities Bureau considered the
Company had established regulated systems and processes for tackling the above
problems and implementation proceeded smoothly. For the on-site examination,
Tianjin Securities Bureau examined the Company’s subsidiaries, Xian Capital Water
Company Limited and Guizhou Capital Water Company Limited, and mainly
focused on carrying out an on-site examination on the system of internal
transmission between the Company and its subsidiaries in respect of information
matters and its execution and the relevant system established by the Company for
the financial management of its subsidiaries and its execution. Following the
examination, Tianjin Securities Bureau considered the Company has a sound
internal control system and internal departmental construction and has established
a relatively completed information exchange system through the commencement
of the special corporate governance activities. This enhanced the management work
of the subsidiaries and further upgraded the Company’s corporate governance

standard.

Corporate governance is a long-term mission. Through further propelling self-
examination and self-rectification in respect of corporate governance activities and
regulated operation, the Company will continually enhance regulated operation
awareness, firmly implemented corporate governance rectification measures,
improved various tasks relevant to corporate governance in strict compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations and the requirements of the relevant securities
regulation authorities so as to further increase the Company’s regulated operation
standard, drive the corporate governance standard to a new level and ensure the

healthy and steady development of the Company.
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(Z) Br AT HFBATREWO 3. Performance of duties by independent non-executive Directors

1~ BydEpirERs el (1) Attendance of independent non-executive Directors at the Board meetings
0L
ARAERES
ERERY BLH ZHit

Number of e k) Y /)
attendance Attendance Attendance B (%) S 1R e SE A

BJEHAT  Independent to be made in person by proxies Absence Reasons and
HALEH non-executive Directors  in the year (times) (times) (times) remarks for absence
i Xie Rong 8 7 1 0 —
HEM Ko Poming 11 10 1 0 —
i Di Xiao Feng 8 8 0 |
[EER Gao Zongze 3 3 0 0 —
TR Wang Xiangfei 3 3 0 0 —
2~ BOIEPUTE SRR A R B (2)  Issues on disagreement by the independent non-executive Directors with
TP i S 1 Ot the Company
WA > A FB AL AT E R During the reporting period, the Company’s independent non-executive
REAN BIAAE B F Gk R Directors have not disagreed with the resolutions proposed in the meeting
HoAb I R SR IR AR 5 o of the Board and other meetings of the Company held in this year.

() A2 w] M B A PE BB K AESE 4. Independence between the Company and the controlling shareholder
% ANB - BA - B W5 with respect to the matters including business, staff, assets, organisation
25 75 i 0 8 e DL and finance

S5 B SLE DL A FTE SRS 7 Independence of Business: The Company was independent from the controlling
BT IBOR - BT ST 5 B A SE shareholder in conducting of its business, with independent capability on business
Je 3 R ERRTT o and self-operation.
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Independence between the Company and the controlling shareholder
with respect to the matters including business, staff, assets, organisation

and finance (Continued)

Independence of Staffs: The Company’s senior management is employed by the
Board of the Company, and their remuneration and assessment is determined by
the Board; staffs below senior management level are employed by the general
manager, with their remuneration and assessment to be determined in accordance
with the system of remuneration and assessment approved by the Board. The
Company has set up an independent human resource department. Save and except
for the chairman of the Company who was also a chairman of TMICL, the
controlling shareholder, all senior management officers such as the general manager,
deputy general manager, financial controller, secretary to the Board received their
salaries from the Company and they have not taken up any important positions
other than directors in the entities of the controlling shareholder. Therefore, in
terms of personnel and remuneration management, the Company is independent

of the controlling shareholder.

Independence of Assets: All assets relating to the production and operation of the
Company were owned by the Company and completely independent from the
controlling shareholder. The Company did not provide any guarantee to its
controlling shareholder and other companies except for the Company’s controlling
subsidiaries. The Company has complete control and right of its assets. There were
no circumstances of its assets and capital being occupied by the controlling

shareholder which would adversely affect the interest of the Company.

Independence of Organisation: The Company established an organizational
structure which was absolutely independent from the controlling shareholder, and
has set up organizations such as shareholders” general meetings, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and the general manager of the Company. The operation
and management of the Company were subject to an accountability system of the
general manager under the authorization of the Board. The Company has a separate

place of business.

Independence of Finance: The Company has set up an independent financial and
accounting department, and established a separate bank account and an independent

accounting and audit system and financial management system.
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(IL) AR TR B 5. Corporate governance report
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Requirements of the

Corporate Governance Report
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I Corporate Governance Practices

L BOd sy B AR (R

FRESFI) (TC3) 1) SUsAY Jst - 378
PEARE - SRR AT fir R A7 B
fTRE I
Stating how the listed issuer applied the
principles as set out in the “Code on
Corporate Governance Practices” (the
“Code”) with further explanations, in
order to allow its shareholders to assess the

application of the relevant principals.

Compliance with the “Code on Corporate Governance Practices”

Since the listing of the Company, the Company has complied with domestic
and overseas regulatory requirements, and gradually set up and upgraded a
regularized corporate governance structure. Pursuant to the “Code on
Corporate Governance Practices” and other legal requirements, the Company
has continuously amended and improved the related systems under the
Articles of Association, Rules of the Procedures of Shareholders’ General
Meetings and Rules of the Procedures of the Board Meetings, and at the
same time continued to upgrade its internal control system, and strictly
complied with the “Code on Corporate Governance Practices”. The
Company proactively carried out various assignment to continuously

enhance the Company’s governance level.

Details of Corporate Governance Report

T8I0 A 2 ) I AR

Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period

(rAEf) ~ (EFGRERAD - BORRGRERAD FARRH
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SRR 7 MIRRSE A8 ST m IR R R AR Bl B

The Articles of Association, the Rules of the Procedures of the Board
Meetings and the Rules of the Procedures of Sharcholders” General
Meetings have strictly implemented the requirements under the Code.
The decision making procedures and its reasonings of the Board (and its
Audit Committee, Remuneration and Assessment Committees,
Nomination Committee and Strategic Planning Committee),
Supervisory Committee and the general meeting have fully complied

with the related system of Corporate Governance.
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Whether the listed issuer has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the
Code. In the event the listed issuer has
adopted its own code which is stricter than
the Code, the listed issues shall in its annual
report procure others to pay attention to

such facts

Al (SR PR RGO R
TEA R B B oA A A < U S
1 (G BT A oChY 17 s d AR
PGB )

In the event of deviations from the code
provisions as set out in the Code,
explanation should be given on the details
of any deviation from the code provisions
in the relevant financial year (including
reasons for such deviation action after

consideration)

Structure of Corporate Governance AN AR BLAE

Corporate governance report (Continued)

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

B AR 2 A A R

Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period
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The Articles of Association, the Rules of the Procedures of the Board
Meetings and the Rules of the Procedures of Shareholders” General
Meetings have complied with the requirements under the Code. The
Company has complied with the Code both at the present or during the

reporting period.

BTN > AR TP B IR R (PRI BT B -

There was no deviation from the Code in all the Company’s operations

and management during the reporting period.
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Requirements of the

Corporate Governance Report
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Whether the Listed issuer has adopted a
set of principles for securities transaction
by directors with standards higher than the

“Model Code”

Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period

Securities Transactions by Directors (on the “Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (‘Model Code”)

as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules)

AN T LR —EEHEFE TR R SR > HESRA DR
ETARRIREER T CEREESTAD o (RRER) B - &% B A0
ABHA R A S B R A SLAEIMART P > S 2w R BRI R A
A R 5 76 AR A B BB 7~ 18 A AT DT R A 1Y
AR

The Company has adopted a code of practice in respect of securities
transactions by Directors, the standards of which are similar to the Model
Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Articles of
Association requires that the Directors, Supervisors, managers and other
senior management shall during their terms of office make regular reports
to the Company on the Company’s Shares they held, and shall not transfer
the Company’s Shares they held during their terms of office and within

six months after their resignation.
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After making specific enquiries to all
directors, whether the directors of the listed
issuer have or have not complied with the
Model Code for securities transactions by
the relevant directors or their own code of

actions

A RS (BREESFRD el BRAEY 1
> RZRRA BB ST AR L R
BT BRI AR AT (i R B

In the event of non-compliance with the
Model Code, explanation should be made
for the non-compliance, elaborating any
remedial steps to be taken by the listed

issuer in this respect

Structure of Corporate Governance AN AR BLAE

Corporate governance report (Continued)

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period
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v A BRI 6,850 BRI 959 lit (RERSSAAGEH [H% - BENERE
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After making specific enquiries to all Directors, there were only 1 Director
and 1 Supervisor holding 6,850 and 959 A Shares of the Company
respectively (Please see the section “Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for details), and there have been no
transactions during the reporting period. No other Directors, Supervisors
and senior management of the Company has purchased the Company’s
shares and debentures during the reporting period. Accordingly, all the
Directors have complied with the Model Code during the reporting

period.

B R ARy (BT FraTRiEn i

During the reporting period, there was no non-compliance with the

Model Code.
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() RFEFRBE 50 5. Corporate governance report (Continued)
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Requirements of the

Corporate Governance Report

- EHE
III.  The Board
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Composition (by category of Directors) of
the board of directors of listed issuer,
including the names of the chairman,
executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive

directors

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

B AR 2 A A R

Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period

ERGHIAMAAN GREFREA T L SAUTES > Ml
PR Mot~ SR - RO - SRR TE
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The Board comprises nine members, including Ms. Ma Baiyu
(Chairman) and 5 executive Directors, namely Mr. Gu Qifeng, Ms. Fu
Yana, Mr. An Pindong, Mr. Wang Zhanying, Mr. Tan Zhaofu and 3
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Xie Rong, Mr. Di Xiaofeng,
Mr. Ko Poming. The term of appointment of Mr. Gao Zongze and Mr.
Wang Xiangfei, who are former independent non-executive Directors,
ended on 15th April 2008. As nominated at the 16th meeting of the 4th
Board of the Company and passed by way of election at the general
meeting held on 15th April 2008, Mr. Xie Rong and Mr. Di Xiao Feng
were appointed as independent non-executive Directors of the 4th Board
of the Company. All members of the Board have professional and
governance experience. For details of the Board members, please see
“Major working experience of Directors, Supervisors and senior

management in the recent five years” above in this annual report.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R



(f) e EFHRBE 9 5.

2~

AFFHB A FNNE (H) 2.

RRFIRRH TR

Requirements of the

Corporate Governance Report
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Number of board meetings held during the
financial year
RAYE A E RN ER G ORI TER
List of directors with their attendance rates

of the board meetings

PR T - LR R R
WIS R E S TP
P & R AR

How the board of directors operate,
including a statement of which type of
decisions are to be taken by the board of
directors, and which type of decisions are

to be delegated to the management

JEGESE CEHARD 5 3.100) %(2)

Compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules

Structure of Corporate Governance AN AR BLAE

Corporate governance report (Continued)

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

B AR 2 A A R

Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period

BEHIRAL AT ERG IR RELER R E S e
Wb EEE HE LI -

The Company held 11 Board meetings during the reporting period.
Details of the resolutions and attendance of Directors are set out in the

“Review of Board Activities” under the “Directors’ Report”.

(5wl FERE) bt 2 o A B AR VAR SR i > (S
HHA) -~ CHRACERIERLI) 7 SIS v Bl SR P
AR IR AT > DUREE R ME S G - R A B HE
MRFBIE Bk -

There are clear demarcation on the duties of the Board and the
management in the Articles of Association. The Rules of the Procedures
of the Board Meetings and the Rules of the Procedures of the General
Manager’s meeting have made specific requirements on the decision
making procedure and basis of decisions for the Board and the
management, so as to ensure the decisions of the Directors, the Board,

the senior management and the management to be scientific and legal.

AR ATE GRS ERR 2 (R WK
SHAB AT E RIS UL AR R - B
EHARIES F TIFME

The qualifications and professional experiences of the three independent
non-executive Directors have fully complied with the requirements under
the Listing Rules. For details of the three independent non-executive
Directors, please see “Major working experience of Directors, Supervisors
and senior management in the recent five years” above in this annual

report.
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Requirements of the

Corporate Governance Report
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Where the independent non-executive
directors fail to comply with any or more
of the guidelines for assessment of
independence under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, explanation should be made
on how the listed issuers still recognize the
independence of the independent non-

executive directors

AEHFGWEA LM (R LR AT B
R W) AR > BRI ¥
B RESIULER MBRBE > A
WEH BRI -

Relationship, including financial, business,

family or other material/relevant

Corporate governance report (Continued)

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

B AR 2 A A R

Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period

ALFEE GO AR FRTEE T E B g
RO 2 A 25 5 B TN 3.13 kB S1UCA R LA O Y
SR eRE AT ER AR AL

The Board has received annual confirmation of independence in 2008
from each of the independent non-executive Directors, and confirmed
that they complied with the relevant independence requirements as set
out under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. The
Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are

independent parties.

ANFER G XM 2 WAL R 368 RE SR /A
BRHIBIR -

There was no relationship including financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship between the members of the Board of the

relationship between the members of the  Company.
board of directors (in particular between
the chairman and the chief executive
officer)
TR S BRI AT R A

TRT R
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2~ AFEFRBEEANS () 2. Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Requirements of the Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Report Report during the reporting period

P TR TR
IV, The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

L W RATBARARR S AT LEEAAAERGER  BRELEEREN - ALNFAEHR
MR E R R ALF R EE RIS > EHEH
ff -

Identity of the chairman and the chief ~ Ms. Ma Baiyu is the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Gu Qifeng is the
executive officer general manager of the Company. The Chairman is elected by over half
of all the Directors, while the general manager is nominated by the

Chairman, and appointed by the Board.

2 ERRATBARMACREAHULIEE SR TRAALHEN EERERS VIR EReTHEARAE I
] — At AT RGO ERGIRMESE AL R TBREE AL RIS 53
AEIEE) - SREE - DIRAGTE MALRERGHRE -

Whether the roles of the chairman and the ~ The main duties of the Chairman of the Board and the general manager

chief executive officer are segregated and  of the Company is clearly separated. The chairman of the Board is
are not exercised by the same individual responsible for holding and presiding the Board meetings, and the
effective operation of the Board, while the chief executive officer of the
Company is responsible for various operation activities, development
strategies, objectives and plan for the Company, and is accountable to

the Board.
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Requirements of the

Corporate Governance Report
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Terms of independent non-executive Directors

UNFITFEBUE « B AT E =4 > ]
DAL > (FAEAT IR A8 6 4F - T oF
W E SR F M T AR 200844 A
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Remuneration of Directors

1> BMZES () MM ERIEE > SR
AL B Y J5 A

The role and function of the
Remuneration Committee (if any), or
reasons for not setting up a Remuneration

Committee

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

B AR 2 A A R

Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period

The Articles of Association requires that the terms of independent non-
executive Directors shall be for three years, and can be available for re-
election for a period of not exceeding six years. Mr. Gao Zongze and
Mr. Wang Xiangfei had served as independent non-executive Directors
for 6 years as at 15 April 2008. As nominated at the 16th meeting of the
4th Board and passed by way of election at the general meeting held on
15th April 2008, Mr. Xie Rong and Mr. Di Xiao Feng were appointed
as independent non-executive Directors at the 4th Board of the Company

until the end of the 4th Board.

ARFIROLTHMEEVZR G RERRERMER G EdE SR
BEBA BB R o SCETRERE T2 LM R R e T
EARAD > ZCTAEAD AR = i 2 — + IR i -

The Company has established a Remuneration and Assessment
Committee, its primary duties is to propose remuneration plan of
Directors and senior management of the Company to the Board. For its
written terms of working stage, please refer to the “Details for the works
of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee” which was discussed

and approved at the 25th Meeting of the Third Board.
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Composition of the Remuneration
Committee (if any), including the names
of the members,in particular, the
Chairman of the Remuneration

Committee

FMEE N ERE (AR HME
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The number of meetings held by the
Remuneration Committee or the board of
directors (if the Remuneration Committee
has not been set up) during the year to
discuss the remuneration and related
matters, and the record of individual

attendance of members)

Structure of Corporate Governance AN AR BLAE

Corporate governance report (Continued)

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period

IR o R N W B = A R T E S Rl
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During the reporting period, the original Remuneration and Assessment
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, being
Mr. Ko Poming, Mr. Wang Xiangfei, Mr. Gao Zongze, and Mr. Ko
Poming is the chairman of the Remuneration and Assessment
Committee. Mr. Gao Zongze and Mr. Wang Xiangfei had served as
independent non-executive Directors for 6 years as at 15 April 2008. As
nominated at the 16th meeting of the 4th Board of the Company and
passed by way of election at the general meeting held on 15th April
2008, Mr. Xie Rong and Mr. Di Xiao Feng were appointed as
independent non-executive Directors and members of the Remuneration
and Assessment Committee (with Mr. Di Xiao Feng as the Chairman)

at the 4th Board of the Company.

B MR BTIICHM S PR R G &k > FRER TR RR
B BHMAR - OISR AE Lo R a5 ; i%ﬁ
BSEE  t AAEAMIRE R ek > R E B R TR

The Remuneration and Assessment Committee held two meeting during
the reporting period to consider and approve the resolution related to
the adjustment of remuneration of senior management and the resolution
related to confirming the engagement of new Company Secretary and
Qualified Accountant in Hong Kong. The member, Mr. Xie Rong was
unable to attend the second meeting due to a business trip and all other

members were present.
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Corporate Governance Report
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A summary of the work of the
Remuneration Committee or the board of
directors (if the Remuneration Committee
has not been set up) during the year,
including determining the policy for the
remuneration of executive directors,
assessing performance of executive
directors and approving the terms of

executive Directors’ service contracts

Corporate governance report (Continued)

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

B AR 2 A A R

Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period
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During the reporting period, the Company held two Remuneration and
Assessment Committee meetings to consider and pass the resolution
related to the adjustment of remuneration of senior management and
the resolution related to confirming the engagement of new Company
Secretary and Qualified Accountant in Hong Kong. The Articles of
Association requires that the Company should enter into written contracts
with the Directors and Supervisors in respect of the remuneration issues,

subject to approval by the general meeting,
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Nomination of Directors (Nomination Committee)
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The nomination procedure and the pro-
cess and criteria adopted by the board of
directors to select and recommend candi-
dates for directorship during the year
Summary of the works of the board of
directors during the year, including deter-
mining of the policy for the nomination of
directors

The number of board meetings held dur-
ing the year, and the list of attendance
record of individual directors in such meet-

ings

Structure of Corporate Governance AN AR BLAE

Corporate governance report (Continued)

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period
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During the reporting period, director was appointed or removed. In
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the
requirements of the SSE and the Stock Exchange, the Board of the
Company set up the Nomination Committee and formulated the
“Detailed Working Rules of the Nomination Committee”, which was
considered and approved at the general meeting held on 27th December
2007. Mr. Gao Zongze and Mr. Wang Xiangfei had served as independent
non-executive Directors for 6 years as at 15 April 2008. As nominated
by the Nomination Committee of the Board of the Company at its first
meeting in 2008 and approved by the 16th meeting of the Fourth Board,
Mr. Xie Rong and Mr. Di Xiao Feng were elected independent non-
executive Directors of the Fourth Board of the Company at the general

meeting held on 15 April 2008.
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Requirements of the

Corporate Governance Report
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Remuneration of Auditors
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Regarding analysis of the remuneration received
by the auditors in respect of the provision of
auditing and non-auditing services to the listing
issuers, which shall include details of the nature
of each material non-auditing service and the

expenses paid

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period
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One of the important duties of the Audit Committee of the Board is to
provide proposal in respect of the appointment, reappointment and
removal of external auditors and to approve remuneration and
employment terms of the auditor. During the reporting period, the Audit
Committee proposed to re-elect PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
Company’s external auditors and was approved at the general meeting.
The appointment agreement sets out the details of the audit content
and remuneration of PricewaterhouseCoopers. The appoinment
agreement was implemented strictly during the reporting period. During
the reporting period, the Auditors have not provided non-auditing

services to the Company.
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Audit Committee
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The role, functions and composition of the
Audit Committee, including names of the
members, in particular, the chairman of
the committee

Number of meetings held by the Audit
Committee during the year, and the record
of individual attendance of members
Report of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year in discharging
its responsibilities of reviewing quarterly
(if relevant), half yearly and annual results,
system of internal control and its other

duties set out in the Code

Structure of Corporate Governance AN AR BLAE

Corporate governance report (Continued)

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period
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SCE Bk o A T TR B R A 2008 4F A B R < B
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include making proposal for
the appointment of external auditors, reviewing of annual, interim and
quarterly financial statements. For details of its written terms of working
scope, please see the “Articles of the Works of the Audit Committee”. In
order to upgrade the Company’s internal control system, the Company
has set up an “Internal Audit System”, which is in line with the works of
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee comprises independent non-
executive Directors, with Mr. Ko Poming, the independent non-executive
Director, as the chairman. During the reporting period, the Audit
Committee convened three meetings for review of the financial statements
for 2007, consideration of the material financial matters of 2007 and the
audit report of the financial statements for 2007 prepared by the auditors
and making conclusion for the work of auditors in 2007. The Audit
Committee convened two meetings for reviewing the interim financial
statements for 2008, where the material financial matters and the interim
financial statements for 2008 were reviewed. All members of the Audit
Committee have attended the above meetings except for Mr. Xie Rong,
who has not attended the meetings for reviewing the interim financial

statements for 2008 due to job engagement.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




AR HLEERE  Structure of Corporate Governance

() RFEFRBE 50 5. Corporate governance report (Continued)
2~ REERBETARNE () 2.

RRFRRH TR

Requirements of the

Corporate Governance Report

4 N

RBERESF () CETARAND 56 3.21 kA0
WFI o DARARRE LTS ARRAERT
RBOLEH % B & R MR RS
B o (g A RATE ST (LD
F3.200% > A LT ORBEEST AR
HI > BIRERCER. CETiTREAL)

Non-compliance (if any) with Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules, and explain the
remedial steps adopted by the listed issuer
for not establishing an audit committee in
compliance with the relevant requirements.
(The listed issuer has the duty to comply
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. If the
listed issuer does not comply with the

relevant rules, the Listing Rules were

breached).

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period
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There was no non-compliance of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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The directors shall confirm their
responsibility to prepare the accounts, and
the auditors shall issue a statement

regarding its reporting responsibility
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Report should be made in the event of
material uncertainties or situations which
may seriously affect the ability of the listed

issuer as a going concern
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Whether the board of directors has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the listed issuer and its

subsidiaries
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Corporate governance report (Continued)

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period
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The Directors shall be responsible to supervise the preparation of accounts
for each financial period, so that the accounts can truly and fairly reflect
the business situation and results of the Company during the period.
When preparing the accounts for the year ended 31st December, 2008,
the Directors have selected the suitable accounting policies, and have
implemented and made prudent and reasonable judgments and
estimations, and prepared the accounts on the basis of continuous

operations.
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The Directors consider that there was no occurrence of material
uncertainties or situations which may affect the ability of the Company

as a going concern during the reporting period.
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For details, please see (5) below regarding establishment and the

effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company.
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() RFEFRBE 50 5. Corporate governance report (Continued)
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Requirements of the

Corporate Governance Report
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The Audit Committee has explained its
opinions on the selection, appointment,
removal or termination of external
auditors, and reasons for disagreement of

the board of directors.

Details of Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

B AR 2 A A R

Contents of the Company’s Corporate Governance

Report during the reporting period
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PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public Accountants
Limited Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers have been the
Company’s domestic and overseas auditors respectively. In view of their
continued understanding to the Company and their high professional
level, the Audit Committee has proposed to re-appoint the above audit
firms to provide audit services to the Company in 2009, and such
proposal has been considered and passed at the 28th Meeting of the
Fourth Board.
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Structure of Corporate Governance AN AR BLAE

Establishment and the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Company

During the reporting period, pursuant to the PRC Company Laws, Securities Law
and the Code, the Company made amendments to the “Articles of Association”,
“Rules of the Procedures of the Board Meetings, “Rules of the Procedures of
Shareholders” General Meetings” and “Rules of the Procedures of the Supervisory
Committee Meetings” , which were strictly implemented. It continued to implement
the “Detailed Implementation Rules of the Audit Committee”, “Detailed
Implementation Rules of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee”, “Detailed
Working Rules of the Nomination Committee” and “Detailed Working Rules of
the Strategic Planning Committee”. The implementation of the above systems in
relation to corporate governance has enhanced the improvement and regulated

operation of the Company’s governance by legal persons.

During the reporting period, the Company has engaged professional management
consultancy companies in 2007 to conduct effective examinations on the Company’s
internal control system in respect of the control at company level and business
flow level, which facilitated the improvement of the different systems and business

flow of the Company.

As at the end of the reporting period, a reasonable system of internal control has
been established and completed for all major events of the Company, including
more than 60 management systems that cover sales and receipt of payment,
production and purchase, management of fixed assets, management of construction
works, research and development of technology, management of monetary funds,
guarantees and financing, management of subsidiaries, comprehensive budgeting,
financial reports and information disclosure, connected transactions, market and
public relations, personnel management, administrative management and
information technology management, etc., which have been fully implemented
without major setbacks, and conforming with the actual needs of the present
production and operation. Risks can be reasonably prevented and controlled and
possible mistakes made by the Company during its operation can be prevented,
discovered and rectified in a timely manner, ensuring the security and completeness
of the assets of the Company and the truthfulness, accuracy and timeliness of

accounting records and accounting information.
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Establishment and the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Company (Continued)

The audit department of the Company is responsible for supervising and examining
the establishment, improvement and implementation of the internal control system
of the Company, and realizing the effective execution of the internal control system
and a continued increase in the risk management standard by conducting special

audits on the business activities of the Company on a regular or irregular basis.

The Company is under a stage of development, and the expansion in scale of
operation presents higher demands of internal control of the Company. The
Company will continue to improve its system of internal control, strengthen its
awareness of regulated operation and reinforce the internal supervision mechanism

to promote the healthy, stable and rapid development of the Company.

Disclosure by the Company of the Board’s opinion on the self-

assessment report of the internal control of the Company and the

opinion of the auditors

1. For the full content of the self-assessment of the Board on the Company’s
internal control, please refer to the Company’s overseas regulatory
announcement dated 28 April 2009 in relation to “Self-assessment Report

of the Intemal Control 2008”.

a.  The Company has established a system of internal control.

b.  The company has established an inspection and supervision unit over the

system of internal control, called Audit Department.

c.  The Company’s inspection and supervision unit over the system of internal
control submits to the Board an inspection and supervision report on the

system of internal control on a regular basis.

2. The auditors have not issued their audit opinions on the system of internal

control of the Company.
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Structure of Corporate Governance AN AR BLAE

Appraisal and motivation mechanism for senior management

Appraisal and motivation mechanism :

The Company has entered into a target responsibility manual with the senior
management based on the Company objectives, and an assessment shall be made
by the Performance Assessment Committee of the Company every year end on the
completion of their annual targets to decide the award and punishment and the

amounts based on the completion of the target.

During the accounting period, the contributions made to the pension scheme of

the highest paid individuals by the Company are as follows:

Bpi : ARWT
Unit:RMB
Bk a

Contribution to
pension scheme

(ARHE)
(RMB)

16,320
16,320
16,320
16,320
16,320

Notes:

(1) Other Directors of the Company have not received any pension contributions from

the Company;

) The basic remuneration for the above five persons is less than HK$1 million. For
details, please refer to the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and senior

management”.

The company has disclosed the Corporate Social Responsibility
Report. For details, please refer to the Company’s overseas regulatory
announcement dated 28 April 2009 in relation to “Report on Social
Responsibility 2008”.
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Directors’ Report  #JF& #t i%

Review of Operations of the Company during the reporting period

An overview of the overall operations of the Company during the reporting

period

The year 2008 was a crucial year for the implementation of the 5-year
development plan by the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). It
was also the initial year for the full implementation of group management.
During the year, the Group comprehensively strengthened its core
competitiveness on the basis of improving sewage water treatment service
system, enhancing technological research and development level as well as
reinforcing group management according to the Group’s strategies, annual
development strategies and development plans. Under the circumstances of
international financial crisis and the severe domestic economic situation,
the environmental regulation as well as the increase of requirements of
indicators for energy saving and emission reduction, various work of the
Group achieved certain results through the joint efforts of each unit of the
Group and generally fulfilling its overall targets. Meanwhile, the Group
adjusted its development strategies timely by following its policy oriented
approach, focusing industry environment and changes as well as grasping
the development trend of the water market and analysing its own ability
and advantage. It adjusted its development strategies to rapid growth based
on enhancement of ability and value creation, resulting a more practical

and stable development direction in the future.
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In 2008, the Group recorded income from principal operations of
RMB1,135.10 million, increased by 15.95% over 2007, and recorded net
profit of RMB231.06 million (excluding profit and loss of minority
shareholders), increased by 10.38% over 2007. The increase in income was
due to the fact that Xian Capital Water Company Limited and Wendeng
Capital Water Company Limited, which was invested by the Company,
were put into operation and therefore the processing volume of water and
income increased as compared to 2007. Moreover, the guaranteed water
processing volume in the agreements of the sewage water treatment plants
and drinking water treatment plants of our subsidiaries, which are in normal
operation, increased to a certain degree which resulted in an increase in
income. The increase in net profit was due to the increase in income on one
hand, and the implementation of the new income tax laws in 2008 which
imposes 25% income tax on the other hand. The income tax paid decreased
by 28% as compared to 2007. However, since there was a greater increase in
the finance charge of the Group during the reporting period, it offset the

growth in net profit.

Analysis of the Company’s principal businesses and its operating conditions

The principal businesses of the Company are the construction, design,
management, operation, technological consultation and auxiliary services
of sewage water treatment plant and their related infrastructural facilities;
the construction, design, toll collection, repair and maintenance,
management, technological consultant of toll roads and auxiliary services
in relation to the operation of the South-eastern Half Ring Road of the
Middle Ring of Tianjin, Tianjin City Indebted Road Construction for
Vehicle-passage Toll Collection Office and their related auxiliary facilities,
and the development and operation of environmental protection technology

and products.
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(1) Description of the principal businesses of the Company

Sewage water processing business

During the reporting period, the sewage water processing
plants both owned or managed by the Group had a processing
capacity of 3.415 million cubic metres per day. The plants
processed a total of 766.872 million cubic metres of sewage
water during the reporting period and recorded an income of

RMB975.995 million.

The Group processed 364.388 million cubic metres of sewage
water for the whole year in the Tianjin region pursuant to the
“Sewage Water Processing Agreement” and “Sewage Water
Processing Interim Service Agreement” and recorded an
income of RMB703.2682 million, with a year-on-year growth
of 7.13%. The increase in the income of sewage water
treatment service in Tianjin region was due to the fact that
there was a newly added connecting system in 2008 which
increased the amount of sewage water entering into the sewage

water treatment plants.
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During the reporting period, the sewage water processing
business of the Company’s subsidiaries provided sewage water
processing services pursuant to the sewage water processing
licence agreements and sewage water processing service
agreements entered into between the local governments and
the Company. The nine sewage water treatment plants, namely
Guiyang Xiaohe Sewage Water Treatment Plant, Qujing
Lianjiangkou Sewage Water Treatment Plant, Fuyang No.1
Sewage Water Treatment Plant, Baoying Xianhe Sewage Water
Treatment Plant, Honghu Sewage Water Treatment Plant.
Hangzhou Qige Sewage Water Treatment Plant, Wengdeng
Sewage Water Treatment Plant, Xian Sewage Water Treatment
Plant and Purification Center, in aggregate processed sewage
water of 323.5565 million cubic metres and received an
income of RMB272.7270 million from processing sewage
water, an increase of 40.15% and 38.70% over the same period
last year respectively. The increase in water processing volume
mainly came from the company in Xian and the company in
Wengdeng; the company in Xian commenced commercial
operation in January 2008 while the company in Wengdeng
commenced commercial operation in May 2008. During the
reporting period, the Company completed investment of
RMB30.77 million in the construction of Chibi Sewage Water
Treatment Plant. As at the end of 2008, the investment plans

of that project has basically been completed.
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During the reporting period, the Group proactively carried
out operational management of its existing projects as well as
actively explored markets. Entrusted projects in Guizhou
Tongren Sewage Water Treatment Plant, Baiyun Sewage Water
Treatment Plant and Anhui Hanshan County Sewage Water
Treatment Plant were newly added, and Huhehaote
Gongzhufu Sewage Water Treatment Plant and Leqing Sewage
Water Treatment Plant were being commissioned. During the
reporting period, the Group was entrusted to manage
operating capacity of 475,000 cubic metres per day, and
process sewage water of 78.2565 million cubic metres. Income

from entrusted operation services was RMB19.9538 million.

During the reporting period, Anguo Capital Water Company
Limited was incorporated which has obrtained a licence to
produce supply and sell of drinking water in Anguo as well as
Anguo sewage water treatment project. The capacity was
70,000 cubic meters (with supply of drinking water of 40,000
cubic meters per day and process sewage water of 30,000 cubic
meters per day).During the reporting period, Wuhan Tian
Chuang Environmental Protection Company Limited was also
incorporated and obtained a BOT project of Xianning Sewage
Water Treatment Plant with capacity of 60,000 cubic meters

per day through negotiation.
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Recycled water business

During the reporting period, recycled water business recorded water
sales of 3.5264 million cubic metres and recorded income from
recycled water sales of RMB4.41 million, representing a growth of

7.51% and 3.27% respectively over the same period last year.

During the reporting period, the investment of RMB74.25million
to the newly built Beicang Recycled Water Plant and Dongjiao
Recycled Water Plant was completed, Xianyanglu Recycled Water

Plant was in trial operation stage.

Tap water business

During the reporting period, the tap water uploading volume of the
tap water business was 36.4889 million cubic metres, representing a
slight growth compared with the same period last year, and recorded

income from the tap water business of RMB43.675 million.
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Operations of toll collection business

During the reporting period, the Group recorded an operating profit
of RMB58.722 million from the toll collection business, a slight
increase from operating profit of RMB58.474 million in 2007. Since
the change of toll collection arrangement to subcontracting toll
collection on 1 July 2003, income has become stable and there have
been no substantial changes. Pursuant to the “Subcontracting Toll
Collection Agreement” entered into between the Group and Tianjin
City Indebted Road Construction for Vehicle-passage Toll Collection
Office, the toll collection office would provide toll collection service
to the Company and was responsible for the operation, management,

repair and maintenance of toll stations.
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Q)  TEEBMIERIE (2)  Principal businesses by industry
Hifi : o0
TRE : AR
Unit: ‘000
Currency: RMB
BRBO BEWA
AR I LAER M
Increase/ Increase/  HHEAWHEIL
decrease in decrease  LARHI
BRAR operating incostof  Increase/decrease
BERA BEBA Profit income operations  in profit margin
ST Operating Cost of margin from compared compared  from operations
By industry or by product income operations operations to last year to last year  compared to last year
(%) (%) (%) (%)
i3
Industry
V5K HE 975,995 419,192 57.04 14.41 2018 -2.07
Sewage water processing
Wi B R 67,017 10,826 83.85 -0.99 8.65 -1.43
Toll collection
FIACK K s 43,675 32,011 2671 56.66 7045 -5.93
Tap water supply
HOKE B el KSR 48,414 35,512 26.65 68.86 7758 3.6
Wiater recycling pipe connection
and water supply
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Region

Tianjin
Guizhou
Quiing
Fuyang
Baoying
Hangzhou
Honghu
Wengdeng
Xian
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(3)  Principal businesses by region

ELON

Operating income

839,089
33,268
59,669
28,842
10,524

119,595

7,576
15,584
42,276
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Description of material change in asset composition and principal financial

data during the reporting period as compared with the corresponding period

of last year

SRR A N R 233,485 T
JC o BRI iR BT R

G
LLIE
Bk Amount
Amount at the W BB
FHAH at the end beginning Increase/ Percentage
Items of the period  of the period Decrease change
(%)
JEOR K 798,869 442,944 355,925 80.35
Accounts receivables
AR 81,987 57,964 24,023 41.44
Prepayments
FETE 207,122 116,187 90,935 78.27
Construction in progress
TR A 3 B O 4 I J 3 A PR 4 )

TRT R

As at 31 December 2008, the total assets of the Group amounted to
RMB7,560,263 thousand, an increase of 27.19% or RMB1,616,197
thousand over the end of 2007; the total liabilities amounted to
RMB4,334,065 thousand; total shareholders equity was RMB3,226,198
thousand. A net profit of RMB233,485 thousand was recorded in 2008.

The following is an analysis of items with more significant changes:

M : i
L RN
Unit: ‘000
Currency: RMB

LB B

Details of changes
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During the reporting period, the income of
the Company experienced stable growth but
payment return was slow. After the reporting
period, payment of RMB350 million was
received, detail of which was set out in note
7(2) to the financial report. Subsidiaries in
Wengdeng and Xian commenced operation
during the period and created some new
accounts receiviables at the end of the period,
resulting a greater increase in accounts
receivables.

AR A AR U TR
H o wo#in T TRE T -
During the reporting period, a new Hangu
special project was added by the Company,
resulting in an increase in the prepayments for
construction expenses.

Wb IR > AR FLR ~ SRR A KR
SV F A R > A A TR R
(PN UE DI

During the reporting period, the Company’s,
Bei Chen and Dong Jiao Recycled Water Plants
projects were fully commenced construction
and resulted in a significant increase in the
balance of construction-in-progress.



BH 4

Items

T

Intangible assets

o A £

TR

Advanced payments

R

Long-term borrowings

LIRS

A% Amount
Amount at the B BRI B
at the end beginning Increase/ Percentage
of the period  of the period Decrease change
(%)
2,277,399 1,577,870 699,529 44.33
821,890 155,000 666,890 430.25
228,716 171,341 57,375 33.49
2,318,160 1,646,250 671,910 40.81
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SEBHm

Details of changes

FO TS S5 21 B S
AU (ol B R ) S5 2 B
IR+ 2008 5 » ASEFIHRF A 3
RT3 - S R
£ 7B -

R R S R RE SR 25T - A
SR M By KRB - BAROK - BRI EE
VAT B S E A RE 0 B T o ARAR IR
SEIIER - BEAACE B0 S 15 K 3
B ACOK B R U REASEHE -
%Hﬂ)ﬁﬂiﬂ@[ﬂi%é%ﬁ%hﬁ%%%é&

H R W R BCE Y% - 3
AT H A R AHB I -

Since the operating business satisfied the
relevant provisions in the PRC Corporate
Accounting Standards (the “PRC CAS”)
Interpretation No. 2, the Group adopted the
PRC CAS Interpretation No. 2 in 2008 and
data of prior periods were adjusted
retrospectively.

Prior to the adoption of the PRC CAS
Interpretation No. 2, the relevant assets relating
to sewage water treatment, tap water and road
toll stations were recognised as fixed assets.
According to the requirements of
Interpretation No.2 and given franchise
licences had been obtained for the foreign
sewage water treatment plants outside Tianjin
and tap water facilities of the Group, their fixed
assets were reclassified as intangible assets.

New additions were relevant assets of the
project companies newly invested in Xian and
Wendeng during the reporting period.

et AT o AR FE 0 £ LA
REHEEAR

During the reporting period, the Company
increased short-term borrowings to
supplement the shortage of cash flow.

FEB AN A AU TR E oA
T ) KA KA R R TR T
FEFEF

Mainly advanced payments for the Company’s
Hangu special project and advanced construction
payments received by the subsidiary of Tianjin
Wiater Recycling Company Limited.

WA AR FINRSNE TS5 53 )
JE o SRR -

During the reporting period, the Company
increased its development strength in overseas
markets outside Tianjin, resulting a substantial
increase in borrowings.

~
~
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W 34 W

YiHAW Increase/ Percentage
Items 2008 2007 Decrease change

(%)
N 1,159,307 1,002,042 157,265 15.69

Operating income

BERA 510,075 406,901 103,174 25.36
Operating costs

g 214,489 135,463 79,206 58.34

Finance costs

He& s 6,129 2,693 3,436 127.59

Investment gains

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
TRT R

LB

Details of changes

Stk B 7] 15 KR PR R AU R
B WOKTRZER > A PR 5 b
N AR BE DR K B AR 5 i
BN AT R BRI ARUK # > Bok
{8 B985 BAMRIPY %N R~ SOR AR
TE A AN o g A b 4R
[Fl 9 B s = -

During the reporting period, the Company’s
Sewage Water Treatment Plants connected to
new water receiving system and water volume
received increased, resulting in an increase in
the income. During the year, the guaranteed
water volume of Hangzhou Company
increased as compared with the previous year.
Qujing Company added taking up water
charge in the price of tap water, resulting an
increase in tap water price. Moreover, during
the period, Xian Company and Wengdeng
Company commenced operation and
generated income, resulting a growth in
operating income as compared with the same
period last year.

AR TR AT 4008 > LA
IGATI B o BEAh > A5 K E) )1 7
BAH/MERA TR - AR L
AR -

During the reporting period, additional
depreciation charge of road of RMB 4 million
was provided as compared to nil as compared
to the same period of last year. In addition,
thermal power charges of sewage water
treatment plants and small to medium repairs
for the period also increased, resulting in an
increase in costs year-on-year.

et R A i O KRR R > R
FEBERIEMES -

Both long-term and short-term borrowings
increased substantially during the reporting
period, resulting a greater increase in interest
expenses.

AN T AR REASERR (F)
A PR 7 35 O o AR A R )
ABRI BB > UEA ARSI
AR AETT AT e B A PR 72
LA o

This represents the investment gains accounted
for by our subsidiary, Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection (Hong Kong)
Limited, in respect of its equity interests in
Tianjin International Machinery Co., Ltd and
the bonus the Compant received from Tianjin
Beifang Rencaigang Company Limited, a
company which the Company invested.



et AR B R R DL - R 4.
P R BRI

FHH A5

Items 2008 2007
BB EER 304,600 255914
BB TR A

Net cash flow from
operating activities

PEETE B 5 A 1 -841,227 -285,475
BLA i

Net cash flow from

investment activities

HEIEEIE 1,098,703 -364,212
bk AT REE

Net cash flow from

financing activities

B NB &% 562,076 -393,773
A

Net increase in cash

and cash equivalent
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Description of the cash flow of the Group during the reporting period and
the explanation of substantial changes as compared with the corresponding

period of last year:

Wi : T8
L RPN
Unit: ‘000
Currency: RMB
W 3 W
Increase/ Percentage  ZEHHWI
Decrease change  Details of changes
(%)
48,686 19.02  AMNRAFMCAR ISR - fRERUE B

BAEWMAIGR - 0 2 AT AR
TE R I R R -

The income of overseas companies increased
as compared to the previous year, which
resulted in the increase in cash inflow from
operating activities and sufficiently
compensated the corresponding expenses and
results in the net increase in cash flow.

-555,752 194,68 WG - AN EIESMER - W H

35 BRSO Y B i ) K
o WAP o AUIR BB A K RO
T RO A R T T Y - T
it B IR K -
During the reporting period, the increase in
the Company’s external investments and
acquisitions resulted in a significant increase
in cash outflow from investing activities.
Further, the full commencement of the
construction of Beicang and Dongjiao
Recycled Water Plants also increased outflow
of this item, which resulted a relative great
increase in outflow amount.

1,462,915 -401.67 MR IR A LB ~ WA
SEH IS > % SRR -
AR IR T R - R
T ND
During the reporting period, the increase in
the Company’s external investments and
acquisitions resulted in an increase in the
demand for funds. Accordingly, the fund
raising amount was increased during the
reporting period which resulted in a larger
increase in such net cash flow.

955,849 24274 DHSRISEHIOBLG BT > 55l
A B B AR KRR -
P U B 4 AR - 4 7] S U
/U
The cash flow position of the three main
businesses above, especially the significant
increase of cash inflow from financing activities
during the period, has resulted in a more
significant increase in net increase in cash
during this period as compared to the previous
period.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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controlling interests and has invested

EAK
Kind of
legal entity

AT

Limited
Company

HIRAH
Limited
Company

5. EBEBATE RSB AEEET 5.
W E S
(1) EEEERAARERILL (1)
B3 controlling interests
ER
e 2 VENE A
Al 4k Principal place  F:RE g I Registered
Company names of business Major products or services capital
Rtk aRAR  KE KRR » 85 5 oK B 100,000
Tianjin Water Recyling ~ Tianjin HEE s HOKE R ~ g TR
Company Limited T
Production and sales of recycled water,
development and construction of facilities
for recycled water; manufacture, installation,
commissioning and operation of equipment
for recycled water
BMASOKBARA R BB B K IR F AR B R 100,000
Guizhou Capital water ~ Guiyang, ARG ~ 1 B A i S SR Y B
Company Limited Guizhou AR A B BROGLT A PR
HefE 5 KRB - B TSR
IH H F s
Development, construction, operation
and management of urban sewage
water treatment plants, drinking water
treatment plants and their facilities and
solid waste treatment facilities;
research, development and marketing of
environmental conservation technology;
consultancy services of water treatment facilities
and environmental conservation project
R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R

DAl e
el
Percentage
of interest

98%

95%

Operations and results of the major companies in which the Company has

Operations and results of the companies in which the Company has

Wi s T8

TRE : AR

Unit: ‘000

Currency: RMB

BB

Scale AW
of assets Net profit
429,981 3,718
176,364 5,533
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ER oA
e 2] (1300 I V] A YRR
VATEA Principal place  FZRE g I Registered Kindof  Percentage Scale TR
Company names of business Major products or services capital  legal entity  of interest of assets Net profit
AREERISOKBEATRA ) WAJLREE TS K BRI AR RS 35,000  HIRAF 95% 112,135 1,993
Chibi Capital Water ~ Chibi, Hubei  #%ih ~ &8 S0 32 ~ oK [nl F it Limited
Company Limited O PHEE - Ak - A - L o BRIV Company

BRI o /K% R0 ~ B AR
WECTAR ~ A LA - 2B TR

YA H R B

Development, construction, operation and
management of urban sewage processing
plant, drinking water treatment plants and
the facilities, solid waste processing and
waste water recycling facilities; research and
development and marketing of environmental
technology, consultation services related to
projects such as water processing facilities,
environmental projects, urban projects,
highway projects and transportation projects.

KEAEEM PN RAERR - B AR, 37,500  ARAFE  70.67% 22,309 (388)
HIRAF Tianjin TR R B R Limited

Tianjin Capital PEK B R il 3 A 4 Company
New Materials Manufacture and sales of construction
Company Limited materials, new compound material products

and polymer material products; technical
consultation on new piping materials.

HREAISEKH TRp WS KRR A Ak S E
HIREEAT Yangzhou, RO I O B R Y A
Baoying Capital Jiangsu AR RUE B BRI R
Water Company TR 5 /KRR ~ JREE LFR -
Limited BLAR ~ N TR~ 2B TR
T H it M
Development, construction, operation 38,000 AFRAT 70% 95,551 (80)
and management of urban sewage Limited
processing plant and drinking water plant Company

and accessory facilities, solid waste

processing facilities; research and
development and marketing of environmental
technology, consultation services related to
projects such as water processing facilities,
environmental projects, urban projects,
highway projects and transportation projects.

TR B KR WL LTS K R ELROR B AR RO il e 20,000 A MRAT 90.1% 53,855 (198)

HIRAF Honghu, MG ] T B AR 1 P Limited
Honghu Capital Hubei HE KR B RO I8 Company

Water Company AR o KIESTREIE - BREE TR

Limited TBCLRE ~ AR TR SOB TR

T H et M

Development, construction, operation

and management of urban sewage

processing plant and drinking water

plant and accessory facilities, solid waste
processing facilities; research and
development and marketing of environmental
technology, consultation services related

to projects such as water processing facilities,
environmental projects, urban projects,
highway projects and transportation projects.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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ER
e
VTP Principal place
Company names of business
i 75 Ak B el
ATRAH Quijing,
Quijing Capital Yunnan
Water Company
Limited
L HIES LR
HHRAH Fuyang,
Fuyang Capital Anhui
Water Company
Limited
82
BUM KA K WL
AR

Hangzhou Tianchuang ~ Hangzhou,
Water Company Zhejiang
Limited

PNEIES it
(%#) AFRAF Hong Kong
Tianjin Capital
Environmental
Protection
(Hong Kong)
Company Limited

ER T

Major products or services

B K R B 4K B LA E
At ~ 15 B SE) B A B 8
HE o K B RPN
FHERE 5 /KB - BRbT LFR -
MR ~ AR TR - @ TRAIEH
bl RS

Development, construction, operation and
management of urban sewage processing plant

A
Registered
capital

120,000

and drinking water plant and accessory facilities,

solid waste processing facilities; research and
development and marketing of environmental
technology, consultation services related to
projects such as water processing facilities,

environmental projects, urban projects, highway

projects and transportation projects.

TS 7K GRS RORN A K R i
SR~ [ T B b B B
HEEE A B R BT
MR o K I - BRI TR
TR ~ B TR ~ 203 TR

T H st s

Development, construction, operation and
management of urban sewage processing plant

45,000

and drinking water plant and accessory facilities,

solid waste processing facilities, research and
development and marketing of environmental
technology, consultation services related to
projects such as water processing facilities,
environmental projects, urban projects,
highway projects and transportation projects.

157K B BN P A K R R P 2 Al
BCHROMES - $ i 5 ol S5 B R

257,445

Sewage water processing and recycled water plant

operation, maintenance and technical services,
ancillary services such as technology
training

15K BT BRI 42 7,840,000 TC
Treatment and recyding and US$7,840,000

utilization of sewage water

R HE RS ER R AR B AT PR

TEBTEER

BRI
Kind of
legal entity

AR

Limited
Company

AFR2F
Limited
Company

AR
Limited
Company

AR
Limited
Company

At
kH

Percentage
of interest

90.07%

98%

70%

100%

YRR
Scale

of assets

300,324

113,898

835,239

71,673

HA
Net profit

986

4,274

7,061

3,015
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TE At
BRI WA AR R WRBB
NTE Principal place  EE B H Registered Kindof  Percentage Scale TR
Company names of business Major products or services capital  legal entity  of interest of assets Net profit
SCERISEKEE WHRSCE KR KRR - [H 8 48,000  HIRAF 100% 84,274 4,247
ABRAT Wengdeng, — BERERIE ~ oK ] T AR MO BAEE - A Ak Limited
Wengdeng Capital Shandong A R BRRBCIT DR R Company
Water Company KRR ~ BRI LA ~ WEL LA -
Limited OB LR ~ 3B TRERIE IR o

Development, construction, operation and
management of sewage water treatment

and its ancillary facilities, solid waste
treatment facilities, water recycling facilities;
research and development and promotion

of environmental protection technology;
consultation services related to projects

such as water processing facilities,
environmental projects, urban projects,
highway projects and transportation projects.

KA A KA V5OEM - WEGSAOEMM AAOKE 12,000 ATRAE 100% 26,953 0.00
IKHS A BR S 7 Jinghai, AT S ~ [ o S R B it Y Limited

Tianjin Jing Hai Tianjin DHEE - Bk - S B BRORELHTHY Company
Capital Water WA R 5 /K i ~ B b TR H
Company Limited RS -

Development, construction,

operation and management of sewage water

treatment, urban sewage water treatment plants

and ancillary facilities of tap water plants, solid 83
waste treatment facilities; research and

development and promotion of environmental

protection technology; consultation services

related to projects such as water processing
facilities and environmental projects.

[l Eiei PR T5 KR MR - 5 R RS 270,000  HIRAT 100% 654,857 2,386
AR H Xian, BRI - oK o] BRI BAEE - Ak Limited

Xian Capital Shaanxi g M RO PR Company
Water Company TP AR SO BRI RO R 5 T5K
Limited i SR A 4 2 TR 5 K

B+ B TAE ~ TR ~ AR TR
S TRER I H RS o (LI 8
PRI % A S ST 0 )
Development, construction, operation and
management of sewage water treatment

and its ancillary facilities, solid waste
treatment facilities, water recycling facilities;
research and development and promotion

of environmental protection technology;
application of renewable energy and the related
equipment, installation services of equipment
of sewage water treatment plants; consultation
services related to projects such as water
processing facilities, environmental projects,
urban projects, highway projects and
transportation project (in accordance with

the State regulations for specific projects

and operations).

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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ER
BXN

VSTEA: Principal place
Company names of business
KHPIE TR Kt

FMFFAPRA R Tianjin
Tianjin Haiying

Environmental

Engineering

Technology

Consulting Limited
LA Rlr-3E]

AR Anguo,
Anguo Capital Hebei

Water Company

Limited
RERANBRR LR

A7 R 7 Wuhan,
Wuhan Tianchuang Hubei

Environmental

Protection

Company Limited

kMg A
T Registered
Major products or services capital
BRI T - BATH - Skl 2,000

RRLBIRIAR B 4 a5 DR
FERACHE » TR R R R o

(I 5 A S SRR ) i IR AE S - )
environmental treatment works, civil engineering,
town planning and related consultation projects,
surveying design, tender agency, construction
projects management and technical services

(in accordance with the State regulations for
specific projects and operations).

SRIRAOK ~ PR T5KER (UKFF AT
AR E 201349 42 H > BEFF TR
HMIME 201247 A 17 H > SEHEY
BRI AR A A
AT BUA R B S e e ARG
JAE > RBERHMERT A3 B REAR G B
Urban water supply, drainage and sewage water
under treatment (water-drawing permit valid until
September 2, 2013 and hygiene permit valid

until July 17, 2012. Operations are forbidden

for projects for which special approval needs to

be obtained until such approval is obtained

and operations are forbidden for projects for
which approval needs to be obtained as

stipulated by the laws and regulations or the

41,000

State Council until such approval is obtained).

IS 7K i HE R B A K B L& Rt
I 6 S0 W SRR ~ P A /K OB SRR A 1Y
BOGHHEE -~ A R L IR
TR S BRARAT SEAR B R bR 2R E
HLRE ~ 85 5 BRORECIT WS R 55 o
Investment in the development, construction,
operation, management and consultancy services

47,230

of urban sewage water processing plant and
drinking water plant and accessory facilities,
solid waste processing facilities and water
recycling facilities; production, supply and
sales of equipment and materials relating to
water and environmental protection; research
and development and marketing of
environmental technology.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
TRT R

At
EAK ikp
Kind of ~ Percentage
legal entity ~ of interest
AR 100%
Limited
Company
HIR A 100%
Limited
Company
HIR A 100%
Limited
Company

HE AL
Scale

of assets

2,021

41,700

47,089

A
Net profit

)

0.00

(160)



@

THEB R BRI
ES

BWEREAR - ARBERE
KRBT ANA W AR AT RS
) AR R 2y AR 200
Bt IEHEMRE AR
6.1% > %/ 7 FE N
By WA IRIESERS 5
MAA MBS (NARE)
AR 4 R TR IR
B EANEETE) 5 ¥
AT BB TAE 5 BHEIEE
RABHEE - 5 BHbER
BEHAUE IR o AN
%0 ) E B AL R
1,662.49 Hi L °

BWEREAR - ARERE
K E A S R PR AT
KNERBRERE S AR
200 70 > MGG E AR
4.9% > oS A EEEH S -
T R B R i A E
B o BT 2008 AFEAEAE
IE51H - BE H A AFTEEA
R 1,366 # T -
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Operations and results of the major companies which the Company

has invested

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company invested
RMB2,000,000 in Tianjin Beifang Rencaigang Company Limited,
representing 6.1% of its registered capital. Its principal activities
comprise senior executive insurance services, senior executive
personnel services (employment agent service, financial guarantee
consultation service, personal creditworthiness assessment), enterprise
talent assistance project; development and operation of technological
project achievements and real estate development and operation.
During the reporting period, the Company recorded a net profit of

RMB16.6249 million.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company invested
RMB2,000,000 in Tianjin Baotong Light Mass Materials Company
Limited, representing 4.9% of its registered capital. The principal
activities of this company are the production and sales of high
resistance and light mass materials and its products. This company
continued to record a loss in 2008, and, to date, has an accumulated

loss of RMB13.66 million.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




HHEGHRE  Directors’ Report

AL AR T AR

WA > A B B 15K R
T+ R |78 — A T B P A%
MBI K - SLBIR T 18 T4
SPHERRRE ~ TR
PR R NER - A BITEINEOKR > A&
SR AILA LR 450 3
TC o KA T EEEBT WA
0.4% <

A EE BRI E [ 57K 0 2 R
AR Mo R A s P AT A 5 S TR
AR BEE IR [ R —
BT THE RN EECEA |2
— o MR R KRB RARH
AHAL S | BE R 500 8ot
B AR IR LA A S IE A
HERE N o [ RENTR
RHE A4 |2 K S fee e
WRHE R > 2 HE Sy
T SRR - WENTT
Yot > 5 [SERHED I iR
BRI o RES R ST K
W RBHE A S R R
ASEBMPGRHLE S » YUY A%
R AZ 0BT IR AL T AR AT
@o

The Company’s Technology

During the reporting period, the Group initiated 18 technological R&D
projects and 7 technolocial reform projects to meet the current core
technological renovation need of “The upgrading and reconstruction work
of the sewage water treatment plants”. R&D projects are implemented
successfully to meet its expected requirements. The Group invested a total
of RMB4.5 million in technology, representing 0.4% of the Company’s

revenue from principal operations.

“The R&D project of upgrading and reconstruction technology research
for phosphorous and nitrogen removal in sewage treatment plants and
engineering demonstration” has been listed as one of the first 20 self-
innovation industrialized projects in Tianjin City and we obtained support
of RMB5 million from Tianji Mayor Technology Innovation Fund. The
project is the one for which we obtained the highest amount of fund since
the establishment of the Group. “Tianji Mayor Technology Innovation Fund”
is the highest-level technology R&D incentive program in Tianjin City and
Tianjin City founded it to encourage high-tech R&D to promote industrial
development and technological progress. The success in the application for
the Tianjin Mayor Technology Innovation Fund provides a good opportunity
for the Group to improve their technological capabilities and rapidly form

its core competitiveness in technology.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R
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o
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Currently, the Group is actively applying for the city, sea and river program
titled “Study on technology for deep dephosphorization and denitrogenation
of sewage water and sludge reduction in Northern City” under the “Major
special project for water body pollution control and improvement
technology”, one of the sixteen major special programs included in the
national medium and long term scientic and technological development
plan. Such program is to be carried out in connection with the current
demand for the core technology for upgrading and reconstruction of sewage
water treatment plants, for which nearly RMB10 million of financial and
scientific assistance is intended to be applied from the government. Such
“water special project” is regarded as the highest technology in water service
industry in China and enjoys very significant leading position in terms of
science and technology. Through the application for the progam under such
special project, the Group can continue to ensure its leading position in the
field of sewage water processing technology. Currently, such program has
passed various examinations performed by experts under various ministries
and committees of China such as the Ministry of Environmental Protection,
the Ministry of Science and Technology and the Minsitry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development, and was approved by the National Water Special
Project Office. The budget auditing for such project will be completed and
the reaserch and development contract will be officially signed in the near

futur c.

The application for these projects further enhanced the Group’s technological
position in the industry. While actively participating in the construction of
national or Tianjin city’s major scientific and technological projects, the
Group imported external scientific and technological support, increased its
scientific and technological investment and ensured a more efficient scientific
and technological advancement of the Group, which in turn contributed to

the overall development of the Group.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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() B2 vl R AR B Ry R B

1.

ARBEATIRIBE TR ey BL % R B0

2008 4F- 32 5 [ 5 4 Fil £ 16 11 3
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WS« 9 > (EAT AL > T
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KR e EE—SRE T
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Bikie iy RWNELY: vty
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(2)

An outlook to the Company’s future development

1.

The market competition situation and development opportunities in water

service industry

In 2008, as affected by the world financial crisis, the water service industry
underwent a series of profound changes in line with the substantial change
in domestic macro environment. First, with reagard to the industrial
structure, the market competition structure changed obviously. The
withdrawal of many non-core enterprises, the further expansion in market
share by leading players, and the participation of new players which took
the opportunity through acquisitions, brought a strong impact on the existing
market competition situation. Second, with reagard to the competition
stategy, the high premium model was being abandoned, while the model of
operation under entrustment was becoming a highlight on the market. At
last, with regard to project performance, a majority of enterprises were paying
more attention to the rate of return of project instead of seeking for quantity
and scale like the past. When facing the crisis, the cental government began
another round of investment scheme for infrustructures at the end of 2008.
The RMBA4 trillion economic stimulus plan together with the infrastructure
investment plans by each department and local government will constitute
one of the key drivers for economic growth. In order to fully implement the
comprehensive work program for energy-saving and emission-reduction
initiated by the State Council, the Ministry of Environmental Protection
has explicitly put forward the reduction of COD emission by more than
3% from 2008, by 8% from 2005 and required addition city daily processing
capacity of urban sewage water of 10 million tons in the whole year, which
will basically secure the market growth potential in water service industry

in 2009.
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Overall stragety of the Group in 2009

Development strategies: In 2009, water companies will face opportunities
and challenges of development in the industry. The Group will continue to
purify the water environment for the daily living of the human race and
uphold its organizational mission of raising water quality, and put great
efforts in achieving fast growth oriented by ability enhancement and value

creation.
Operational strategy for 2009:

With regard to business structure, the Group will seek for a stable
development of water investment and operation and maintain its existing
large-scale operation in Tianjin, its core areas and neighbouring areas; explore
the market for entrusted sewage water processing operation, related
consultancy and technical services, and enhance the recoverability and
profitability of the funds in its principal business; take the projects in Tianjin
downtown as its primary construction task so as to enhance the ability in
construction management, technology research and development and design
consultancy; seize opportunity to improve the current status of its recycled
water business and do well in the development of environmental science

and technology products; and cut non-core business at appropriate timing.

With regard to geographical locations, the Group will base itself at Tianjin
and make all efforts to explore major sewage water processing projects in
adjacent areas of Tianjin to provide support to the construction of an
ecological city; encourage each of our subsidiaries in various regions of China
to take the advantage of our service brand to explore market in their respective
adjacent areas, try to expand service scope and achieve a healthy development

circle; and cautiously implement the new strategic geographical deployment.
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With regard to technological operations, the Group will further ascertain
the direction for its ability enhancement, dig and settle the hidden knowledge
during operation management, and optimize and consolidate production
practices, in combination with the information self-control technology, so
as to form proprietary measure for technology control; integrate technical
service ability and develop standard products, so as to facilitate the connection
with the market; do well in the preparation of technology optimization
scheme for upgrading and reconstruction in Tianjin area, confirm that
technological research and development shall serve production and operation,
and carry out basic study and industry study to grasp the best practices so as
to solve production problems; strengthen the import, absorption,
cooperation and spread work in respect of advanced technology and probe
into the integrated renovation for operation control technology; cultivate a
culture of renovation and advocate technological reform; and do a good job

in technological reserve for deodorization and sludge treatment.

With regard to internal management, the Group will rationalize its
organizational structure to integrate and strengthen relevant functions,
enhance the response ability and flexibility of the structure and ensure
effective operation of the service administration framework of the Group;
conduct comprehensive evaluation on key objectives and adopt a more
flexible evaluation method; continue to perfect policy and procedure for
internal control and gradually duplicate them to our subsidiaries; ensure
the effective implementation of emergency mechanism for strategic risks;
perfect the renovation mechanism for internal stimulus, the support
mechanism for internal decision-making and the special research mechanism
for material matters; extend the information-based work from administration
level to key sections of production to increase efficiency, facilitate knowledge
accumulation and assist cost control; drive the special work for cultivation
of corporate culture and vigorously carry out practical activities for managerial
renovation; and do well in maintenance of relationship with governmental
authorities in connection with its licensed operation and in management of

investor relationships in capital market.
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Capital demands and application plans

The Group’s current financing sources can basically satisfy the needs of the
Group’s annual operation plans. As competition in the water service market
becomes severe, there exists certain opportunities for merger and acquisition
in the industry. Coupled with the Group’s market development goals, the
Group is also seeking suitable merger and acquisition opportunities at
appropriate time to lay down a good foundation for the future growth of
the Group in accordance with the Group’s future development plan. The
Group will obtain the funds that the relevant projects may require from its

current financing sources.

Analysis of risk factors

The slowdown of world economy is definite amid the financial crisis. The
continuous recession of developed countries will, without doubt, have an
impact on China. In response to the economic crisis, the Group will further
enhance its risk control. The Group will on one hand intensify the
monitoring, analysis and judgement of risks at earlier stage, and on the
other hand increase effectiveness of reacting to any risks that may crystallise.
For this purpose, the Group is increasing and will continue to increase
relevant investment to establish efficient risk warning system and speedy
reaction mechanism. In addition, the Group will continuously intensify
operational management and scientific and technological development in
order to maintain its competitive advantages, and will enhance project quality
and operation service level through continuous self-improvement, and in
turn to become a major force of energy-saving and emission-reduction and

to continuously improve quality of water environment.
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In July 2005, the Tianjin Municipal Government issued the “Administrative
Measures on Licensed Operations of Public Utlities of Tianjin Municipality”
(“Administrative Measures”). Under Rule 22, license(s) for operating current
urban public utilities projects within the scope of requirements can directly
be granted to the original operator after a review by the department in
charge of municipal construction and administration and obtaining approval
from the Municipal People’s Government, and a license agreement will be
signed between the department in charge of municipal construction
administration and the operator. The Group has submitted an application
for an operating license for the four sewage water treatment plants at the
central region of Tianjin City to the construction administration and
management department of Tianjin City after the implementation of
Administrative Measures in November 2005. Currently, the Group is in the
process of detailed negotiation with the department in charge of municipal
construction and administration of Tianjin City in respect of the licensed
operation agreements. The Group expects to sign the licensed operation
agreements within 2009, and will publish an announcement in time in

accordance with the requirements.
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The major provisions of the “Administrative Measures” in respect of the

licensed operation are as follow:

a.  Licensed operators of new projects shall be ascertained by tendering;

b.  The municipal construction administration and management
authorities shall be authorized to take charge of organizing licensed

operations of municipal public utilities;

c.  Thelicensed operators shall implement the municipal public utility

product prices and service charge standards of the State and the city.

d.  The term of the licensed operation shall not exceed 30 years.

e.  Having been reviewed by the municipal construction administrative
and management authorities and approved by the Municipal People’s
Government, the existing municipal public utility projects can be
directly granted to the existing operators for licensed operations, and
licensed operation agreements shall be entered into between the
municipal construction administrative and management authorities

with the operators.
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The Company’s investments

1.

Use of proceeds from fund-raising

During the reporting period, there was no fund raising of the Company or

there was no fund raised in previous periods that was applied in this period.

Project made out of funds other than proceed from fund-raising

In April 2008, Tianjin Haiying Environmental Engineering Technology
Consulting Company Limited was incorporated with a registered capital of
RMB2 million and was wholly owned by the Group. The scope of operations
of this company are: ecological and environmental research and engineering,
urban facilities construction project, town planning and related consultation
projects, surveying design, tender agency, projects management; evaluation,

consultancy and technical services for relevant operational projects.

On 28 September 2008, Anguo Capital Water Company Limited (“Anguo
Water”) was incorporated with a current registered capital of RMB41 million
and was wholly owned by the Group. Pursuant to relevant agreements entered
into between the People’s Government of Anguo City and the Water Bureau
of Anguo City, Anguo Water acquired the sewage water processing project
assets in Anguo city of Hebei province amounting to RMB39 million under
the TOT mode for a licensed operation period of 30 years with a processing
capacity of 30,000 cubic metres per day, and at the same time, Anguo Water
also acquired the water supply assets in Anguo City of Hebei province
amounting to RMB18,286,978 under the licensced operation mode of
integrated production, supply and sales for a licensed operation period of
30 years with an acquired processing capacity of 10,000 cubic metres per
day and a processing capacity of 40,000 cubic metres per day after expansion
construction. This project is the first time the Group attempted integrated
project of water supply factory and network, the business scope of which
covered the whole water supply process of water-taking, water purification,
water supply, maintainence of pipe network, collection of water charges

and tap water operation.
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In October 2008, Wuhan Tianchuang Environmental Protection Company
Limited (“Wuhan Tianchuang”) was incorporated with a registered capital
of RMB 47.23 million and was wholly owned by the Group. On 16 October
2008, Wuhan Tianchuang officially entered into the Licensed Operation
Agreement with the consutruction committee of Xianning City to construct
and operate the Yong'an Sewage Water Processing Plant of Xianning City
under the BOT mode for a licensed operation period of 30 years with an
invesmment amount of RMB120 million and a processing capacity of 60,000

cubic metres per day. At present, such project is under construction stage.

In April 2008, the Group invested RMB10 million to Tianjin Jinghai Capital
Water Company Limited for construction. In January 2008, the Group
invested RMB270 million to establish Xian Capital Water Company
Limited, holding 100% interest. That Company acquired Xian Sewage Water

Treatment Plant and Beishigiao Purification Centre by way of open tender.

Reasons and impacts of changes in the accounting policy, accounting

estimates or the correction of major accounting errors of the Company

In 2008, the Group adopted the effective PRC CAS Interpretation No. 2

(“Interpretation No. 2”) and data of prior periods were adjusted retrospectively.
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The Interpretation No. 2 is applicable to enterprises that participate in construction
and operation of public infrastructure. Adoption of the Interpretation No. 2 resulted
in changes in the Group’s accounting treatment of sewage water treatment, tap

water and road toll stations.

Prior to the adoption of the Interpretation No. 2, the relevant assets relating to
sewage water treatment, tap water and road toll stations were recognised as fixed
assets. According to the requirements of PRC CAS Interpretation No.2 and given
franchise licences had been obtained by the foreign sewage water treatment plants
and tap water facilities of the Group, the former fixed assets were reclassified as
intangible assets for audit purpose. As for road toll stations, as the Group can
obtain income from Tianjin Toll Collection Office without any condition, therefore

they are recognised as financial assets.

The financial impact of the above changes in accounting policy on the major

financial statements of the Company is shown in note 5 to the financial report.
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(5) Review of the Board Activities

1. The Board meetings and resolutions passed

ek TB
i B A

Newspapers on

Pk A
Resolutions were published
FREIB TR OCE RO g R & NaticTioe s

Considered and approved the proposal in relation to
the provision of guarantee to the loans of Wendang Capital

News

Water Company Limited

L.

I T LB AN W RS B

i i e S S R AN PR
HERGEFUTHEFEA

Nomination of Mr. Xie Rong and Mr. Di Xiaofeng as
candidates for independent non-executive Directors of
the Fourth Board of the Com any,

BRI FR G LB 4 K E’Jrﬁ%m )

Resolution regardm the application for liquidity loans;
08 2008 45— DB A 1

Convening the first extraordinary general meeting 2008.

il il

EatioTogssin

Shanghai Securities
News

Considered and appoved the appointment of Mr. Wong Kok Hon
as the qualified accountant of the Company.

10.

—_

12.

11.

RS AN M 2007 SR A BEH: B 22
Considered the resolution on the 2007 annual report

and its summary to be announced in the PRC and overseas;
FHRABN SN R 2007 SF4F B BB € st
Considered the financial and accounting statements of

the Company for 2007 audited by the domestic and

overseas accountants;

ok 2007 HFFEHE 7 T4 B 2008 F RSB R
Considered the 2007 working report of the Board

and the 2008 operation development plan;

52007 45 S A5 B 41 2008 £ 16 BT 4
Consldered the 2007 final financial report and the 2008
financial budget report;
ok A ) 2007 BRI RS -

Considered the 2007 profic distribution plan of the Company;

%n&%ﬁ“ 505 38 70 P K 0 AT PR A ) A

SO st RS BT B A A RIS R AR A BR(T o
Considered the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers  Shanghai Securities
Zhong Tian Certified Public Accountants Limited News

Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers as the domestic
and external auditors of the Company
Headk ) AR & H TfoEEEﬂ%&?? TR ( ;
Considered the grant of mandate at the general meetmg
for the allotment and issue of new shares (H Shares);

i H B 2007 A4 B BORBAF K & 5
Consldered the convemng of the 2007 Annual General Meeting;
Ak ﬁ%iﬁ@ﬂﬂ’]@m ;
Considered the proposal regarding the adjustment of
remuneration of the senior management;

Fk B AR
C0n51dered the application for liquidity loan facility;
S E Bk AT

C0n51dered the appointment of Mr. Lo Wai Keung, Eric
as the secretary of the Company in Hong Kor;g‘
%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%?l\"% 2008 4R 5 — = REMRA SHARE
Considered the announcement of the first quarterly
report for 2008 and the summary of the report to be
announced within the PRC and overseas.
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No. of
the meeting

S DU
EERIR/S T
The 19th meeting
of the 4th Board

53 DU i
pR
The 20th meeting
of the 4th Board

H s

Bt R E®
The 21th meeting
of the 4th Board

B
Bt R

The 22th meeting

of the 4th Board

HEAM

Convening Date

2008 45 H 21 H
21 May 2008

2008 477 H 18 H
18 July 2008

2008 48 H 21 H
21 August 2008

200849 1 23 H
23 September 2008

IS 1R

Resolutions

LA ST AN 2007 SRR BEHR B SR A
Considered the supplemental content to the 2007
annual report to be published in the PRC and overseas

TESEMAMAMG 2 )6 B B R R DLt )
To publish the “Report on the Rectification of Special
Corporate Governance Activities” in the PRC and overseas

- T A R B S IE A

et TR
155 BB R K

Newspapers on

were published

R
Shanghai Securities
News

R
Shanghai Securities
News

C EREHRFUR B R DM R

The Board delivered a report on the meeting held by the
audit committee and resolutions passed thereon;

. AV ] 2008 AR FPIZEARRAY

Considered the 2008 interim report;

. RIS ST S AN R AR ACE

Considered the appointment of Ms. Zhong Huifang as
deputy general manager of the Company;

- R N RRAT RS R T A R AR R

AR 1 TR S R

Considered the application to the PBOC for issuance of
short-term bonds with a total principal amount up to
RMB 1.1 billion;

R T B 1R OR B R

Considered the policy to guard against funds appropriation
by major shareholders and related parties;

. B B 2008 A 5E IR BRI O 6 o

Considered the convening of the second EGM in 2008.

A CBRMETT R AR BR R A A FR A 7]

RRKEE)

Considered “the resolution related to the amendment
of the Articles of Association of Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection Company Limited";

 ERRIETT (REBEEMHE)

Considered the amendment of the “System of Information

Disclosure and Management;

LB
Considered the publication of a rectification announcement  Shanghai Securities
regarding the former proposal relating to short-term bonds; ~ News

- CBR ] R TR S R A s ) B RS A 4

EES S E VAL I TLE B NG T = S
Considered “resoulution regarding the resign of Mr. Zhang
Baoxiang as a supervisor of the Company and the
nomination of Mr. Li Yuging as candidate for supervisor of
the 4th session of Board of Supervisors of the Company”.
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The 23th meeting
of the 4th Board
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The 24th meeting
of the 4th Board
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The 25th meeting
of the 4th Board

HERMH

Convening Date

2008 410 H 29 H
29 October 2008
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23 December 2008
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30 December 2008

h A

Resolutions

1. ik 2008 4R 5 = F Bl MR 5
Considered the 3rd quarterly report of 2008 and
its summary;

2. EERAERER A R AR -

Considered and approved the change of name
of the Company.

L AN RS
Considered the lease of houses of the Company;

2. FaklER] (BAEFRREHHE) -
Considered the amendment to the “Administrtative
System for Investor Relationships”.

TR B AR T SRS B
Considered the resignation of Mr. Guohui as deputy
general manager of the Company.
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Execution of the resolutions passed at the general meetings by the Board

During the reporting period, pursuant to the relevant provisions of the PRC

» «

“Company Law”, “Securities Law” and the “Articles of Association” of the
Company, the Board of the Company seriously executed all resolutions passed
at the general meetings in strict compliance with the resolution and
authorization of the general meeting. The execution of the profit

appropriation plan passed at the annual general meetings 2007 is as follows:

The profit appropriation plan for 2007 of the Company has been considered
and approved by the 2007 annual general meeting held on 17 June 2008.
The relevant resolutions were published on Shanghai Securities News on
18 June 2007. The profit appropriation plan has been implemented. The
registration date of the share rights was 31 July 2008. The ex-dividend date
was 1 August 2008. The date for the payment of dividends was 7 August
2008.

In respect of the implementation of the resolution relating to the application
to issue and allot new shares (H shares) of the Company considered and
approved by the 2007 annual general meeting, since the H share market
did not have suitable conditions for allotting new shares, the Board has not

implemented the work of issuing and allotting new shares (H shares).
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A summary report on the performance of duty of the Audit Committee

under the Board

The Audit Committee under the Board consists of three Directors, all of
which are independent non-executive Directors. In accordance with the
relevant requirements of the CSRC and SSE, the Detailed Implementation
Rules of the Audit Committee under the Board of the Company, and the
work system in respect of the annual reports of independent non-executive
Directors, the Audit Committee of the Company has duly performed its
supervisory and examination functions during the preparation and disclosure
process of the 2007 annual report, safeguarding audit independence. The
Audit Committee has performed the following duties when preparing the

2007 annual report and 2008 interim report:

(1) Regarding the Review of the 2007 Annual Report:

(1) The Audit Committee has communicated and discussed with
the external auditor before the auditor started its auditing
assignment at the Company, to confirm the timing
arrangement of audit of this year’s annual report, formulating
an audit plan in relation to the auditor’s auditing assignment

on the 2007 annual report of the Company.

(2)  Ithasreviewed the preliminary financial accounting statements
of the Company and issued written opinion before the auditor

started its auditing assignment at the Company.

(3)  After the auditor’s arrival, the Audit Committee
communicated with the auditor on any problems found during
the audit procedure. The Audit Committee gave a writtern
notice in respect of the submission time of the 2008

preliminary audit report.
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After the auditor has submitted its preliminary audit opinion,
the Audit Committee under the Board reviewed the 2007
financial accounting statements of the Company once again

to formulate its written opinion.

Before the auditor issues the audit report, the Audit Committee
gave a written notice in respect of the submission time of the

2007 audit report.

Before the auditor has issued the 2007 audit report, the
Company convened the annual Audit Committee meeting
and made conclusions to the audit assignment on the
Company carried out by the auditor, and vote on the annual
financial accounting statements of the Company and the
resolutions regarding the appointment of accountants for the

next year, resulting in resolutions for submission to the Board.

(2)  Regarding the Review of the 2008 Interim Report

1)

in the process of preparing the interim financial statements
for 2008, communication in relation to the material financial
matters with the Company’s management has been conducted

by way of telephone conference;

the meeting of the Audit Committee has been convened to
consider and vote for the interim financial statements of the
Company for 2008, and a resolution has been formed for

submission to the Board for consideration.
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4. A summary report on the performance of duty of the Remuneration and

Assessment Committee under the Board

The Remuneration and Assessment Committee under the Board consists
of three independent non-executive Directors and chaired by an independent
non-executive Director. The Company held the first meeting of the
Remuneration and Assessment Committee on 31 March 2008 at which the
proposal to fix the remuneration of qualified accountant of the Company
was considered and appoved. The Company held the second meeting of the
Remuneration and Assessment Committee on 29 April 2008 at which the
proposal to fix the remuneration of the company secretary of the Company
in Hong Kong and the proposal to adjust remuneration of the senior
management of the Company were considered and appoved. The
Remuneration and Assessment Committee agreed that the senior
management of the Company had to sign a target responsibility letter with
the Company every year and an assessment was to be conducted at the end
of the year. The payment of bonus for completion above the target would
be implemented according to the Company’s result assessment system and

will be finally approved by the general manager.

Profit distribution plan or the proposal for the increase in share capital
by transferral of Capital Reserve Funds

As audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public Accountants
Limited Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers respectively, the net profit
attributable to the Company in 2008 was RMB231.07 million. Pursuant to the
relevant requirements of the Company Law of the PRC and the Articles of
Association of the Company, a Statutory Common Reserve in the amount of
RMB20.76 million was taken out, adding the undistributed profit of RMB890.82
million at the beginning of the year, and less 2007 cash dividends of RMB57.09
million distributed in 2008, the actual distributable profits attributable to
shareholders for this year was RMB1,044.04 million. According to the profit
appropriation proposal 2008, a cash dividend of RMB0.40 (tax inclusive) per 10
shares will be distributed to all shareholders. Such proposal will be submitted to
the annual general meeting 2008 for consideration and approval before

implementation.

No transfer from the capital reserve fund to share capital was made for 2008.
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(&) A2 5 i =45 4 S0 0L (7)  Dividends of the Company for the past three years:

Hif: fo0 WeRR : AR
Unit: ’°0000 Currency: RMB

Beni
MEH (5B 73 SLAT FE W AT
PHELAERE Amount of cash Net profit (%)
Year dividends (before tax) for the year Ratio (%)
2005 5,322.66 17,585 30
2006 5,610.55 16,561 34
2007 5,708.91 20,933 27
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Operation of the Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee of the Company held four meetings during the

reporting period, mainly covering the following;

1. The 7th meeting of the fourth Supervisory Committee was held on 29th

April, 2008, wherein the following were considered and passed:

considered and passed the 2007 Supervisory Committee working

report;

considered the 2007 annual report and its summary proposed to be

announced in China and overseas;

considered the 2007 accountant’s report audited by the domestic

and overseas auditors;

considered the 2007 final financial report and the 2008 financial
budget report;

considered the 2007 profit appropriation plan;

considered the legality of the operation of the Board of the Company

for 2007;

considered the 2008 first quarterly report and its summary proposed

to be announced in China and overseas.

2. The 8th meeting of the fourth Supervisory Committee was held on 20th

April, 2008, wherein the 2008 interim report and its summary proposed to

be announced in China and overseas were considered;
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BHFHE  Report of the Supervisory Committee

3. The 9th meeting of the fourth Supervisory Committee was held on 22nd
September, 2008, wherein the resolution in relation to the approval of the
resignation of Mr. Zhang Baoxiang as a supervisor and the nomination of
Mr. Li Yuging as a supervisor of the fourth Supervisory Committee of the

Company was considered.

4. The 10th meeting of the fourth Supervisory Committee was held on 29th
October, 2008, wherein the 2008 third quarterly report and its summary

proposed to be announced in China and overseas were considered.

Independent opinion of the Supervisory Committee on the legality
of the Company’s operation

The Supervisory Committee considers that in conducting various production
operation activities during the reporting period, the Board was in strict compliance
with the requirements under the various laws, regulations of the PRC and the
Company’s Articles of Association, and its decision procedures were legal. There
has been no violation of the laws, regulation, the Articles of Association of the
Company or no damages to the Company’s interests or the interests of the investors
during the discharge of duties by the Directors and senior management of the

Company.

Independent opinion of the Supervisory Committee on reviewing the
financial situation of the Company

The Supervisory Committee considers that the Company’s financial system and
internal control system were strict and have been seriously implemented, and
considers that the 2008 financial report of the Company could truly reflect the
financial situation and operating results of the Company. The audit opinion

PricewaterhouseCoopers was objective and fair.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee i 5 & i

Independent opinion of the Supervisory Committee on the previous
fund raising exercise

During the reporting period, there is no fund raising by the Company. For details
of the use of fund raised, please refer to the relevant part of the Directors’ Report in

this report.

Independent opinion of the Supervisory Committee on the acquisition
and sale of assets of the Company

For details of acquisitions or sales of assets made by the Company during the
reporting period, please refer to the relevant sections in the Directors’ Report. The
Supervisory Committee considers that the Company’s asset transactions have been
conducted at fair prices in accordance with market principles without insider trading
and have been disclosed to a sufficient extent pursuant to the requirements to

safeguard the interests of shareholders.

Independent opinion of the Supervisory Committee on the connected
transactions of the Company

During the reporting period, the Company did not have any material connected

transactions.
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(1)

(2)

Material litigation or arbitration

During the year, there is no litigation or arbitration which is material to the

Company.

Bankruptcy and restructuring events

During the year, there is no bankruptcy and restructuring events for the Company.

Other major events and its effect and explanation of solutions

The Company did not have any other major events during the year.

Asset acquisition and disposal and mergers during the reporting period

The Company did not have any asset acquisition and disposal, or mergers during

thC year.

Major connected transactions of the Company during the reporting

period

The Company did not have any major connected transactions during the year.

Major contracts and their implementation

1. Custody, subcontracting and leasing
(1) Custody
The Company did not provide any custodian during the year.

(2)  Subcontracting

The Company did not provide any subcontracting during the year.

(3)  Leasing

The Company did not have any leasing matters during the year.
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2~ WERNB 2. Guarantee
WAL B0 WRE - AR
Unit: 0000 Currency: RMB

AR BRI (AEEEAR R AR MER)

Guarantee provided to external parties by the Company (not including guarantee provided to the subsidiaries of the Company)

AR R AR £ Total amount of guarantee provided during the reporting period 0
(NELFEEAL F T A R (not including guarantee provided to the subsidiaries of the Company)
Ok WA SRR A Total amount of outstanding guarantee provided 0
(NEAEEAL R FA AR as at the end of the reporting period
(not including guarantee provided to the subsidiaries of the Company)
A ST ) B AR RO
Guarantee provided to the subsidiaries of the Company

ek B E A ] A Total amount of guarantee provided to the 0
s G R subsidiaries of the Company during the reporting period
WA AR EAN 7T R R R A Total amount of outstanding guarantee provided to the 77,625

subsidiaries of the Company as at the end of the reporting period

AR TERARNDL (W IEEA LA T A MER)

Total amount of guarantee granted by the Company (including guarantee provided to the subsidiaries of the Company)

VafRAasE Total amount of guarantee 77,625
IR ARG A R Y (%) Percentage of the total amount of guarantee to the net assets 25.44
of the Company (%)

o Of which:

THIBOR - TR BB Oy Amount of guarantee provided to the shareholders, ultimate 0

PRSI S5 controller and other related parties

T e e A R R A 70 % R Amount of guarantee provided directly or indirectly for the borrowers

PERY R R P IR B with gear ratio of over 70% 0

PE (R AR AR 3 EE S0 T3 B Total amount of guarantee exceeding 50% of net assets 0

bRk TR R SRR AR Total amount of the above three guarantess 0
3~ ZEtAURHTBL 3. Trust arrangement

AR RN ) 2 G P A S o The Company did not make any trust arrangements during the year.
4~ HpEREH 4. Other major contracts

AN A A R AT o During the year, there were no other major contracts entered into by the

Company.
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Commitments Content
R BUR s 1)

Commitment of
Share Segregation
Reform

7)

AR CEA R B B 4 BRI

P A I R BB Oy 1B SR> B i R 2 B + @A
A b1 2 sl

Pursuant to the requirements under Article 27 in the “Administration
Method in respect of Share Segregation Reform of Listed Companies”,
all the original non-circulating shares shall not be traded or transferred
within 12 months commencing from the date of implementation of

Implementation of commitments

Commitments made by the Company or shareholders who hold or continued to

hold over 5% of the shares during the reporting period.
JAT RO

Implementation

A o T ok 1 SR R
FI - REEAE SR BURGE B FH -
During the reporting period,

TMICL had been in strict
compliance of its commitments and
had not violated any relevant
commitments.

the Share Segregation Reform.

Q) TBEBCERG > TERTRGE BN L SRS ) th
JBe -t B A2 W IO BB L T RSB
A AEZ A A ERE 2t
TMICL undertakes that upon expiry of the aforesaid commitment period,
the number of shares sold through the SSE shall not exceed 5% of the
total number of shares of the Company within 12 months and shall not
exceed 10% within 24 months.

(3) RS R R R > R R IR 2 —
W 78RR 2 FR R LAE H R A
In the event the amount of shares sold through the SSE attained 1% of
the total number of the Company’s shares, an announcement shall be
made within two working days of the occurrence of such event.
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Wk N > AN AR OB & A R
JiT o A ) ST 2 7 R K R
B ITAT R A B AR w1 o
f o TR AT B 5 Bk 2 6 5Bl 2
AN TR AN TR TR
e b — 4 RS TR 42 3640 340
HOUANRW S #uk E s Ak > Bk
MG s AT E AR A TR T 1447
FrTEs o fERE=AFR > ARRIRA
FHRETH o

Ou) Bl 2wl B Jewig - Bt - @

MABAR - AwlBOR - B
TN 0 i e 8 O
AN RHES - B B
BAH -~ AT R ASRZ
B R G R - TEORT -
P 95 58 53 B A A A B -

(8)

Appointment and removal of the accountants of the Company

During the reporting period, the Company did not change its accountants. The
original PRC auditor of the Company is PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian
Certified Public Accountants Limited Company. The original overseas auditor of
the Company is PricewaterhouseCoopers. A total of approximately RMB3.4 million
were paid to the two auditors for auditing services rendered in the previous year.
As at the end of the previous reporting period, the above two accountants have
rendered auditing services to the Company for 14 years. During the past three

years, the Company did not change its auditors.

Punishments and rectification to listed companies and its directors,

supervisors, senior management, shareholders and ultimate controllers

During the year, the Company and its Directors, Supervisors, senior management,
shareholders and ultimate controllers were not subject to any investigation,
administration punishments, criticisms by the CSRC or public reprimand by any

StOCk exchange.
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Subject
A N T
RO 440 B2 L 2

Announcement relating to the
discharge of the pledge and the
pledge of part of shares held by the

Company’s first major shareholder

B0 i 3 S B 55 LK
R A

Announcement of the Resolutions
Passed at the 15th Meeting of

the Fourth Board of Directors of
the Company

00 i 3 S 2 55 TN
kR

Announcement of the Resolutions
Passed at the 16th Meeting of

the Fourth Board of Directors of
the Company

2008 45— KB R IBORCK & 19 50
Notice of the 2008 First
Extraordinary General Meeting

A BB RS ) B DB A
Announcement relating to
unusual trade volume of A Shares

A BRI R R AR T T 5 K
JE PR R T P R 2L )
Discloseable transaction in
respect of the acquisition and
licensed operation of Xian sewage

(10) Explanation of other major events

(11) Information Disclosure Index

LR SIEA Y]

Name and page of newspaper

(Li#%4) D56 IR
“Shanghai Securities” page D56

(R AT I
“Shanghai Securities” page A17

(EIB#%RH) D14 R
“Shanghai Securities” page D14

(L&) D14 R
“Shanghai Securities” page D14

(EiB#RH) D24 R
“Shanghai Securities” page D24

(L&) DITIR
“Shanghai Securities” page D17

iLE R

Date of publication

2008 4F 1 A 21 H
21 January 2008

2008 41 4 25 H
25 January 2008

2008 4F2 126 H
26 February 2008

2008 42 1 26 A
26 February 2008

20083 A4 H
4 March 2008

2008 “F3 H 18 H
18 March 2008
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During the year, there were no other major events of the Company.

P 0y 0G0 A A B R
Website and path of publication

AT AU www.sse.com.cn

Wi 52 T 48 v www .hkex.com.hk ;
AR A A8 EVHE A PR w4
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

Stock Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk;
IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

AT v www.sse.com.cn

T 52 T 48 v www .hkex.com.hk ;
ARV B4 E S AT BR A R4l
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

Stock Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk;
IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

AT v www.sse.com.cn

T 52 T 48 v www.hkex.com.hk ;
AR A A8 EVBS A PR W) A
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

Stock Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk;
IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

AT www.sse.com.cn

T 52 T 48 v www .hkex.com.hk ;
AR A A8 EVBS A PR W) 4
htep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

Stock Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk;
IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

AT U www.sse.com.cn
W52 T 48 v www .hkex.com.hk ;
ANV B A BB A PR W) 4
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

Stock Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk;
IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

AT U www.sse.com.cn
T 52 T 48 v www.hkex.com.hk
ARV A A8 EVBS A PR W) A
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
SSE: www.sse.com.cn;
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45 TR 310 4 M v
Subject Name and page of newspaper

water treatment plams

MG G E T
The Appointment of New
Qualified Accountant

HRGOHRAH AN
Date of Meeting of

the Board of Directors

A BRI A R T 2
157K B BE A 28 T 8% 2 B i
Circular: Discloseable transaction in
respect of the acquisition and
licensed operation of Xian sewage
water treatment plants

A R E R R L A4S

Announcement relating to the
listing of restricted circulating shares

(LT AL7 R
“Shanghai Securities” page A17

(LIRS D8 W
“Shanghai Securities” page D8

BRI T B 5 B s

IR S S TS 2007 447 BE
12008 4F45 — B
Postponement of the meeting of
the board of directors and
postponement of the publication of
the 2007 annual report and

2008 first quarterly report

2008 4F-55 — U B R PR ROR 1 (i) D8 R

Tl A

Date of publication

2008 “F3 A 31 H
31 March 2008

2008 F4 A1 H
1 April 2008

2008 -4 H 7 H
7 April 2008

200844 11 H
11 April 2008

200844 15 H
15 April 2008

2008 44 15 H

I VA “Shanghai Securities” page D8 15 April 2008
Announcement on the resolutions
passed at the 2008 first
extraordinary general meeting
TR S BRI AT R A

TRT R

ISR 0GR 4 A3 B bR i A
Website and path of publication

Stock Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk;
IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

AR v www.sse.com.cn
W22 T 48 v www.hkex.com.hk ;
nﬂ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁéw?ﬁ?ﬁ PR 7 485
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

Stock Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk;
IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

W22 T 48 v www.hkex.com.hk ;
AIVHE IV A8 EVHS A PR R A
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
Stock Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk;
IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

AR v www.sse.com.cn
W22 T 48 v www .hkex.com.hk
nﬂ%ﬁﬁ?&‘éﬂﬁ%ﬁ PR 7 485
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

Stock Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk;
IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

AT www.sse.com.cn

T 52 T 48 v www.hkex.com.hk

AR A AT R ) 4
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

Stock Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk;
IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

ATV www.sse.com.cn
W22 T 48 v www.hkex.com.hk ;
nﬂ%ﬁﬁ?&‘éﬂﬁ%ﬁ PR 7 48 5
hetp://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

Stock Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk;
IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

AP v www.sse.com.cn

T 52 FT 48 3 www.hkex.com.hk
AIVRE I A8 EHS A PR ) A
heep:/fwww.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
SSE: www.sse.com.cn;

Stock Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk;
IFN Financial Press Ltd.:
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FERERIERI 24

Announcement in relation to

the transfer of state-owned assets of
the controlling shareholder of

the Company

BB
2007 Annual Report

2007 AE R R g
Notice of 2007 annual
general meeting

2008 4F5—FEH
2008 First Quarterly Report

#% 2007 47 12 1 31 A IE4RE
ZRFHELN G

Announcement of final results for
the year ended 31 December 2007

CHUIEE S RIS

el i S R I BT L AT
Announcement in relation to

the resolutions passed at

the 18th Meeting of the Fourth
Board and Resignation and
Appointment of Company Secretary

S0 it B 2 LR R DR A
Announcement in relation to

the resolutions passed at

the Seventh Meeting of

the Fourth Supervisory Committee

(EiB#%5H) D56 I
“Shanghai Securities” page D56

(LI Z%4) D56 IR
“Shanghai Securities” page D56

(Ei#%H) DSS IR DS6 it
“Shanghai Securities” pages D55 and D56 29 April 2008

(EIG#%5H) D56 I
“Shanghai Securities” page D56

(LI %4) D56 IR
“Shanghai Securities” page D56

SLECESIEA Y] TIRHM

Name and page of newspaper

CLIBHERH) Ad9 IR
“Shanghai Securities” page A49

Date of publication

2008 44 H 25 H
25 April 2008

2008 4E4 H 29 H
29 April 2008

2008 44 7 29 H
29 April 2008

2008 44 H 29 H
29 April 2008

2008 44 H 29 H
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HAb%EF Other Information

Sale and Purchase or Redemption of Shares of the Company

During the reporting period, the Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or

redeem any shares of the Company.

Code on Corporate Governance Practice

None of the Directors is aware of any information that would reasonably indicate that the
Company is not or was not, for any part of the year, in compliance with the Code on

Corporate Governance Practice as set out in the Listing Rules.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by the Directors

The Company has adopted a code of practice with standards not lower than those prescribed
in Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for securities transactions conducted by the Directors.
During the reporting period, all Directors have complied with the Model Code in relation

to securities transactions conducted by the Directors.

Public Float

On the basis of publicised information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public

float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association and there is

no restriction against such rights under the laws of the PRC.

Tax concession

Holders of listed securities of the Company were not granted any tax concession for

holding securities of the Company.

Charge of assets

The Company did not charge any assets of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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Audit Committee

On 31st July, 2001, the Board approved the establishment of the Audit Committee to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal controls of the Company.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a

review of the audited accounts for the year ended 31st December, 2008 with the Directors.

Publication of Financial Information

The Company’s 2008 annual report which sets out all the information required by
paragraphs 45(1) to 45(3) of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules is published on the website
of the Stock Exchange (http://www.hkex.com.hk).
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W& Financial accounting report
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PwC ZT Shen Zi (2009) No. 10050

To the shareholders of

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated and the company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated and the company
income statements, cash flow statements and statements of changes in equity for

the year then ended and notes to these financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The management of the Company and the Group is responsible for the
preparation of these financial statements in accordance with the Accounting

Standards for Business Enterprises. This responsibility includes:

(1)  designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error;

(2)  selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

(3)  making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the China Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Fil 3 Report of the Auditors

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated and the company’s financial position of the Group
and the Company as of 31 December 2008, and of their financial performance
and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Accounting

Standards for Business Enterprises.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
28 April 2009
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

g%ﬁ‘ﬁ% Balance Sheet 20084 12731 H

(BREFHIENISL > R ELAr A N RMET50) As at 31 December 2008

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

bk A
Group Company
Bt 2008 2007 2008 2007
Notes
(£) (B E#) (B E#)
7 (Restated) (Restated)
B ASSETS
WER CURRENT ASSETS
il s Cash and bank balances (1) 909,047 339,971 275,440 86,633
HEWS X Trade receivables 2) 798,869 442,944 742,879 401,905
bR Other receivables (3) 52,137 78,769 300,769 82,459
FMHIE Prepayments (4) 81,987 57,964 33,813 12,984
& Inventories (5) 9,448 6,634 3,360 3,034
WEE R A Total current assets 1,851,488 926,282 1,356,261 587,015
FE By ¥ e NON-CURRENT ASSETS
RUIEUGK Receivables due after one year (©) 1,029,017 1,024,743 1,029,017 1,024,743
R Long-term equity investmens 7) 43,878 67,979 1,094,981 724,751
BOEVESR e Investment properties ®) 118,692 137,588 92,876 95,305
i E B Fixed assets 9) 1,985,415 2,069,639 1,837,744 1,934,270
EEITR Construction in progress 9) 207,122 116,187 111,767 30,257
I G Intangible assets (10) 2,277,399 1,577,870 389,561 399,925
oAb I i) Other non-current assets (11) 47,252 23,778 43,700 20,525
FE By R At Total non-current assets 5,708,775 5,017,784 4,599,646 4,229,776
ja03 5 TOTAL ASSETS 7,560,263 5,944,066 5,955,907 4,816,791
TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A

TRT R
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

BEAMBE @  Balance Sheets (Continued)

2008 4E 12 1 31 H (BRAFERITERAL - S8R0 2 AR T 0)
As at 31 December 2008 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
Pk A
Group Company
B 2008 2007 2008 2007
Notes
(k) (B E#) (B E#)
7 (Restated) (Restated)
L0 BRI B 4 LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
VTLURER S CURRENT LIABILITIES
K Short-term borrowings (13) 821,890 155,000 776,890 155,000
JREAT HR R Trade payables (12) 17,841 12,469 7,277 6,139
FURSK Advances (12) 228,716 171,341 61,130 28,099
JRE AT 357 Wages payable 5,054 6,674 3,587 5,753
JEACH Taxes payable (12) 23,678 69,727 21,188 61,642
A FECR Dividend payable (16(c)) 2,048 842 766 842
—4F IR 2 3] = S K Long-term borrowings due
within one year (13) 494,790 416,250 434,000 334,000
b & Other current liabilities (13) 167,491 138,862 64,364 32,727
oAb RE AT 30 Other payables (12) 99,848 113,946 132,928 100,957
WEAL AT Total current liabilities 1,861,356 1,085,111 1,502,130 725,159
FEF B 1 5% NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
R Long-term borrowings 3 2,318,160 1,646,250 1,259,000 1,035,000
ot FF B £ % Other non-current liabilities (13) 130,909 147,273 130,909 147,273
AT RN Deferred income tax liabilities (14) 23,640 14,348 12,258 8,231
R B AL A Total non-current liabilities 2,472,709 1,807,871 1,402,167 1,190,504 193
il TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,334,065 2,892,982 2,904,297 1,915,663
IR HCRERE SHAREHOLDERS QUITY
Jge A Share capital (15) 1,427,228 1,427,228 1,427,228 1,427,228
GARNTE Capital surplus (16(a)) 383,338 383,338 380,788 380,788
BBRAE General reserves (16(b)) 253,093 232,336 253,093 232,336
ARy LA Undistributed profits 1,044,043 890,824 990,501 860,776
SRS B 2 ) I AR 2 £ it Equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company 3,107,702 2,933,726 3,051,610 2,901,128
A YOB RS Minority Interests (17) 118,496 117,358 — —
JBe R AR it Total shareholders equity 3,226,198 3,051,084 3,051,610 2,901,128
£105 BRRRE 2 405 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’EQUITY 7,560,263 5,944,066 5,955,907 4,816,791
T2 A 2 BT 5 BV R P AL The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
LYSEN B R Ve I35t B
Ma Baiyu Gu Qifeng Shi Zhenjuan
EATAN FEEF TENEEA TEHEEAaEA
Company Representative Person in charge of Person in charge of
accounting function accounting department

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises
AR  Income Statement

(BREFRITEDISL > SR AL AR T D)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

BRBA

A
BB R
EHE
WA 2 ) —
7 WE AR

e Bk
Hop HBE R
R

BEAW
AN
W SN
o s FERmh G AR Bk

R

AR

TR

R I B4 R RS 13 1
SRR

IR A
(AR L)
AR AR
TR RO £

5 W B R MR 2 A 5 SR A LR 2

L 1EER
Ma Baiyu
REAEA

Company Representative

Income from operations

Less:Cost for operations 18)
Business tax and surcharges
Administrative expenses
Financial expenses - net
Assets impairment losses

Add: Investment income
Including: Share of profit

of an associate

Operation profit
Add:Non-operating income
Less:Non-operating expenses
Including: Loss on disposal of
non-current assets

Total profit
Less:Income tax

Net profit

Attributable to shareholders
of the Company
Minority interests

Earnings per share
(in Rmb yuan)
— Basic
— Diluted

(23)

JEUB
Gu Qifeng
FEgFTAENREA
Person in charge of

accounting function

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

P A
Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

(T k) (T k)

(Restated) (Restated)

1,159,307 1,002,042 790,295 747,631
(510,075)  (406,901)  (269,900) (253,725)
(42,097) (43,710) (41,140) (42,296)
(90,283)  (102,370) (59,163) (70,856)
(214,489)  (135,463)  (150,704) (96,462)
— (5,240) — (22,000)

6,129 2,693 5,913 —
5,729 3,187 — —
308,492 311,051 275,301 262,292
2,927 2,707 4 7
(1,181) (4,166) (518) (73)
(934) (2,857) (317) (68)
310,238 309,592 274,787 262,226
(76,753)  (99,224)  (67,216)  (89,360)
233,485 210,368 207,571 172,866
231,065 209,328 207,571 172,866
2,420 1,040 — —
233,485 210,368 207,571 172,866
0.16 0.15
0.16 0.15

TRT R

IR 3¢ 1
Shi Zhenjuan
aatigaEA
Person in charge of

accounting department

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

B4eWaE  Cash Flow Statement

(BREFRIEDISL > 8L AR T D)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from sales of goods and
rendering of and services
Cash received relating to
other operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
Payments of taxes and levies
Cash payments relating to
other operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from disposal of investments
Cash received from returns on investments
Net cash received from disposal
of fixed assets
Cash received from release of restricted
bank deposits
Cash received from subsidiaries

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets,
intangible assets and
other long-term assets
Cash paid to acquire equity investments
Payments of restricted bank deposits
Cash paid to subsidiaries

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from investing activities

w1 |
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
868,805 737,477 489,249 404,643
44,143 22,011 29,603 5,445
912,948 759,488 518,852 410,088
(321,466) (235,472) (169,520) (127,336)
(87,101) (68,055) (51,344) (42,524)
(163,723) (137,896) (151,155) (132,930)
(36,058) (62,151) (21,656) (50,439)
(608,348) (503,574) (393,675) (353,229)
304,600 255,914 125,177 56,859
21,000 1,506 — —
9,230 868 400 —
520 3,673 380 102
22,770 6,000 22,770 6,000
— — 97,000 75,000
53,520 12,047 120,550 81,102
(884,747) (271,752) (94,359) (142,493)
— — (370,230) (50,000)
(10,000) (25,770) (10,000) (25,770)
— — (286,600) (11,958)
(894,747) (297,522) (761,189) (230,221)
(841,227) (285,475) (640,639) (149,119)

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

Bengk i

Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

(BREFRITEBISL > SRALL AR T0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

SN W e 2 1 B4R
BRI B B
i Im] ) 52 PR PR 77K
HHWRBBEEA A
TR ARSI A 1R Bl
EATFLEIT A B4
3 B A SR T SO0 B 4
ST 2 BRAR R A7
SR AL B

EIA B B4
HYWRBBLEU WM
58 WU I e e B i R
352 B B i S o
BAEHm,/ (WD) B

(B 24)b))
T AR B4 B

SERBLEMH

72 WS B 5 4 W 2 B B R R R AL BT 2

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from borrowings

Cash received from release of restricted
bank deposits

Sub-total of cash inflows

Repayments of amounts borrowed
Payments of interest expenses
Payments for distribution of
dividends or profits
Restricted bank deposits
Cash payments relating to
other financing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows
Net cash flows from financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes on cash

Net increase/(decrease)
in cash (note 7(24)(b))
Add: Cash and bank balances

at beginning of year

Cash and bank balances at end of year

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

ot il

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
2,386,590 1,279,890 1,832,890 1,041,000
— 47,000 — 47,000
2,386,590 1,326,890 1,832,890 1,088,000
(956,985) (1,472,140) (871,727) (1,338,000)
(224,980) (162,400) (157,972) (121,681)
(57,165) (56,562) (57,165) (56,562)
(43,700) — (43,700) —
(5,057) — (5,057) —
(1,287,887) (1,691,102) (1,135,621) (1,516,243)
1,098,703 (364,212) 697,269 (428,243)
562,076 (393,773) 181,807 (520,503)
324,971 718,744 80,633 601,136
887,047 324,971 262,440 80,633

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

LSES JEU R v R 45
Ma Baiyu Gu Qifeng Shi Zhenjuan
EREATA TEEF TAENETRA FREBE A

Company Representative Person in charge of Person in charge of

accounting function accounting department

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
TRT R
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

AR RERETWE  Consolidated Statements of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2006 4F 12 A 31 HAER R

GRBORE T - 1R
RREGTHENBRE 258
by ik U N

200741 1 1 HAERIER
(TH)

2007 42 B B B B
I
Rk 3 U
Tl R
— BB AT

— A

20074 12 A 31 HAERBRH
(TH)

2008 4 M B
ez
I B
— R AR

—HRRM

2008 4F 12 /1 31 BAEA

72 WS B 5 4 W 2 B R R R AL BIGR 2

(BREFRIEDISL > AL AR T D)

All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

B B 2 )

Hhis

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Bk WAAK  BBAK

RARAE DUBORHER  BACHER &t

Total
Share Capital General ~ Undistributed Minority  shareholders
capital surplus reserve profits Interests equity
Balances at 31 December 2006 1,330,666 101,298 214,288 740,606 116,111 2,502,969
Changes in accounting policy
- effect of adopting
CAS int - 2 (note 5) — — 761 14,282 207 15,250
Balance at 1 January 2007
(Restated) 1,330,666 101,298 215,049 754,888 116,318 2,518,219
Changes in 2007
Net profit — — — 209,328 1,040 210,368
Conversion of convertible bonds 96,562 282,040 — — — 378,602
Profit appropriation
— Appropriation to statutory
common reserves — — 17,287 (17,287) — —
- Dividend appropriation to
shareholders — — — (56,105) — (56,105)
Balances at 31 December 2007 1,427,228 383,338 232,336 890,824 117,358 3,051,084
(Restated)
Changes in 2008
Net profit — — — 231,065 2,420 233,485
Profit appropriation
— Appropriation to statutory
common reserves — — 20,757 (20,757) — —
- Dividend appropriation to
shareholders — — — (57,089) (1,282) (58,371)
Balances at 31 December 2008 1,427,228 383,338 253,093 1,044,043 118,496 3,226,198

B
Ma Baiyu Gu Qifeng
EREAFTA TEEF TAENATA
Company Representative Person in charge of

accounting function

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Shi Zhenjuan
aRtEE A
Person in charge of

accounting department
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

R RRRERZ TR Company statement of changes in owner’s equity
(RASTITE RSN SR AR T 70

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2006 4 12 H 31 HAEA BRI
TR — g
AR ETHE R RS 2 5%
R

2007461 1 1 HAERI R
(%)

2007 47 JE 349 9 5% B
ik
B (A
FE AL
— R B

= BBRHM

2007 4¢ 12 7 31 HAER SR
(k)

2008 4FBE B W52 B
g
ik
— R B AR

— B AN

2008 4F 12 /1 31 HAERBREH

5 W B R B o A 5 SR A LR 2

LEES

Balances at 31 December 2006
Changes in accounting policy
- effect of adopting
CASInt-2

Balance at 1 January 2007
(Restated)

Changes in 2007
Net profit
Conversion of convertible bonds
Profit appropriation
— Appropriation to statutory
common reserves

- Dividend appropriation to
shareholders

Balances at 31 December 2007
(Restated)

Changes in 2008
Net profit
Profit appropriation
— Appropriation to statutory
common reserves

- Dividend appropriation to
shareholders

Balances at 31 December 2008

Ma Baiyu
REAEAN

Company Representative

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

JBeA AL BRAR  ARORNW Bk At
Total

Share Capital General  Undistributed ~ sharcholders’
capital surplus reserve profits equity
1,330,666 98,748 214,288 754,453 2,398,155
— — 761 6,849 7,610
1,330,666 98,748 215,049 761,302 2,405,765
— — — 172,866 172,866
96,562 282,040 — — 378,602
— — 17,287 (17,287) —

— — — (56,105) (56,105)
1,427,228 380,788 232,336 860,776 2,901,128
— — — 207,571 207,571

— — 20,757 (20,757) —

- - — (57,089) (57,089)
1,427,228 380,788 253,093 990,501 3,051,610

JEU R v
Gu Qifeng
TEGEF LERNATA
Person in charge of

accounting function

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R

IR 45 4
Shi Zhenjuan
aatigaEA

Person in charge of

accounting department

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

2008 4 W F M Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008

— ~ AR AR
KEAZERREM RO ARRAF (A2
A ) R 1993 4F 6 A 8 H e hE AL
AN ([ 1) R T o s i i A7
BREFAEAH o

2008 4EA F 2 KT A EBR AR 0y
A7 PR AR K T A ZE B AR A B L O A
BT

KAMBESEARAR (THESE ) &
AT EBLA ] > KPR R B it
ERBEEIARAF (DRBER D) &
AN R B A A

(BREFRIEDISL > AL AR T D)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established on 8 June 1993 in Tianjin, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC) as a joint stock limited liability company.

In 2008, the name of the Company was changed to Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection Group Company Limited from Tianjin Capital

Environmental Protection Company Limited.

The holding company and ultimate holding company of the Company is
Tianjin Municipal Investment Company Limited (“TMICL”) and Tianjin
City Infrastructure Construction and Investment Group Company Limited

(“TICIG”) respectively.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

W HEMEE  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRFFRIERIAL - G 0 2 NRIET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

— ~ A EEARWIR @) 1.
AT RILF AT (AR ) ) F 5
BraEim KR > BAOKHEK > kA
B TS > BT

(@) V5AREBLEH
IR R BR 85 % (1 CT57K BB T B
wh)]) o ARG EEE DL T 5K g
R Bt 1 K B AR -
(DA

Plant Location

DA A B T A AT I B TR

On-going agreements signed in prior years:

KEERAR

Dong Jiao, Tianjin
PR AE I

Ji Zhuang Zi, Tianjin
R R

Xian Yang Lu, Tianjin
R

Bei Cang, Tianjin
BN E
Guiyang, Guizhou
TLRRELIE

Baoying, Jiangsu
LR

Fuyang, Anhui
ErH

Qujing, Yunnan
WAL L

Honghu, Hubei
WA
Hangzhou, Zhejiang
PNE G

Jing Hai, Tianjin
RSO

Wen Deng, Shandong

2008 AFHTE R B 1A -

Significant new agreement signed in 2008:

BV Y %
Xi’an, Shanxi

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued)

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
include processing of sewage, tap water, recycled water and receipt of toll

road collection as described below:

(@)  Processing of sewage
Pursuant to relevant agreements (“Sewage Processing Agreements”),
the Group currently provides sewage processing services via the

following plants:

W %5 H %R
Agreement Date Customer
2000 £F 10 H 10 H KAk Aw
10 October 2000 Tianjin Sewage Company (“TSC”)
2000 4F 10 A 10 H KHiPek AR
10 October 2000 TSC
2000 £F 10 H 10 H RAEPEKk AT
10 October 2000 TSC
2000 4F 10 J 10 H RAEiPek AT
10 October 2000 TSC
2004 49 J1 16 H B
16 September 2004 Guiyang City Administration Bureau
2005 4F 6 /1 13 H H R R
13 June 2005 Baoying Construction Bureau
2005412 /1 18 H REmEREA g
18 December 2005 Anhui Fuyang Construction Committee
2005 412 H 25 H i 37 Tl (DR K 4B )
25 December 2005 Qujing City Water General Company
2005 412 29 H HEI T A )=
29 December 2005 Honghu Construction Bureau
2006 411 20 H BUM T BE KA R ]
20 November 2006 Hangzhou Sewage Company Limited
2007 49 A 12 B R HOMT S B I K TR AT & B
12 September 2007 Tianyu Science Technology Park
2007 4F 12 H 19 H SCE T R =)
19 December 2007 Wendeng Construction Bureau
2008 4 3 J] 18 H P 22 T B e e 45 AR
18 March 2008 Xi’an Infrastructure

Investment Group

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

For the year ended 31 December 2008

— ~ A IEARBER (50
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H VBRI (A Y AR BT
BEHE 15% 1 o DL

(i) PR RSO E R
A A A O e
RS EHE N o
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Bglic IR AR A s 1 Bk A 4 IR
BEL TR0 ¥ 7K S ] 9 D A
15K g o

WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1.  COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued)

(a)

Processing of sewage (Continued)
The principal terms and the pricing formula as set out in the relevant

agreements are briefly summarised below:

Dong Jiao:
The Company will have full recovery of actual operating costs,
including depreciation of fixed assets, excluding interest expenses

and foreign exchange gains or losses and at minimum:

(i)  earns a return of 15% per annum of the average balance of
the monthly net book value of fixed assets (as defined in the

agreement) of the plants; and

(ii)  incentive pricing adjustments will be made for cost saving and/
or when actual processing volume exceeds the minimum

processing volume stipulated in the agreement.

Ji Zhuang Zi , Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang

Based on the supplementary agreement reached with TSC on 10
March 2006, the Company is entitled to a predetermined sewage
processing fee from the completion date of construction to the
completion date of inspection of Ji Zhuang Zi, XianYang Lu and
Bei Cang plants. After the inspection of these plants is completed,
processing fee will be collected from TSC based on the same principle

as for Dong Jiao plant as described above.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

W E  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BREFRITEBISL > SRALL AR T0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

=~ AFEIEARRY ()

(a)

AREBLRER ()

Joflo 35 K S PR R :

TihadeR i AR E EAR A 2 M5 7K
JE RS B A > 0 E AR P
BRI A R 40 R 2 5
AR ~ BT A M RETRE)
J1~ S5 BURBORAE RS L
FERRETIE

BRi&Rzsh - HAHIE R S e AL
B OR B AR5 K R > AR RR
JEI R R EEROKE > BNGKE
WAL R ROK BEH

#2006 4 12 H 6 H > &BiE
e 2007 4 EERER > A4
57K BT A TR A B PR A
A EAEIEAT A - S - T
Tl I 8% WOMESEL 1% ¥ 7 [ it

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued)

(a)

Processing of sewage (Continued)

All other sewage processing plants:

Initial sewage processing prices are predetermined, thereafter
processing price may be revised after considering various factors
including renovation of equipment, additional investment, power
and energy and labour force, and other significant changes of

government policy;

All sewage processing plants outside Tianjin are guaranteed a
minimum processing volume by their respective customers except
for Gui Yang. If the actual volume is lower than the guaranteed

volume, processing fee will be settled using the guaranteed volume.

On 6 December 2006, Guiyang Price Bureau confirmed a new price
for the year 2007 which will allow full recovery of all actual costs,
including operating cost, depreciation, income tax and a return of

8% on budgeted net assets of the plant.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

For the year ended 31 December 2008

— ~ AR ()

H AR AR K 7
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20054 12 A 25 HE&FT 9 sk > A
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(b)
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%,

HE 58 i R K AR R e A
o w) TlE AR de ARG 11 AR K Ak K
B MRERAUKRER
PEROKE > B IRES 2%
IRERK R -

WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1.  COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued)
(b)  Processing of tap water

Pursuant to an agreement reached with Qujing City Water General

Company on 25 December 2005, a subsidiary of the Company,

Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd., will provide tap water supply service

to Qujing City via the Yunnan Qujing tap water processing plant at

pre-determined pricing. In addition:

(i)  Processing price as pre-determined above may be revised after

considering various cost factors based on contract terms; and

(i)  Qujing City Water General Company guarantees a minimum
supply volume. If the actual volume is lower than that
guaranteed, supply fee will be settled using the guaranteed

volume.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Continued)
() Toll road collections
Tianjin Municipality Engineering Bureau (“TMEB”) granted
collection right for six toll stations from 1 July 2003 to 28 February
2029 to the Company but it is not allowed to transfer, lease or pledge

the right to other parties without TMEB’s consent.

In tandem, the Company entered into an agreement (“Toll Collection
Agreement”) with Tianjin Toll Collection Office on 24 July 2003

with the following principal terms:

. the Company engaged the Toll Collection Office to collect
the tolls at the six toll stations on its behalf for which it will

pay a management fee;

. the Company is to receive the actual tolls collected from the
six stations for the corresponding period/year, subject to
minimum toll fee for each period/year based on the forecast
traffic flow and tolls for the corresponding period/year as
stipulated in a traffic flow and tolls forecast report for the six
toll stations issued by a professional consulting company in

July 2003; and

. any shortfall to the Company between actual and the agreed
minimum will be compensated to the Company by the Toll

Collection Office.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group adopted the Basic Standard and 38 specific standards of the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of
Finance on 15 February 2006, and the Application Guidance for
Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises, Interpretation of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and other relevant regulations issued
thereafter (hereafter referred to as “the Accounting Standard for Business

Enterprises” or “CAS”).

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

2008 4
For the year ended 31 December 2008
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OF CAS

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2008 truly and completely present the financial position as of 31 December
2008 and the operating results, cash flows and other information for the
year then ended of the Group and Company in compliance with the

Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(1)  Accounting period

The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

(2)  Recording currency
The recording currency is Renminbi (“Rmb”).

(3) Measurement bases
The Group adopts historical cost convention, unless otherwise

measured in fair value, net realizable value or .present value.

(4)  Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Rmb using the

exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currency are translated into Rmb using the spot exchange rate on
the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from these
translations are recognised in profit or loss for the current period,
except for those attributable to foreign currency borrowings that
have been taken out specifically for the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated
at the balance sheet date using the spot exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. The effect of exchange rate changes on cash is

presented separately in the cash flow statement.
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

W~ R BORM RS ) 4

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
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(6)
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(6)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash comprises cash in
hand and deposits held at call with bank, cash equivalents refer to
short-term and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant

risk of changes in value.

Financial assets

Financial assets include receivables, which are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market, which include trade receivables and other receivables

(note 4(7)).

Recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised at fair value on the balance sheet when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. The related transaction cost of other financial
assets are included in the initial recognition amounts. A financial
asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset have expired or all substantial risks and

rewards of ownership of the financial asset have been transferred.

Receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

@)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses the carrying amount of a financial asset other
than that at fair value through profit or loss at each balance sheet
date. If there is objective evidence that the financial asset is impaired,

the Group shall determine the amount of any impairment loss.

If an impairment loss on a financial asset carried at amortised cost
has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured at the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred). If there is objective evidence that the value of the financial
asset recovered and the recovery is related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed and the amount of reversal is

recognised in profit or loss.

Receivables

Receivables comprise accounts receivable and other receivables.
Accounts receivable arising from sale of goods or rendering of services
are initially recognised at fair value of the contractual payments from
the buyer. Receivables are presented at amortised cost using the

effective interest method net of provision for bad debts.

Receivables that are individually significant are subject to separate
impairment assessment, if there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect the full amounts according to the original
terms, a provision for impairment of the receivable is established at
the difference between the carrying amount of the receivable and

the present value of estimated future cash flows.
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

W~ R BORM RS ) 4

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1) WEBGKE (350 (7). Receivables (Continued)
E2 )/ R P N S Receivables that are not individually significant together with those
BRLA B S AR A el (Y M O receivables that have been individually evaluated for impairment and
— A PR B R ) S T found not to be impaired are grouped on the basis of similar credit
B o MR AR B B AR iU risk characteristics. The impairment losses are determined,
oA~ BATSRME B s A considering the current conditions, on the basis of historical loss
WOIRFE G I B R R IR S e experience for the groups of receivables with the similar credit risk
A4 BURFIF DURRE 2 B R SRR YE characteristics.
o

® 1t (8)  Inventories
FECIEIEMEL - ER ~ 235 Inventories include raw materials, finished goods, spare parts and
FEAE S FE A4 > Fe A B ] S5 low cost consumables, and are presented at the lower of cost and net
FHEHAES R - realisable value.
T B8 R A A ST H 4% Cost is determined using the weighed average method. The cost of
B R EA BRI R - B finished goods comprises raw materials, direct labour and an
NTLPLRAEIE T RS TR B allocation of all production overheads expenditures incurred based
HT B RE B o IR(E S FE on normal operating capacity. Low cost consumables are expensed
SRS VB TR upon each usage.
15 B SRER AT B R LR Provisions for declines in the value of inventories are determined at
SEBUTHEIZERERTR o AT BHE the carrying value of the inventories net of their net realisable value.
e HEEE T DU B (E Net realisable value is determined based on the estimated selling
N el W A ki A a5 price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs to
A~ AT S 2 L AR BB 2 completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale and
R B HHEE o relevant taxes.
AR B AE BB AE T AR P K A The Group adopts the perpetual inventory system.
Tl o
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
(9) Long-term equity investments
Long-term equity investments comprise the Company’s long-term
equity investments in its subsidiaries, the Group’s long-term equity
investments in its joint ventures and associates as well as the long-
term equity investments where the Group does not have control,
joint control or significant influence over the investees, and which
are not quoted in an active market and whose fair value cannot be

reliably measured.

(a)  Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all investees over which the Company is able
to control, i.c. has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their operating
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
(including that derived from the convertible bonds and
warrants that are currently convertible or exercisable) is
considered to determine whether the Group has control over
the investee. Investments in subsidiaries are measured using
the cost method in the Company’s financial statements, and
adjusted using the equity method when preparing the

consolidated financial statements.

Long-term equity investments accounted for using the cost
method are measured at the initial investment cost. Investment
income is recognised in profit or loss for the cash dividends or
profit declared by the investee. Such recognition is made only
to the extent of the distributions received from accumulated
net profits of the investees arising after the investment was
made. Cash dividends or distributions received in excess of
such profits are regarded as a recovery of the initial cost of the

investments.
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W~ R BORM RS ) 4

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9) RHRRERE (49 (9)  Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b)

Vi gl

i SRR A SR R
B EREAA TS
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BT AR BUE IR T e o
B o MR BEE AR
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A

®)

Associates
Associates are all investees that the Group has significant

influence on their financial and operating policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method. Where the initial investment cost exceeds the Group’s
share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at
the time of acquisition, the investment is initially measured at
cost. Where the initial investment cost is less than the Group’s
share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at
the time of acquisition, the difference is included in profit or
loss for the current period and the cost of the long-term equity

investment is adjusted accordingly.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(9)  Long-term equity investments (Continued)

®)

Associates (Continued)

When using the equity method of accounting, the Group
recognised the investment income based on its share of net
profit or loss of the investee. The Group discontinues
recognising its share of net losses of an investee after the
carrying amount of the long-term equity investment together
with any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the investor’s net investment in the investee are reduced to
zero. However, if the Group has obligations for additional
losses and the conditions on recognition of provision are
satisfied in accordance with the accounting standards on
contingencies, the Group continues to recognise the
investment losses and the provision. For changes in owner’s
equity of the investee other than those arising from its net
profit or loss, the Group record directly in capital surplus its
proportion, provided that the Group’s proportion of
shareholding in the investee remains unchanged. The carrying
amount of the investment is reduced by the Group’s share of
the profit or cash dividends declared by an investee. The
unrealised profits or losses arising from the intra-group
transactions between the Group and its investees are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investees, on the
basis of which the investment gain or losses are recognised.
The loss on the intra-group transaction between the Group
and its investees, of which the nature is asset impairment, is
recognised in full amount, and the relevant unrealised gain or

loss is not allowed to be eliminated.
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- BEEGFECEMESET 40 4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9) RHRRERE (49 (9)  Long-term equity investments (Continued)
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Buildings

(¢)  Other long-term equity investments
Other long-term equity investments where the Group does
not have control, joint control or significant influence over
the investee, and which are not quoted in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are accounted

for using the cost method.

(10) Investment properties
Investment properties are buildings that held for the purpose of lease,
is measured initially at cost. Subsequent expenditures incurred for
an investment property is included in the cost of the investment
property when it is probable that economic benefits associated with
the investment property will flow to the Group and its cost can be
reliably measured, otherwise the expenditure is recognised in profit

and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The Group adopts the cost model for subsequent measurement of
the investment property. Buildings and land use rights are depreciated
or amortised to their estimated net residual values over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful lives, the estimated net residual
values expressed as a percentage of cost and the annual depreciation

(amortisation) rates of the investment properties are as follows:

Tt I S TEHFRMR EYTE (BN R

Annual

Estimated Estimated depreciation
useful lives residual value rate (amortisation) rate
40-50 4F 5% 1.9%-2.4%
40-50 years 5% 1.9%-2.4%
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(10)

(11)

Investment properties (Continued)

When an investment property is changed to an owner-occupied
property, it is transferred to fixed asset at the date of the change.
When an owner-occupied property is changed to be held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation, the fixed asset is transferred to
investment property at the date of the change at the carrying amount

of the property.

The estimated useful life, net residual value of the investment
property and the depreciation (amortisation) method applied are

reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate at each financial year-end.

An investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. The amount
of proceeds on sale, transfer, retirement or damage of an investment
property less its carrying amount and related taxes and expenses is

recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets comprise buildings, machinery and equipment, motor
vehicles, computer and electronic equipment and office equipment.
Fixed assets purchased or constructed by the Group are initially

measured at cost at the time of acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset are included in
the cost of the fixed asset when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the fixed asset will flow to the Group and its
cost can be reliably measured. The carrying amount of those parts
that are replaced is derecognized and all the other subsequent
expenditures are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.
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Machinery and equipment
TR L LAt
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2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(11) Fixed assets (Continued)

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate

the cost of the assets to their estimated residual values over their

estimated useful lives. For the fixed assets being provided for

impairment loss, the related depreciation charge is prospectively

determined based upon the adjusted carrying amounts over their

remaining useful lives.

The estimated useful lives, the estimated residual values expressed as

a percentage of cost and the annual depreciation rates are as follows:

TG

Estimated

useful lives

10-50 4F
10-50 years
10-20 4
10-20 years

5-10 4F
5-10 years

TEHF R

Estimated

residual value rate

0% % 5%
0% to 5%
0% % 5%
0% to 5%
0% % 5%
0% to 5%

EPTE R
Annual

depreciation rate

1.9% % 9.5%
1.9% t0 9.5%
4.8% % 10%
4.8% to 10%
9.5% % 20%
9.5% to 20%

Pipelines network laid outside the plant are included in structures

and are depreciated over their estimated useful lives of 25 years.

The estimated useful life, the estimated net residual value of a fixed

asset and the depreciation method applied to the asset are reviewed,

and adjusted as appropriate at least at each financial year-end.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R



2008 4%

5 0 A S U A R S R

Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

For the year ended 31 December 2008

W~ T BORA & S )

an

(12)

13)

W E ()

AT TR R E G > D
AT (P L Fo B (el 2 2
EA SRR HAB IR B B
O PR (R 2 i e TRV SR
B30 - R B A W
o

EEEEE R E - S TR
1 i O AN RE E A AR 2
eI MERBRZI A A o Wl R
& R WS B
FBR LR I (E AR BB B 1 &
HETAE RS -

Tk TR

TR TREAE MBI AR -
HFE A IR EEE - Hoph S
TERE TR B B i IR AE Bl %
PRI S DR AE S e R B T
AT RIARRE 2 BT 88 AL AT & A
feWepFR B E N - e TR
FTHE ] (R AEIS - B E &
D A U B I AR A8 o

O ¥
TV B L bl P RE R A
B DURATHR

(a) EHLAE R
i 7 R 0 AR BR 25
250 SEF- RS o AL
M e RSB R DAAE £
A PR RE B SR 2 [ 5 2
SRRy > A ERAE R e
o

WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(11)

(12)

(13)

Fixed assets (Continued)

A fixed asset classified as an asset held for sale is presented as other
current asset at the lower of the carrying amount and the fair value
less costs to sell An excess of the original carrying amount over the
fair value less the costs to sell is recognised as an asset impairment

loss.

A fixed asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The amount of proceeds
on sale, transfer, retirement or damage of a fixed asset net of its
carrying amount and related taxes and expenses is recognised in profit

or loss for the current period.

Construction in progress (“CIP”)

Construction in progress is measured at actual cost. Actual cost
comprises construction costs, other costs necessary to bring the the
fixed assets ready for their intended use. Borrowing costs that are
eligible for capitalization incurred before the assets are ready for their
intended use. Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets
when the assets are ready for their intended use, and depreciation

begins from the following month.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets including land use rights and concession rights are

measured at cost.

(a)  Land use rights
Land use rights are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 25 to 50 years. If the purchase
costs of land use rights and attached buildings cannot be
reliably allocated between the land use rights and buildings,

for the purchase costs are recognised as fixed assets.
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- BEEGFECEMESET 40 4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(13) fpEE (4) (13) Intangible assets (Continued)
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(b)  Concession rights
Concession rights represent the rights to charge users of public
service that the Group obtained under service concession
arrangements, which are amortised on the straight-line basis

over its respecting concession periods of 25 to 30 years.

(¢)  Periodical review of useful life and amortisation method

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, review and
adjustment on useful life and amortization method are

performed at each year-end.

(14) Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, construction in progress, intangible assets with finite
useful lives, investment properties measured using the cost model
and long-term equity investments in subsidiaries and associates are
tested for impairment if there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired at the balance date. If the result of the impairment test
indicates that the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its
carrying amount, a provision for impairment and an impairment
loss are recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.
A provision for asset Impairment is determined and recognised on
an individual asset basis. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of the group
of assets to which the asset belongs is determined. A group of assets
is the smallest group of assets that is able to generate independent

cash inflows

Once the asset impairment loss mentioned above is recognised, it is
not allowed to be reversed for the value recovered in the subsequent

periods.
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(15)

(16)

(17)

Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
and construction of a fixed asset that needs a substantially long period
of time of acquisition and construction for its intended use commence
to be capitalised and recorded as part of the cost of the asset when
expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs have been incurred,
and the activities relating to the acquisition and construction that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use have commenced.
The capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the asset under
acquisition or construction becomes ready for its intended use, the
borrowing costs incurred thereafter are recognised in profit or loss for
the current period. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
during periods in which the acquisition or construction of a fixed
asset is interrupted abnormally and the interruption lasts for more

than 3 months, until the acquisition or construction is resumed.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently stated at amortised cots using the
effective interest method. Borrowings of which the period is within
one year (one year included) are classified as the short-term

borrowings, and the others are classified as long-term borrowings.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include wages or salaries, bonuses,
allowances and subsidies, staff welfare, social security contributions,
housing funds, labour union funds, employee education funds and
other expenditures incurred in exchange for service rendered by

employees.

Employee benefits are recognised as a liability in the accounting
period in which an employee has rendered service, and as costs of

assets or expenses to whichever the employee service is attributable.
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W HEMEE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFHITEWISL - BRHALL AR T7T) 2008 4F-FE
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

- BEEGFECEMESET 40 4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(18) ELEPTf3BL & FEANEE DTS BL L (18) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

i
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are calculated and
recognised based on the differences arising between the tax base of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount (temporary
differences). Deferred tax asset is recognized for the deductible losses
that can be carried forward to subsequent years for deduction of the
taxable profit in in accordance with the tax law. No deferred tax
liability is recognised for a temporary difference arising from the
initial recognition of goodwill. No deferred tax asset or deferred tax
liability is recognized for the temporary differences resulting from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities due to a transaction other
than a business combination, which affects neither accounting profit
nor taxable profit (or deductible loss) At the balance sheet date,
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised

or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for deductible temporary differences,
deductible losses and tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available in the future against which the deductible temporary

differences, deductible losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference, and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. When it is probable that the
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates will be reversed in the foreseeable future and that the taxable
profit will be available in the future against which the temporary
differences can be utilized, the corresponding deferred tax assets are

recognized.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

- BEGgFECEMESET 40 4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(18) BREPHBLEEAELE B (18) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (Continued)
fit (%)
(RIS B IR AE P 80 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when:
FE AR AE BBt B R LASE B AR 1 7
I
o IREPTHBLEEMIEIE S . The deferred taxes are relate to the same tax payer within the
A B [ — B R AT group and same fiscal authority, and;
AR A — A E R
W B BRI 5
o AREBNEZANE A . That tax payer has a legally enforceable right to offset current
FHAHEDIEBIEE & tax assets against current tax liabilities.
H BT BL AR B HE
e

149

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




52 S e S AR B B
Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

W E  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRAFHITEWISL - BRHALL AR T7T) 2008 4F-FE
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

- BEEGFECEMESET 40 4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(19) WeA#ER (19) Revenue recognition

WOA B R IRAR SR IAE F AR
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JRARE A 7T 56 5 1 IRy AR 15
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jul

(iii) RVl R
F BT L ] B {71y 3
B B E R R B

€ o

R B IR ST
HE M AR -

The amount of revenue is determined in accordance with the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods
and services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue

is shown net of value-added tax, rebates, discounts and returns.

Revenue is recognised when the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group, the relevant revenue can be
reliably measured and specific revenue recognition criteria have been

met for each of the Group’s activities as described below:

(i)  Rendering of services

Services income is recognized upon services rendered.

(ii)  Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to
the buyer, the Company retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership
nor effective control over the goods sold, and it is probable
that the economic benefit associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group and the relevant revenue and costs can be

measured reliably.
(iii) Transfer of asset use rights

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using

the effective interest method.

Income from an operating lease is recognised on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease.
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(20)

21

(22)

Dividend distribution
Proposed cash dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in

which it is approved by the sharcholders’ meeting.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control and are de-consolidated from the date that such

control ceases.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted in accordance
with the accounting policies and accounting period of the Company
during the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, where
the accounting policies and the accounting periods are inconsistent

between the Company and subsidiaries.

All significant inter-group balances, transactions and unrealised
profits are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. The
portion of a subsidiary’s equity and the portion of a subsidiary’s net
profits and losses for the period not held by the Company are
recognized as minority interests and presented separately in the

consolidated balance sheet within equity and net profits respectively.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged in providing an individual product or service or a
group of related products or services and that is subject to risks and

returns that are different from those of other business segments.
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W HEMEE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFHITEWISL - BRHALL AR T7T) 2008 4F-FE
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

- BEEGFECEMESET 40 4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(23) HEZEEr AR

(23) Ciritical accounting estimates and judgments

A BE AR IR s AR R AR %
AR SR 7 BT > B
PR YR Z Gt A B B
AW -

TR B Rl S R A
T G EEME R
T (L B A R R 1 B -

TSR 1

AE AR R BT RS T R R A1
SR AELI 5 BLE DR R ER S SRR
DURE SRR - BB E R
2008 4F 12 H 31 H i RENCGRIA AT
TEWME

The Group continually evaluates the critical accounting estimates
and key judgments applied based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to

be reasonable under the circumstances.

The critical accounting estimates and key assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

outlined below:

Impairment for receivables

The Group determines the impairment of trade and other receivables
based on objective evidence of impairment and historical loss
experience of the respective individual balances. Management believes
that trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2008 are not

impaired.
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BREFRIEIAL » SAERE 0 2y NIRRT T)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The details of changes in accounting policies which are relevant to the

accounting period on 1 January 2008 have been reflected in the financial

statements as follows:

(@

Summary of the effects of the adoption of China Accounting
Standards Interpretation 2 No.5 (“CAS Int 2”)

In 2008, the Group adopted CAS Int 2 which is relevant to its

operations.

CAS Int 2 applies to contractual arrangements whereby a private
sector operator participates in the construction of infrastructure for
public sector services in way of Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”).
The adoption of CAS Int 2 resulted in a change in accounting policy
for the Group’s sewage treatment, water supply and toll roads

operations.

Before adoption of CAS Int 2, the Group’s sewage treatment, water
supply and toll roads assets were recorded as property, plant and
equipment. In accordance with CAS Int 2, the Group’s sewage
treatment infrastructure outside Tianjin and water supply
infrastructure was recognised as intangible assets, to the extent that
the Group receives a right to charge users of the public service. The
toll road infrastructure was recognised as financial assets, to the extent
that the Group has an unconditional contractual right to receive

cash at the direction of the grantor.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




N

SN

52 S e S AR B B
Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

W E  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRAFHITEWISL - BRHALL AR T7T) 2008 4F-FE
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
T~ EREGHBOREE (5 5. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b)  Erul IR o i I e R (b)  Effect of changes in accounting policies on prior period
T RIFARE S B FHE R R The following tables illustrate the adjustments made to each of the
QRS LA 5 20074 R R financial statements line item as a result of the adoption of CAS Int
#2007 412 A 31 HEEABRN 2 in respect of prior period presented.
BB RS R o
(i) 2007 “FEEFHE (1) Income statements for the year ended 31 December 2007
Ak A
Group Company
2007 K 2007 2007 K 2007
(&) /(WD) (T (Fkw) /(W) (k)
(as previously increase / (as previously increase /
reported) (decrease) (Restated) reported) (decrease) (Restated)
BEIA Income from operations 1,004,117 (2,075) 1,002,042 749,706 (2,075) 747,631
BERA Cost for operations (432,789) 25,388 (406,901) (266,559) 12,834 (253,725)
BB — 54 Financial expenses - net (146,283) 10,820 (135,463) (107,282) 10,820 (96,462)
BT Operating profit 276418 34,633 311,051 240,713 21,579 262,292
pilkE e Total profit 274,959 34,633 309,592 240,647 21,579 262,26
W B Less: Income tax expenses (92,387) (6,837) (99,224) (84,875) (4,485) (89,360)
I Net profit 182,572 27,796 210,368 155,772 17,094 172,866
RER Attributable to
/NG Shareholders of the
KA Company 183,813 25515 209328 155,772 17,094 172,866
SRR Minority inerests (1,41) 2,281 1,040 — — —
Bt Earnings per share
(ANR®TT) (in Rmb yuan)
ARG R Basic 0.13 0.02 0.15
TheE Rl Diluted 0.13 0.02 0.15
TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A

TRT R
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements

2008 4F- & (BREFINE RSN > SREE A NRETI0)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
T~ BRERTEOREE (9 5. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b)  Frwl B SE o i I Y S (b)  Effect of changes in accounting policies on prior period (Continued)
(ii) 2007412 H31 HEEEE (ii)  Balance sheets at 31 December 2007
&*
B A
Group Company
2007 B 2007 2007 B 2007
(R /(WD) (%) (i) /(WD) (k)
(as previously increase / (as previously increase /
reported) (decrease) (Restated) reported) (decrease) (Restated)
FiRm NON-CURRENT ASSETS
R Trade receivables due
after one year 697,763 326,980 1,024,743 697,763 326,980 1,024,743
f 2 Fixed assets 3,068,320 (998,681) 2,069,639 2,064,881 (130,611) 1,934,270
FRLE Construction in progtess 193,130 (76,943) 116,187 30,257 — 30,257
b3 (- Intangible assets 677,667 900,203 1,577,870 564,114 (164,189) 399,925
bk RE g Other non-current assets 117,943 (94,165) 23,778 19,770 755 20,525
FE G At Total non-current assets 4,960,390 57,394 5,017,784 4,196,841 32,935 4,229,776
i k) TOTAL ASSETS 5,886,672 57,394 5,944,066 4,783,856 32,935 4,816,791
S RS LIABILITIES AND 155
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY -
Jeihi o £ 5 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
EEpraR At Deferred income tax liabilities — 14,348 14,348 — 8,231 8,231
FiRm g B Total non-current liabilities 1,793,523 14,348 1,807,871 1,182,273 8,231 1,190,504
Rl At TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,878,634 14,348 2,892,982 1,907,432 8,231 1,915,663
Resii% SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LN General reserves 229,865 2,471 232,336 229,865 2471 232,336
KA BT Undistributed profits 852,737 38,087 890,824 838,543 22,233 860,776
SRR AT Equity attributable
JBEHORERS At to the shareholders
of the Company 2,893,168 40,558 2,933,726 2,876,424 24,704 2,901,128
BYBORNE MINORITY INTERESTS 114,870 2,488 117,358 — — —
JBehERs it Total shareholders’ equity 3,008,038 43,046 3,051,084 2,876,424 24,704 2,901,128

SRR TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 5,886,672 5739 5944066 4783,856 32935 4816791
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

5. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(¢c)  Effect of changes in accounting policies on the current year

The following tables illustrate the increased or dereased amounts in

respect of each of the financial statements line items of current year

if the Group and the Company continues to adopt the relevant

accounting policies of prior periods.

(i) Effect on the income statements for the year ended 31 December

2008

Income from operations
Cost for operations
Financial expenses - net
Income tax expenses

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

Earnings per share
(in Rmb yuan)
Basic
Diluted

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
TRT R

i

Bim,/ (W4)
Group

increase /(decrease)

(6,843)
32,893
11,118
9,292)

25,633
2,243

0.02
0.02

Al
Bim,/ (W4)
Company

increase /(decrease)

(6,843)
11,825
11,118
(4,025)

12,075
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

F > EREFHEORE W (40

(©)  FrwhBORSE A BB 0y 50 8
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i
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i Hide
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FURANT -

Bifk

Tax by category
ERTRR
Enterprise income tax

HEEB

Value Added Tax (VAT)

BB
Business tax
IR KA B

City construction tax and education surcharge

WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

5.  SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Effect of changes in accounting policies on the current year (Continued)

(i) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2008

ASSETS

Trade receivables due after one year

Fixed assets

Construction in progress

Intangible assets

Other non-current assets

LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax liabilities

ah gl
Wi/ (W) Wi,/ (RA)
Group Company

increase /(decrease) increase /(decrease)

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

General reserve
Undistributed profits

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Minority interests

6. TAXATION

331,254 331,254
(1,614,475) (123,160)
(145,382) —
1,614,685 (159,057)
(91,520) —
23,640 12,258
3,679 3,679
62,512 33,100
66,191 36,779
4,731 —

The applicable taxes and tax rates of the Group are mainly presented as

follows:

LIS

Tax rate

7.5% 125%
7.5% to 25%
6% 1 17%

6% to 17%

5%

5%

7% K 3%
7% and 3%

BLAE
Basis of Tax

T AN 1548

Taxable income

TEAN BN (ERE (EANBL B A B 6 B A e LA I B R
MBS W R FHE R EIERLAZ B SR AR R 5

Taxable value added amount (Tax payable is calculated using the taxable
sales amount multiplied by the effective tax rate less deductible VAT
input of current period)

FE AL A

Gross service income

BB SIR BL

The amount of business tax or VAT
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

N> B

)

2R ARAFRK G 200743 H 16 Hil
BT R RSB A B
(TRSBLE D) > BT3Bl B 2008 4
VA1 H AT o A w8 A A SE TR
BiZE 2008 4F 1 A 1 HYE33% dH% 4

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

TAXATION (Continued)

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved the Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “new EIT Law”),
which is effective from 1 January 2008. Under the new EIT Law, the
enterprise income tax rate applicable to the Company will be changed

from 33% to 25% effective from 1 January 2008.

25% -
£~ Y B i NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 BFEe (1) CASH AND BANK BALANCES
foft i
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Bl MERAT 3K Cash on hand and in bank 952,747 359,741 319,140 106,403
W s IR Less: Restricted bank deposits included
ﬁuﬂi\‘ E@% FE%&'?? in non-current assets
i (GERE(a) (note (a)) (43,700) (19,770) (43,700) (19,770)
909,047 339,971 275,440 86,033
Hrpr Including:
fed TR — Special funds for construction
%4a GER(D)) in progress (note (b)) 38,609 58,116 38,609 29,877
—4E R — Restricted bank deposits due
ZIRTIEEK within one year
(§EFE(c)) (note (c)) 22,000 15,000 13,000 6,000
(@) 200812 A31H > %% (@)  Asat 31 December 2008, the restricted bank deposits (note
FREAT AR B 3 B —4E D) 7(11)) represent deposits for entrusted loan due after one year
M ZE R R (2007 (2007: project bids).
o THHBUERES) (Y
i) e
(b) GEEIHRHERESEERG (b)  The special funds for construction in progress represent the
TR TR A R LA (R P unutilised balances of the special loans for sewage processing
He AU P PO BRA T A7 R BRAR o projects.
(©) MHB&A—FENTYMIER (c)  The bank deposits represented deposits for project bids due

TR E eI AR
22,000 FIC (20074F : AR
# 15,000 FoC) o

within one year of Rmb22 million (2007:Rmb15 million).

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
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£~ R A

WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 HEBURK (2) TRADE RECEIVABLES
FEN IR AN T Details of Accounts receivable are as follows:
e A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
JEMSC HE K /4 ] Due from TSC for:
— 5K R PR — Construction of sewage
Bl A processing plants 466,185 466,185 466,185 466,185
— 5K — Sewage processing services 955,992 616,043 955,992 616,043
‘ 1,422,177 1,082,228 1,422,177 1,082,228
W RIS Less: non-current portion (697,763) (697,763) (697,763) (697,763)
HIRGHHEKR Individually significant 724,414 384,465 724,414 384,465
JUph— i) Due from others - current 74,455 58,479 18,465 17,440
798,869 442,944 742,879 401,905

() MRIBEALFIR20014£9 H 24 ()
H ELPE K RIEEATHY (I K
BEH (PEER) freR TR
ek ([ @ik thak)) >
/NI O ONGIE T3 4
I I 1 1 =
75 7K B B R RS » bl

Pursuant to an agreement (“Construction Agreement”)
between the Company and TSC dated 24 September 2001,
the Company is to provide construction services to TSC in

respect of the three plants of Xian Yang Lu, Ji Zhuang Zi and

Bei Cang. The principal terms of the Construction Agreement

are summarised below:

[CEARE:SUS S N .

o MREWE > ANFE . a fee will be paid by TSC during the period of
PRI 15 7K 3 B AT 22 construction as a reward to remunerate the Company
TR - Pk for accepting the responsibility to construct the sewage
O i [ 2 T AR ) 3 processing plants.

gaie JiMRI(VTid
B Ao RURIE B RS
7K i B R AE £ AR
i
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

L~ WBHRME (g
2 REMOREK (4

132 B SO ek
PRok ox m] e 45 F AR 4%
A%/ ) B i ) BA A
HH AR L
VAR /A RiEE
KB REEES
JEAE AU - AR L
B S AR R
I8 N LA B E
A REREE 5

AR AN R K
PRRAE R TR
EMEE LUK

RIEA LA FBPEK A
AT A ek o 7RIS
B35 7K jik PR R B i
BA% > BT )RR B
FE5 % IR A5 K
PR Hh ik 1 EL A

ERAT ©

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(2) TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

A fee is payable by TSC in advance on a monthly basis
according to the percentage of completion of the
respective construction projects estimated by the
Company. The percentage of completion of each project
will be adjusted on a quarterly basis according to the
certifications issued by qualified independent surveyors

or engineers;

the Company is responsible for the funding of the

construction cost of these plants, and

upon commencement of operations of these sewage
processing plants, the rights and obligations between
the Company and TSC will follow the terms as specified
in the Sewage Processing Agreement as applicable to

the Tianjin plants.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R
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£~ MEBEME (9
2 WO (40

(b)

AN HE] R 2003 4F-8 H 25 H #L
Pk A RIERT T — A1
i ([AfEED - g%
A et -

o ARFAEGKEH
JRFE e TR IE
Bt 5

o POkAFAREFMMIE
H U B B B Je £k
TR 5 7K i HE R
b3 B 2 R

o HOKAEFIMINE &
TR I [F] o A
% I % 33 AN )
Bl & H 4% — Ut i
Pk A w DLR T fE (A
WETANA -
20044F4 H 17 H »
7Ky m R4 AL B
R R AL
A E o

L ROK R B 2005 4F
REEATER > B4 2007 4
12 27 HBSE =AM
BRI A BURALER R T
PRSP R - bl
HREHE/M AR 6.98
5t o

WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(2) TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)  On 25 August 2003, the Company entered into an agreement

with TSC (“Co-operative Agreement”). The principal terms

of which are:

the Company would be responsible for the overall

execution of the construction of the three plants.

TSC would be responsible for making use of the original
loans from two foreign banks (the “Foreign Loans”) to
fund certain property, plant and equipment used in these

plants;

TSC will sell to the Company these Foreign Loans
funded property, plant and equipment after their
installation and the receipt of the relevant verification
reports, at their carrying value. On 17 April 2004, TSC
confirmed its intention to settle its debt due to the

Company with these mentioned assets.

As mentioned, the construction of these assets was completed

in late 2005, and based on the third party completion

verification reports dated 27 December 2007 which Tianjin

Finance Bureau approved, the verified value of these completed

assets amounted to about Rmb698 million.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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W HEMEE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRFFRIERIAL - G 0 2 NRIET0)
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
L~ M HEREE @
2 MEBORAk ()
(c) HEHEFH

R BB e ek
FVEE 5 P U 480
Y — R i
ZEE ([HEE])®
20074 H 17 H it R
TR BR TR T R
C A E PR AT LAD)
H I i)y AR R
RAFAL F IS
JiT 7 ¥R 4> H & &l
7

20084 F4 8 H > TiEk
Bkt Lk DU B
B 1 28 ) N ARAE
BV

2008 4F 12 7 » PEK2A
Al R A
A T % PR AT R
HET A BURHEE -

2009 4F 4 H > KT
PRk v (22 i A
NG KIEBE LN
RM 35T -

SR bk DL T 1R
TRH 28 o I S e A
SERL > #E 2008 4F 12
31 HEER RS ERE
B G A S
ANEH6.98 57T > #l
JRE FF) R S B 23 5
FREEGK (2007
e NR¥6.98 15
Jo) e

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(2) TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(©)  Settlement plan:

On 17 April 2007, Tianjin Construction Administration
Committee, (“TJCAC”), the government body
overseeing the management of construction and
operation of infrastructure in Tianjin, reconfirmed that
the Tianjin Municipality has agreed to the settlement
of the Company’s debts in manner as agreed by TSC in
(b) above. In addition, the remaining debt outstanding
after such assets settlement will be settled by way of

cash.

On 8 April 2008, TJCAC confirmed that there will be
no legal obstacle to the above mentioned assets

settlement.

In December 2008, Tianjin Finance Bureau approved

TSC to sell the assets above to the Company.

Subsequent to year end, in April 2009, TSC settled
Rmb350 million of its debts to the Company.

Based on the procedures undertaken to recover the debts
as described above, the Directors believe that the amount
due from TSC is eventually fully recoverable. On the
basis that the assets settlement will eventually be
finalized, about RmbG698 million due from TSC as at
31 December 2008 , representing the verified cost of

the assets has been reclassified to non- current trade

receivables (2007: Rmb698 million).

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
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£~ MEBEME (9 7.
2 WO (40

(d

(e

(®)

7E (o) Pt A 28 73 5T £ 1

WO R AT

ALK Within one year
124 One to two years
24ERLE Over two years

i 2008 4F 12 A 31 H B
AP EEAALT 5% (&
5%) VA b R PLRENR 63 1) I R
R (2007412 331 0 -
) o

Ji% 2008 4F- 12 7 31 H #EICHE
EGIFRA T YN/ Cox ey
AR 142 58T
5 JE i HR B 98 %
(20074F12A31H + AR¥
L1315 #I0f99%) o Hrp
IR AR 722 B E
I 2R EA AR 698
HETT (2007412 H31H -
NRWE 443 B E UM AR
698 FI & TT) o

B HRFEMEE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFERITERAL - S8R0 2 AR T 0)
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(2) TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(d) Aging of trade receivables prior to the reclassification

mentioned in (c) is as follows:

ahF gl
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
771,614 442,944 721,733 401,905
27,255 — 21,146 —
697,763 697,763 697,763 697,763
1,496,632 1,140,707 1,440,642 1,099,668

(e)  Asat31 December 2008 there were no trade receivables from
any of the shareholders of the Company who hold 5% or
more of voting shares (31 December 2007: Nil).

(f)  As at 31 December 2008 the top five debtors is about
Rmb1,472 million, representing 98% of total trade receivables.
(31 December 2007: Rmb1,131 million and 99%) Among
which, Rmb722 million is aged within one year and Rmb698
million is over 2 years (31 December 2007: Rmb443 million
and Rmb698 million).

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRFFIEISE > efB ey NRHE T58) 2008 4F-FE
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
£~ B RN () 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3 HAbRERBGK (3) OTHER RECEIVABLES
HoA RESCR LA - Other receivables include:
af A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
T HE & MR & Project deposits 29,893 35,500 25,550 30,500
F& P A Other receivables from customers 8,914 19,836 — 10,810
JENS T ] EOE Receivables from subsidiaries — — 262,000 33,958
HoAs Others 13,330 23,433 13,219 7,191
52,137 78,769 300,769 82,459
a) A UFHARECRIR B2 i a)  The ageing of the Group’s other receivables is analysed below:
T
2008 2007
ot | s e &% B sibe il
% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
—HELAK Within 1 year 14,060 27% 70,145 89%
—H| 4 1 to 2 years 32,067 61% 8,291 11%
. TR =4 2 to 3 years 5,677 11% 333 0%
=AML Over 3 years 333 1% — 0%
52,137 100% 78,769 100%
PRIFIES Ve Sh ] S A]

TRT R



2008 4%

5 0 A S U A R S R

Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

For the year ended 31 December 2008

L~ MR MEE (g
3 HfbmEBok ()

(b)

c)

Ji% 2008 4 12 A 31 H H AbfE
S B o R A AR
5% (% 5%) DAbRYAER
TSR K (2007 4
") -

Ji% 2008 4 12 A 31 H HAbfE
e GRS I Cox.1
At 38,514 T 00 > A
JE SR B AR 74% (2007 4F
12 A 31 H : 47,420 Tt Hl
60%) © HrhiRiEE—4FLL
M 2,136 ToC (2007 4 = A
R¥45452F ) > —FE
—A4£30,938 T-OC (2007 4F -
ANR#E1,785F00) » AR
£ 5440 F6 (2007 4F = A
R¥E183FoL) o

WA R MEE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BREIEDISN > SRty AR T7T)
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(3) OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b)  Asat 31 December 2008 there were no receivables from any
of the sharcholders of the Company who hold 5% or more of
voting shares (2007: Nil).

¢)  Asat 31 December 2008, the top five debtors is about Rmb
39 million, representing 74% of total other receivables (31
December 2007: 47 million and 60%). Among which, amount
of Rmb 2,136 thousand (2007: Rmb 45,452 thousand) is aged
within one year, amount of Rmb 30,938 thousand (2007:
Rmb 1,785 thousand) is between 1 to 2 years, and amount of
Rmb 5,440 thousand ( 2007: Rmb 183 thousand) is over 2

years.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

£~ WB R ()

4 BT
@ T SRR T
LAERLA
1-24F One to two years

(b)

MR 1 4D ITEAT K
ARy hoK AR B T AR
Ho FATREMARL %
I ARAT o

Ji%2008 4 12 4 31 HA12007
412 A 31 BT SRR
TR AN S5% (55%)
DAk SR RHE IR 1 FRR Y R

ESd
B\ ©

Within one year

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(4) PREPAYMENTS

(a)  The aging of prepayments is analysed as below:

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

ot Al
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
59,303 57,964 30,391 12,984
22,684 — 3,422 —
81,987 57,964 33,813 12,984

The prepayments aged over one year were mainly for recycled

water pipeline connection for which the projects have not

complete and hence balance remain outstanding.

(b)  Asat 31 December 2008 and 2007 there were no prepayments

to any of the shareholders of the Company who hold 5% or

more of voting shares.

5 R (5) INVENTORIES
foft i
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
JEM R Raw materials 8,458 5,186 3,257 2,931
JEE L Finished goods 3,768 3,768 — —
ESaRil Spare parts and low cost
REG R consumables 222 680 103 103
12,448 9,634 3,360 3,034
W A7 R A Less: Provision for declines
in the value
of inventories (3,000) (3,000) — —
9,448 6,634 3,360 3,034
PRIFIES Ve Sh ] S A]

TRT R
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£~ B EME (@0

MM BGR

JENTHEK AR (BiEEE 2 (b)) Due from TSC (note 7(2)(b))
TH B T R AR
MR (GERR)

SR

LB R T A PRSI (A )
DR AC S i B T 2 AR 515 1 ol 2
WO FE T PR R Y S/ NVEAT B o

T e B ¢

FAT
(FEF¥(a))
B RIRE
(E A
(FER(c))

e
(F R (b))

oA = A B

Receivables from toll road
concession (note)

Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in an associate

Other long-term
equity investments

WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RECEVABLES DUE AFTER ONE YEAR

ot N
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
697,763 697,763 697,763 697,763
331,254 326,980 331,254 326,980
1,029,017 1,024,743 1,029,017 1,024,743

Note:

Receivables from toll road concession represent the minimum guaranteed toll fee from
Toll Collection Office, calculated with reference to forecast traffic flow over the

concession period.

LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Less: Impairment provision for
long-term investment

bt gl
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
— — 1,112,981 742,751
— — (22,000) (22,000)
— — 1,090,981 720,751
39,878 63,979 — —
4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
43,878 67,979 1,094,981 724,751

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRFFIEISE > efB ey NRHE T58) 2008 4E ¥
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
£ - BB R ) 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 RBBHERE (%) (7) LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (Continued)
(a) T2ovAE] (a)  Investments in subsidiaries
BRRFAIERR (Fi5) A The Company’s subsidiaries are registered and established in
PR FIFEAF s LA > JoAth China other than Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection
0N BT P R 8 A A (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd, which is registered in Hong Kong,.
j o
AN TP T Rl B AT TR All subsidiaries are limited liability companies.
BEAH -
e i
Carrying Value
UL GEe S 2007 4 20084F  FELLE
BA  12H431H RA3H R
Investment 31 December AAEHEM 31 December Interest
cost 2007 Additions 2008 held
%
[iE BN Xian Capital Water Co., Ltd. 270,000 — 270,000 270,000 100
AL
BUHIR R KBS Hangzhou Tianchuang Water 180,212 180,212 — 180,212 70
ARATE Co., Ltd
s A3 K Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd. 108,081 108,081 — 108,081 90
HRAF
KEHKHRAR  Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd. 98,000 98,000 - 98,000 98
BMNAIEKT Guizhou Capital Water Co., Ltd. 95,000 95,000 — 95,000 95
HRAH
PRE:IESI Tianjin Capital Environmental
(FFiE) AT Protection (HK) Co., Led. 62,988 62,988 — 62,988 100
BRI Wendeng Capital Water Co., Led. 48,000 48,000 — 48,000 100
AL
KPR BB R Wuhan Tianchuang Environmental
ARRAT Protection Co.,Ltd 47,230 — 47,230 47,230 100
L B Fuyang Capital Water Co., Ltd. 44,100 44,100 — 44,100 99.9
ARRATE
L GHESNG Anguo Capital Water Co., Ltd. 41,000 — 41,000 41,000 100
ARATE
IR TR Chibi Capital Water Co., Ltd. 33,250 33,250 — 33,250 99.75
HRAF
H AT Baoying Capital Water Co., Ltd. 26,600 26,600 — 26,600 70
HREAL AT
PNCIIES) Tianjin Capital New Materials 26,500 26,500 — 26,500 71
ARATE Co., Ltd.
i E IS Honghu Capital Water Co., Ltd. 18,020 18,020 — 18,020 90
HRAH
PRET 7B Tianjin Jinghai Capital Water 12,000 2,000 10,000 12,000 100
IKBEATRR AT Co., Ld

KASMERHE TR Tianjin Kaiying Environmental
PR IR 2 7 Engineering Technology
Consultant Co., Ltd. 2,000 — 2,000 2,000 100

742,751 370,230 1,112,981

AEEAREAER B EE B SOE R The Group is not exposed to significant restriction on recovery or remittance of

Y B R PR - return on long-term investments

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
TRT R
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£~ MEBEME (9
ERIRREB Y (40

7

(b)

WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(7)  LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (Continued)

VR (b)  Investment in an associate:
20084F 12 H 31 H 2008
31 December 2008 2008
R
FYhiE el
WEEA  Interest&
Registered voting HRMH  ARKH A
Registered shares Total Total  #HEMA Net
Capital held assets liabilities Revenue profit
KEFBEHEMATIRA T Tianjin International
Machinery Co.,Lted 120,000 27.5% 450,201 294,943 1,133,723 5,461

KA PR AT IR A R —
2% s M K i A 1 B
FEA PO E AR > HE
55 o B BR DR A A BT
FRIEME - R ER
BT H K TR BT %
dll N VRS R
AR S 4 o

A% 2 3B K T I P A AT R
NFIICEE BT

Tianjin International Machinery Co., Ltd. (TIMC) is a sino-
foreign joint venture registered in the Tianjin Economics
Development Area. The principal activities of TIMC include
research and development, production and sale of environment
protection equipment; engineering technical consultation;

trading; manufacturing and sale of general equipment.

The movements of the Group’s investment in TIMC are as

Tianjin International

KB P A AT PR A )

HHEA 2008 4 1 H 2 HET A7
ek - ASEBISHEA AR
T B P B A B A W) 459% 1%
REH 17.5% AR 30 H
5 TC Y B R R A R TR
BLERREMAF o ZMk
TR LAE R 2008 4F 12 1
16 H5ER, > AEERERR T A
RWs s B E TR EERIGE -
AL BTE B W T R
WM AT PR 2 ) B IR HE AR 4TS
HHAFERLE -

follows:

WAz s

Foba)
L] 2007 4 S 2008 4
#EPA 124310 Share of profit 12 J1 31 H
Investment 31 December — ASH{JEH  of associated 31 December
cost 2007 Disposals company 2008
Machinery Co.,Ltd 33,000 63,979 (24,881) 780 39,878

Pursuant to an agreement dated 2 January 2008, the Group
disposed 17.5% out of 45% of its equity interest in TIMC at
a consideration of Rmb30 million to Tianjin Machinery and
Electric Industry Holding Group Company (TMEIC). The
disposal was completed on 16 December 2008 for which the
Group recorded a Rmb5 million gain. The Group still retains

significant influence in TIMC after this disposal.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

£~ MEBRME (a0
7 RMUBHESLE (4

2008 4
For the year ended 31 December 2008
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(7)  LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (Continued)
(c)  Asat 31 December 2008, impairment provision for long-term
investment of approximately Rmb22 million (2007: Rmb22
million) represents the estimated impairment of the investment

in Tianjin Capital New Materials Co., Ltd..

(c)  #IE20084F12 A31H » A
IRV B R TR AIZE M
A RS T R A A
# B NE¥22 5 BT (2007
2 HEIE) o

B 5 A

i3y

Buildings

JEfE

2007412 F1 31 H
AR [ R (B £9)

2008412 J1 31 H

RAlorE

2007 % 12 A 31 A

AR

AR [ (B £9)

2008412 J1 31 H

WA Al

2007 % 12 A 31 A
A G (R 9)
2008 4 12 A 31 A

B
20084E12 431 H

2007412431 H

2008 “EJE - ASEBIFES 160
Hot (JRE 24 HETT) HFEEK
FBH > BSERERZ AL ik
Pyl e B o

(8) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
bk A

Group Company
Cost
At 31 December 2007 152,751 102,279
Transfer to fixed assets (note 7(9)) (23,7406) —
At 31 December 2008 129,005 102,279
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2007 (10,163) (6,974)
Charge for the year (2,942) (2,429)
Transfer to fixed assets (note 7(9)) 2,792 —
At 31 December 2008 (10,313) (9,403)
Impairment provision
At 31 December 2007 (5,000) —
Transfer to fixed assets (note 7(9)) 5,000 —
At 31 December 2008 — —
Net book value
At 31 December 2008 118,692 92,876
At 31 December 2007 137,588 95,305
A building with net book value of Rmb16 million (Cost: Rmb24
million) has been changed to self-use in year of 2008. It has been
accounted for as fixed assets since its change of use.

TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A

TRT R



5 5 it o 0 AR A R
Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements

Bl
20074111 H
R G HER]
fRRESE 2 B W

HHE
BOH
RAEGHE
WHERY
PR E
REFD

20074E 12 A31 H (il

RAEFHE

B A A
(B £(8))

KA D

2008 4 12 H 31 H

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2007

— as previously reported (46,354) (390,868) (177,118) (55,801) (670,141)

— Effect of adopting

CAS Int 2 46,354 13,881 17,323 8,356 85,914

As restated — (376,987) (159,795) (47,445) (584,227)
Reclassification — (59) 59 — —
Charge for the year — (91,188) (13,851) (8,302) (113,341)
Transfer to investment

properties — 2,792 — — 2,792
Disposals — — 1,134 2,457 3,591
At 31 December 2007 (Restated) — (465,442) (172,453) (53,290) (691,185)
Charge for the year — (86,100) (11,949) (9,905) (107,954)
Transfer from investment

properties (note 7(8)) — (2,792) — — (2,792)
Disposals — — 446 552 998
At 31 December 2008 — (554,334) (183,956) (62,643) (800,933)

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008

2008 4L (BREIEDISN > SRty AR T7T)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
L~ BRI () 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
9 I s B A TR (9) FIXED ASSETS AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
(a) bk (@)  Group
FRE & UL L]
BN BN Bl
Buildings ~ Machinery Motor
W and and vehicles A
Road  structures  equipment  and others Total
(EREGD))
(note (1))
WA Cost
2007411 H At 1 January 2007
H — as previously reported 185,418 2,633,937 608,997 118,979 3,547,331
it edapy il — Effect of adopting
FRRESE 2 SEB AT CASInt2 (185418)  (561,240)  (353,958) (18,927)  (1,119,543)
ERI As restated — 2,072,697 255,039 100,052 2,427,788
ENE Reclassification — 1,629 (1,629) — —
R TREBA Transfers — 358,505 2,974 1,410 362,889
AGESASE Additions — 572 1,330 7,112 9,014
[ kT Transfer to investment
b properties — (23,746) — — (23,746)
AR Disposals — (37) (6,767) (3,317) (10,121)
2007412 A 31 B (i) At 31 December 2007 (Restated) — 2,409,620 250,947 105,257 2,765,824
TR LREA Transfers — 105 L119 1,515 2,739 =
Eid-qia) i YN Transfer from investment /
(BF3EE(8)) properties (note 7(8)) — 23,746 — — 23,746
AGESASE Additions — — 11 6,480 6,491
AR Disposals — (358) (713) (1,381) (2,452)
2008 4F 12 31 H At 31 December 2008 — 2,433,113 251,364 111,871 2,796,348
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRFFIEISE > efB ey NRHE T58) 2008 4F-FE
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
£~ B RN () 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
9 BEREEREELE (5) (9)  FIXED ASSETS AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
(Continued)
(@) #HF (5 (@) Group (Continued)
FiE R Y
s B Rty
Buildings ~ Machinery Motor
il and and vehicles At
Road structures  equipment  and others Total
(REREG))
(note (1))
WA Impairment
200741 A1 H At 1 January 2007
ER 1) — as previously reported — — (3,760) — (3,760)
BRI aEER — Effect of adopting
A TRESHS 2 A8 W R CASInt2 — — — - —
Filifg As restated — — (3,760) — (3,760)
AAEHE Charge for the year — — (308) (932) (1,240)
2007F 12 H31 B (&) At 31 December 2007 (Restated) — — (4,068) (932) (5,000)
BBV E A Transfer from investment
(MrzE-L(8)) properties (note 7(8)) — (5,000) — - (5,000)
20084E 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2008 — (5,000) (4,068) (932) (10,000)
i Net book value
20084E12 31 H At 31 December 2008 — 1,873,779 63,340 48,296 1,985,415
20074E12 A 31 H (Tk4g) At 31 December 2007 (Restated) — 1,944,178 74,426 51,035 2,069,639
TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A

TRT R
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

£~ MEBEME (9
Wl R TR (5

9

(b)

A

i
2007F1ALH
Al
its St S
SRR 2 BB

M

TR LEEA
AREEHLAIE
A

2007412 131 A (E#lf%)
FERTREA

AAE St A

AW

2008 4 12 H 31 H

Bt
20074111 H
its St S
fRRESE 2 B W
E R
Eigg)

R
KD

2007412 131 A (E#lf%)
AAERHRE

AR

2008 4F 12 131 8

e
2008 4F 12 31 H

20074E 12 A 31 H (FHAR)

B HRFEMEE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFERITERAL - S8R0 2 AR T 0)
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(9) FIXED ASSETS AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
(Continued)

(b) Company

FE R AL
[is T/t B
Buildings ~ Machinery Motor
H and and vehicles At
Road  structures  equipment  and others Total
(FEREGD))
(note (i)
Cost
At 1 January 2007
— as previously reported 185,418 1,955,069 204,282 75,758 2,420,527
— Effect of adopting
CAS Int2 (185,418) — — — (185,418)
As restated — 1,955,069 204,282 75,758 2,235,109
Reclassification — 1,629 (1,629) — —
Transfers — 357,784 2,159 1,262 361,205
Additions — — 175 4,705 4,880
Disposals — — — (1,724) (1,724)
At 31 December 2007 (Restated) — 2,314,482 204,987 80,001 2,599,470
Transfers — 105 — 32 137
Additions — — 198 2,977 3,175
Disposals — — (525) (795) (1,320)
At 31 December 2008 — 2,314,587 204,660 82,215 2,601,462
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2007
— as previously reported (46,354) (369,744) (150,296) (43,879) (610,273)
— Effect of adopting
CAS Int 2 46,354 — — — 46,354
As restated — (369,744) (150,296) (43,879) (563,919)
Reclassification — (59) 59 — —
Charge for the year — (87,540) (8,977) (6,318) (102,835)
Disposals — — — 1,554 1,554
At 31 December 2007 (Restated) — (457,343) (159,214) (48,643) (665,200)
Charge for the year — (82,893) (7,736) (8,512) (99,141)
Disposals — — 444 179 623
At 31 December 2008 — (540,236) (166,506) (56,976) (763,718)
Net book value
At 31 December 2008 — 1,774,351 38,154 25,239 1,837,744
At 31 December 2007 (Restated) — 1,857,139 45,773 31,358 1,934,270

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

W E  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BREFRITEBISL > SRALL AR T0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

L~ MW )
9 BIREYERERAER TR (D)

(b A

()

(i)

(i)

(%)

AR ) A I T M
YRR AL
RS o

2008 4FFE R A B ZEIL
ARERERNIE
E 599 | &0
NOHE #TT (20074
104 HHITR9 HH

Jo) e

2008412 H31H >
AL A F AT R
KA R FAE 2 7 [ &
BRI (E A S A
R¥ 231185 (2007
o NR¥2.05 8
Jo) e AR 2008
F12A31HIE > 25t
FEHEA AR 11 H
EJT (2007412 7 31
H:15Aa#%1T %
JA T K SE RS By B B
IR S E S - AN E]
R B B
EERHETS -

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FIXED ASSETS AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

(Continued)

(b) Company (Continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

All of the Group’s buildings, structures and plants are

located in the PRC.

The Group’s depreciation expense of Rmb99 million
(2007:Rmb104 million) has been included in cost of
sales and Rmb9 million (2007: Rmb9 million) in

administrative expenses.

Of the Group’s net book value of fixed assets as at 31
December 2008, about Rmb231 million (2007:
Rmb205 million) relates to the Company’s subsidiary,
Tianjin Water Recycling Co. Ltd. As at 31 December
2008, the accumulated loss is approximately Rmb11
million (2007: Rmb15 milion). However, given the
promising prospects of water recycling industry as
encouraged by the PRC government, the Directors
believe there is no indication at the current stage that

these assets may be permanently impaired.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R
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2008 4%

For the year ended 31 December 2008

£~ MEBEME (9
9 REEAEREETHR (4)

(b) AW (5

(iv)

v)

(vi)

F A 0 - A A
LA A S AR
W31 HEIT (2007
o KR 476 B E
o) WAMEERE >
7 R T A R
WS E T s o B8
T b A A E AR
HECR BR A I T R
15 0 RS A F L
JURE REWRS A AFAEAT
LA A G
7 A K 0
YN

IZIENEcE TRk -,
2008412 431 H
f R T (B 4 2 AR
W 690 B # G -

UL 2008 4F 12 A 31
H oo [ & s
E NN IR RE i TR
7K I B it i T O (L
BARKLI2E ST
(2007 : 1,861 F &
Je) o MBIRE R
4205 HE Tk ) X IE
TEWh R < o Hh s
AR e iE S
) B KA o

WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(9) FIXED ASSETS AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

(Continued)

(b) Company (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Ownership of certain land and buildings included in
property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and land use rights with cost of Rmb311 million (2007:
Rmb311 million) has yet to be or is in the process of
being transferred to the Group. As these assets are
supported by legal sale and purchase agreements, the
Directors believe that the titles will be received in due
course without additional significant cost to the Group,

if any.

Buildings and structures include pipeline networks with
carrying value of approximately Rmb690 million as at

31 December 2008.

As at 31 December 2008, fixed assets include the
Company’s sewage treatment infrastructure located in
Tianjin with net book value of RMB1,772 million
(2007: RMB1,861million). The terms of the related
service concession arrangements are currently under
negotiation, the results of which will determine the

eventual classification of these assets.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008

~
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRFFIEISE > efB ey NRHE T58) 2008 4F-FE
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
£~ B RN () 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
9 BEREEREELE (5) (9)  FIXED ASSETS AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
(Continued)
(¢ FERTHRUFEFEHWT : (c)  Construction in progress comprised of the following projects:
TREMS
HSH
20074 20084 Wlil(%)
2A31H AEEBA  A3H Incurred
Asat fil s i Asat costs to
HHY 31 December AR Transferto 31 December ~ EAK budget costs
Budget cost 2007 Additions fixed assets 2008  Sources of funds  ratio (%)
(CER)
(Restated)
kR : Water recycling plants:
R - Dong Jiao 129,072 15,344 54,693 — 70037 Selfraised fund 54
HE
-1k —Bei Chen 97,000 14,639 19,554 — 34,193 Self-raised fund 35
HE
15K R Sewage processing plant:
— Bkt — XianYang Lu — 4970 — 4970 Self-raised fund
HE
A Others 274 2,430 (137) 2,567 Self-raised fund
HE
Aat=A"  Toral - Company 30,257 81,647 (137) 111,767
KK Water recycling plant:
— kg ~ Xian Yang Lu 141,000 85,243 8,530 — 93,773 Self-raised fund 67
HE
BiKi Others 687 3,497 (2,602) 1,582 Self-raised fund
HE
Aat—fE  Torl- Group 116,187 93,674 (2,739) 207,122

ot - g3k Including: Capitalised
Easi borrowing costs

H - Group 1,072 1,373 — 2445
2008 4B A HEE fif s 22 ) Borrowing costs have been capitalized in 2008 at an average
EARLBHN BRI R G interest rate of 6.5% per annum (2007: 7.3%).

FI#6.5% (20074 : 7.3%) ©

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
TRT R
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements

2008 4L (BREIEDISN > SRty AR T7T)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
L~ BRI () 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
10 HOBYERE (10) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
& A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
PRSI (1)) Concession rights (note (a)) 1,884,264 1,174,341 — —
THLOEFIRE (GERE(D)) Land use rights (note (b)) 393,135 403,529 389,561 399,925
2,277,399 1,577,870 389,561 399,925
(a) RSB EIT (@)  The movements of concession rights are as follows:
AhF
Group
B Cost
2007410 1H At 1 January 2007 1,196,420
AAESEN Additions 54,299
20074 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2007 1,250,719
AN Additions 771,855
2008 4F 12 131 H At 31 December 2008 2,022,574
Rt Accumulated amortisation
2007 F1H1H At 1 January 2007 (32,506)
A Charged for the year (43,872) 177
2007 “F 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2007 (76,378)
AT Charged for the year (61,932)
2008 4F 12 H1 31 H At 31 December 2008 (138,310)
T Net book value
2008 £ 12 131 H At 31 December 2008 1,884,264
20074£ 12 31 H At 31 December 2007 1,174,341
(i) HAEEERATFESAR (i)  Certain of the concession rights with net book value of
#0272 H BT (20074F : 282 Rmb272 million (2007: 282 million) have been secured against
HETT) WS EHAER loan facilities (note 7(13)(a)(v)).

O R/ i o
1)@ °

(i) 20084F LA FFRTALEHE P (ii)  In 2008, borrowing cost of Rmb 5,326 thousand (2007: 3,182
AAL 1Y 5 FOR B A N R thousand) have been capitalized in concession right at an
5,326 T7C (2007 4F : 3,182 average interest rate of 7.7% (2007: 7.5%).

TIo) o ARG R E
BB EARLR A
FET.7% (2007 4 :
75%) o

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

£~ BB EME s
10 fEEHE (4)

(b)

- H A A

J

20074F1H 1 H

AR A3 i i L
52 BB TN

Hil A%
AAEREN

2007 4E 12 H 31 H (F#E)
ARAEHEN

2008 4 12 H 31 H

s

20071 H 1 H

ARt e A
52 SRia W

Hil A%

AR

2007 4E 12 H 31 H (F#AE)
AT

2008 4 12 H 31 H

A
2008 4F 12 A 31 H

2007 4F 12 A 31 H (E#AR)

7.

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(10) INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Land use rights

Cost

At 1 January 2007

— as previously reported

— effect of adopting
CAS Int 2

As restated
Additions

At 31 December 2007 (Restated)

Additions
At 31 December 2008

Amortisation

At 31 December 2007

— as previously reported

— effect of adopting
CAS Int 2

As restated

Amortisation charge for the year

At 31 December 2007 (Restated)
Amortisation charge for the year

At 31 December 2008

Net book value
At 31 December 2008

At 31 December 2007 (Restated)

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R

b A
Group Company
815,097 680,703
(321,559) (195,439)
493,538 485,264
874 190
494,412 485,454
1,515 —
495,927 485,454
(110,631) (101,962)
31,696 27,626
(78,935) (74,336)
(11,948) (11,193)
(90,883) (85,529)
(11,909) (10,364)
(102,792) (95,893)
393,135 389,561
403,529 399,925
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements

2008 4L (BREIEDISN > SRty AR T7T)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
L~ BRI () 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
11 bk B (11) OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ot Al
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZIRERATAE K Total restricted bank deposits 65,700 34,770 56,700 25,770
W R B E IR Less: Due within one year included
in cash and bank balance
—AENEIE (HHEE(D(©) (note 7(1)(c)) (22,000) (15,000) (13,000) (6,000)
— 4R - FHER Deposits due over one year
(FiaEL(1)(a)) (note 7(1)(a)) 43,700 19,770 43,700 19,770
FHAth Others 3,552 4,008 — 755
47,252 23,778 43,700 20,525
12 MEAPMRK - BUBOME K - MESSBL (12) TRADE PAYABLES, ADVANCES, TAXES PAYABLE AND
Be Je A A K OTHER PAYABLES
ot Al
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
JEATIRZR (GERE(a)) Trade payables (note (a)) 17,841 12,469 7,277 6,139 -
FIRSR GERED)) Advances (note (b)) 228,716 171,341 61,130 28,099 179
HABRERT R GERE(0)) Other payables (note (c)) 99,848 113,946 132,928 100,957
346,405 297,756 201,335 135,195
(a)  EARMEMIRIRES F 2 — (@)  Asat 31 December 2008, the majority of trade payables are
AELLA o aged within one year.
(b) FHEUHEZBIAWT (b)  Advances comprise:
ot Al
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
TR AEEESLE  For pipeline connection 167,586 143,092 — —
THMCE T IE H 3K Received from project of Han Gu 32,220 — 32,220 —
MK AFHIE  Received from TSC 27,385 27,385 27,385 27,385
HoAte Other advances 1,525 864 1,525 714
228,716 171,341 61,130 28,099

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




52 S e S AR B B
Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

W E  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BREFRITEBISL > SRALL AR T0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

£~ B RN ()
MEAHIER ~ FOBOHERK - WS BE R
BACMMEA (D)

© SAREEmAT

12

13

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

() Other payables comprise:

(12) TRADE PAYABLES, ADVANCES, TAXES PAYABLE AND

L VAl
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
JEAT R R A Construction costs payable 53,708 66,555 34,823 45,562
R A5F i L [ Payable for purchase of property,
K RS #F plant and equipment and
K HEROR concession rights of plants 26,610 29,532 — —
Fite Others 19,530 17,859 98,105 55,395
99,848 113,946 132,928 100,957
JEAIRAR - ORI At There were no trade payables, advances and other payables

JREASS ST AR BB P SRR A
ANFI5% (5 5%) UL EFER
HERE A ) B AR R R o

@ BEBEREEERELE

from any of the shareholders of the Company who hold 5%

or more of voting shares.

(d)  The balance of taxes payable mainly comprise income tax

%W;ﬂrﬁé ° payable.
B - Bk B b £ A5 (13) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS, SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
AND OTHER LIABILITIES
i A
Group Company
PR 2008 2007 2008 2007
Note
= - Non-current:
RISAT K Long-term bank
borrowings (a) 2,812,950 2,062,500 1,693,000 1,369,000
ko AR R B A Less: Current portion  (a) (494,790) (416,250) (434,000) (334,000)
2,318,160 1,646,250 1,259,000 1,035,000
JUtb I ) & Other non-current
liabilities (c) 130,909 147,273 130,909 147,273
2,449,069 1,793,523 1,389,909 1,182,273
HH] - Current:
—AE R E Current portion of
R long-term bank
borrowings (a) 494,790 416,250 434,000 334,000
F AT AR Short-term bank
borrowings (b) 821,890 155,000 776,890 155,000
ot i) £ £ Other current liabilities  (c) 167,491 138,862 64,364 32,727
1,484,171 710,112 1,275,254 521,727
TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A

TRT R
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements

2008 4R (BRAFRITE WIS > SR AN RIETIT)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
L~ MHHRERE (50 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
13 RIS - B sk R A £ 4 (13) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS, SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
(%) AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)
(@) RIMATER (@) Long-term bank borrowings:
i VA
Group Company
WE 2008 2007 2008 2007
Note
fEFkE - Borrowings from:
FEHEEMIT  State Development Bank 0] 337,000 471,000 337,000 471,000
o LR RAT Industrial Commerce
Bank of China (i1) 683,000 399,000 158,000 158,000
LR Shanghai Pudong
i Development Bank (iii) 320,000 320,000 300,000 300,000
TP AR A T Agricultural
Bank of China (iv) 668,000 300,000 548,000 190,000
P AR AR T China Construction
Bank (v) 704,950 222,500 300,000 —
TR #RAT China CITIC Bank — 200,000 — 200,000
FEDERMAT  China Everbright Bank (vi) 50,000 95,000 50,000 50,000
R T Bank of China (vii) 50,000 55,000 — —
2,812,950 2,062,500 1,693,000 1,369,000
() FIERE R BUR (i) Secured by TMEB’s guarantee together with its toll road 181
R ALHE ORI DL FC A8 B and sewage fee collection rights.
AT AN K
Wi HEAE Ay A o
) H # A B ¥ (i)  Includes Rmb 525 million (2007: Rmb 241 million)
525,000,000 & (2007 secured by the Company’s guarantee and the remaining
g£o0N B O Rmb158 million (2007: Rmb 158 million) is unsecured.
241,000,000 7C) HA
PN AHRAER o 53 4h
A R 158,000,000 7T
FfE A& (2007
O N

158,000,000 JG) °

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008



52 S T AR A S A

Financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards for Business enterprises

W E  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BREFRITEBISL > SRALL AR T0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

L~ BB W R i)
13 RIS - S R A 45

(%)

@ RIESATER (4D

(i)

(iv)

N
20,000,000 JC (2007
Y N
20,000,000 7G) FAS 2
) 4 R SR A 1t 9
o A AR
300,000,000 JC (2007
FoN RO
300,000,000 7€) A5

JRf o

B $f AR ¥
548,000,000 JG (2007
g N RO
190,000,000 7t.) FIA
K% 55,000,000 70
(2007 4+ AR¥
60,000,000 7C) 435l i
I A3 SE T A AN 4R
HEIEGR  TAANREE
65,000,000 JC (2007
Y N
50,000,000 7C) 7E—%
) 0 R
AN RAEER - TH
H &S & BB A A w]
PERIM LA RS /A R IH
H B WU o 5 580
REAE TACHRIE LR

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(13) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS, SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)

(a) Long-term bank borrowings: (Continued)

(iii) Includes Rmb 20 million (2007: Rmb 20 million)
secured by the Company’s holding company’s guarantee
and the remaining Rmb300 million (2007: Rmb 300

million) is unsecured.

(iv) Includes Rmb 548 million and Rmb 55 million (2007:
190 million and Rmb 60 million) secured by the
guarantee of Tianjin Municipal Infrastructure
Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd. and the
Company, respectively. The remaining balance of about
Rmb 65 million(2007 Rmb 50 million) is secured by
the Company’s guarantee during the construction period
of a subsidiary together with certain of the subsidiary’s

concession right.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R
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2008 4%

For the year ended 31 December 2008

L~ BB R R G
13 RIS - S R A 145

(%)

@ RISATER (H)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

N
180,000,000 7t (2007
Y N
185,000,000 7&.) MfE
;o PABAARAKIARE
5 7K B R A RE A
B (K GE L
(10)(b)) ; AIPNRH
150,000,000 7t (2007

HEIE) RN R
31,250,000 7C (2007
oL R OE

37,500,000 7C) HH A%
B BAAL R4y 4R
IR BT AR
343,700,000 G (2007
o) B R RS

i
A ©

AN 2 A
HCRTHRAT ()5 7K o HE
B R R

[EENiR/AE

B HRFEMEE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFERITERAL - S8R0 2 AR T 0)
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(13) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS, SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)

(@) Long-term bank borrowings: (Continued)

(v)  Includes Rmb180 million (2007: Rmb 185 million)
secured by the right to receive tap and sewage processing
fees (note 7(10)(b)). Includes Rmb150 million (2007:
Nil) and Rmb 31.25 million (2007: 37.5 million)
secured by the guarantee of Tianjin Municipal
Infrastructure Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd

and the Company, respectively. The remaining balance

of about Rmb 343.7 million (2007: Nil) is unsecured.

(vi)  Secured by the TSC’s right to receive sewage processing

fees.

(vii) Secured by the Company’s guarantee.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

L~ BB W R i)
13 RIS - S R A 45

(%)
(a)

RIMATIER (80

(viil) IR (5 MR

A

Wi
~ i
~ it

R

Secured

— Pledge

— Guarantee
Unsecured

(ix) 2008 LRI
T HE ST 2 47 R R B
6.9% (2007 4 :

6.9%) °

x)  REMERAEE

BnE

—AERAR AT
AR RS
HEFE
STLAE SR
AR

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(13) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS, SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)

(a) Long-term bank borrowings: (Continued)

(viii) Summary of terms of long-term bank borrowings:

i A+
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
180,000 185,000 — —
1,831,250 1,219,500 935,000 711,000
801,700 658,000 758,000 658,000
2,812,950 2,062,500 1,693,000 1,369,000

(ix)  These long-term bank borrowings are all interest bearing
with weighted average effective interest rate at the

balance sheet date of about 6.9% (2007: 6.9%).

(x)  These borrowings mature as follows:

P A

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Within one year 494,790 416,250 434,000 334,000
In the second year 627,030 476,790 541,000 434,000
In the third to fifth year 1,115,070 791,820 718,000 601,000
After the fifth year 576,060 377,640 — —
2,812,950 2,062,500 1,693,000 1,369,000

TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A
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2008 4L (BREIEDISN > SRty AR T7T)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
L~ BRI () 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
13 RIS - B sk R A £ 4 (13) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS, SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
(%) AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) JEIRATER (b)  Short-term bank borrowings
(il A
Group Company
B 2008 2007 2008 2007
Note
EHRE - Borrowings from:
o R AR A T China Construction
Bank — 100,000 — 100,000
iR Bohai Bank — 55,000 — 55,000
T R A SRA T China Minsheng Bank 187,000 — 187,000 —
R RAT Huaxia Bank 90,000 — 90,000 —
BRI Jinggang Entrust Company 299,890 — 299,890 —
P aRAT China CITIC Bank 0] 200,000 — 200,000 —
WirsRtT China Zheshang Bank (i1) 45,000 — — —
821,890 155,000 776,890 155,000
() BRI AN (i)  This is an entrusted loan from Jingang Entrust
fa v A R AU Y Company via China Construction Bank. The loan bears
B A RR S interest at 7% per annum.
7% -
(i) HORET B E A R (i) Guaranteed by TMICL.
AN ARAELR o
(i) BRGD)AM - HERER (iii) The remaining borrowings are unsecured except for
Fyf5 AR o 2008 4F those mentioned in (ii). The weighted average interest
3 55 308 0 Jon B rate of short-term borrowings in 2008 is 5.95% per
BEMEL5.95% annum (2007:6.50%).

(2007 % : 6.50%) -

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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(BRAFHITEWISL - BRHALL AR T7T) 2008 4R
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
£~ B RN () 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
13 R ~ BT R R b 6 (13) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS, SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
(%) AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) ISR (4) (b)  Short-term bank borrowings (Continued)
(v) SR (S AR (iv)  Summary of terms of short-term bank borrowings:
A
a0k A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
TER S Secured
— R — Guarantee 45,000 — — —
(GhiliE N Unsecured 776,890 155,000 776,890 155,000
821,890 155,000 776,890 155,000
(c) AL (c)  Other liabilities
P A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
=~H Non-current:
Puc ro
— RHEER - TMEB
(FEREG)) (note (1)) 130,909 147,273 130,909 147,273
iy Current:
Due to:
— KA B - TMEB
Hrp Including:
— RIS — 4R — Current portion of long-
B GEREG))  term loans (note (i) 16,364 32,727 16,364 32,727
— A (GEREG)) — Others (note (i) 92,514 95,522 — —
— KBTI ES — Tianjin governmental
(FER(GiD)) bodies (note (iii)) 58,613 10,613 48,000 —
167,491 138,862 64,364 32,727
TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A
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R EE TR R 2
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JC K 2005 AR5 K JE
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FAES 11 ET IR
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mHIH AR 16 H &
g6 (2007 4F : 33 F
7o) o [ERERZHT6
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A M 200,38
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Je) o HAEEHE m R
A I R
i) m o

WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BREFRINEBISN > SRR AL AR T D)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(13) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS, SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c)  Other liabilities (Continued)

()

A Rmb180 million loan was taken from TMEB during
2005 specifically for construction of sewage processing
plants. The loan is repayable in equal installments over
eleven years from 2007. The current portion of the long-
term loan is Rmb16million at the end of year 2008.
(2007: Rmb33 million) The loan bears interest at 5%
per annum for the first six years. From the seventh year
to maturity, the interest will be based on the one-year

deposit plus 0.3% premium.

Amount due to TMEB of Rmb93 million (2007:
Rmb96 million) is specifically for the same purpose and
under same terms as the loan described in note (iii)

below.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008
7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(13) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS, SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)

(¢)  Other liabilities (Continued)

(i) The Rmb59 million (2007: Rmb11 million) was
borrowed from other Tianjin governmental bodies.
Rmb1 Imillion is used for the construction of the water
recycling plant of Ji Zhuang Zi. Rmb48 million was
borrowed from Tianjin Finance Bureau for the
construction of the water recycling plant of Dong Jiao
and Bei Chen. The loan is interest free and the method
and date of repayment which is supposed to be
determined after the completion of the said plant has

yet to be finalised.

The repayment scheme for the Rmb93 million and
Rmb59 million loans mentioned in (ii) and (iii) above
is still being negotiated. As the terms are uncertain, these

loans have been classified as current liabilities.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
TRT R
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2008 4F [ (BRAFHIEWISL - S350 2y AR T IT)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
£ MR (9 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
14 ERERTA B (14) DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES
2008412 A 31 H 2007412 4 31 H
31 December 2008 31 December 2007
MEAIBL MEAIBL
WEHE bk B EE W% S
Pifa Bt g Taxable Pif Bt 4 Taxable
Deferred income temporary Deferred income temporary
tax liabilities differences tax liabilities differences
W] A AT S Depreciation
of fixed assets 23,640 94,560 14,348 57,392
15 Bk (15) SHARE CAPITAL
ANTIREE ~ T 8T MU A Movement of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully paid up
HBEBNRANT o FrA AL Rl i capital is tabled below. All of the Company’s shares are ordinary
Bk R (A R 1 T shares with par value of one Renminbi.
H& o
Ak H &
A shares H shares
R
ik )il
Restricted k)il ik 1]
circulating  Circulating /Nt Circulating it
shares shares Subtotal shares Total
200741 A 1H At 1 January 2007 835,638 155,028 990,666 340,000 1,330,666
GIEYeia ¥ Conversion of convertible
bonds — 96,562 96,562 — 96,562
PR 2 B 28 i £ Release of restricted
circulating shares (105,018) 105,018 — — —
2007412 H 31 H At 31 December 2007 730,620 356,608 1,087,228 340,000 1,427,228
PRt 2 PR 28 i £ Release of restricted
circulating shares (66,533) 66,533 — — —
20084E12H 31 H At 31 December 2008 664,087 423,141 1,087,228 340,000 1,427,228
AIBARTE g8 5758 5y By TR A “A” shares represent shares listed on the Shanghai Securities Exchange
3> H B {5 22 5 i & and “H” shares represent shares listed on the Main Board of The
TR o B A ARAHIRAE % 7 Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. All the “A” and “H” shares rank
T 4 A (] S5 h i o pari passu in all respects.
B R T B S A PR A R The restricted circulating “A” shares relate to shares held by TMICL,
)32 IR A A JB - T B whereby TMICL can only sell a maximum of 10% of its total shares
BT R FI7E20064F-3 A 1 R HE 2> within 3 years after the stock reform in March 2006.

BSEHAR I =AF R T
TR 10% )R A o
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(BREFRITEBISL > SRALL AR T0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

£~ WB R ()

15
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BRA K HE T BOB B A R F TR
)% BRI A A B > K T B
B B FIFE 200643 H (I HE 2y
BE R I = A A e T B R
A 10% MO RBEDY © AAERE >
HF 67 T IR 57 PR R M A
B A A o

REAC AR 05 AR BA

@) HARNRE: SREEE T
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(b) FBRARE : R CPEAR
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o A FHRAR BE A Y
10% I € B AT S
R ATEE RAtEE
A 50% DA LI > 7R
FHE o e B AR SR
HEHERR AT A R 1 - ok
HHIBA -

2008 F 12 A 31 H » K4
T3 o 0, 5 B o IR B4
(DI RANC IR /N 8
4,598 FJ0 (20074 12 A 31
H :2998F7C) » Hh+2
AR BEFHER 0% i A B
AR B ER AR 1,600 TIC
(2007 4 : 1,185 Fot) o

7.

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(15) SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
The restricted circulating “A” shares relate to shares held by TMICL,

(16)

whereby TMICL can only sell a maximum of 10% of its total shares
within 3 years after the stock reform in March 2006. During 2008,

67 million of these shares became non-restricted.

RESERVES AND DIVIDEND

(a)

Capital surplus: Capital surplus principally comprises share
premium arising from the issuance of shares. This surplus can
be utilised to offset prior years losses or for issuance of bonus

shares.

Statutory common reserve: According to the PRC Companies
Law and the Company’s Articles of Association, it is required
to transfer 10% of its net profit for the year to the statutory
common reserve, which can be ceased till the reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital. This reserve shall only be used
to make up losses; or to increase the capital of the Company

upon approval from the shareholders.

As at 31 December 2008, undistributed profits include
RMB4,598 thousand subsidiaries’ common reserve
attributable to the Company (31 December 2007: RMB 2,998
thousand), of which RMB 1,600 thousand has been
appropriated for the current year (2007: RMB 1,185

thousand).

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(16) RESERVES (Continued)

(0

Dividend

Dividend declared:

A dividend in respect of year ended 31 December 2007 of
Rmb0.4 (include tax) every 10 shares, total shares of 1,427
million shares on 31 July 2008, amounting to a total dividend
of Rmb57 million, was proposed at the Annual General

Meeting on 17 June 2008 (2007: Rmb0.4 (gross tax) every

#1510 BIREE BB RAIA
R¥0470 (5B TR
EEFARK 0574870 (2007
A - 10 IR B IRAA
RU0470 (5B T
gt AR 056 {50)

BERIF -
200944 H28 H » # 3k
R T REAT T BB A7y B v
IREEIFI AR 0.4 0 (5
BL) o ARABS HR 1 R %
A AR IR IR 3y B AR
FISC e > H i Ay — I8
A 20094 12 A 31 H IR
JEE B4 R 23 I ] T Y 20 I
M o

17 A EBOIHERS
B B I 45 B /D U SR D OB

10 shares, amounting to a total dividend of Rmb56 million).

Dividend proposed:
On 28 April 2009, the Directors proposed a dividend of
Rmb0.4 (include tax) for every 10 shares held. This proposed

dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of

undistributed profits for the year ending 31 December 2009.

(17) MINORITY INTERESTS

Minority interests attributable to respective subsidiaries’ minority

HE shareholders are set out as below:

A PF

Group
2008 4F 2007 4F
12A31H 1231 H
31 December 31 December
2008 2007
HUN R AR A PR F Hangzhou Tianchuang Capital Water Co., Ltd. 83,088 82,248
A K AT IREAE 2 ) Baoying Capital Water Co., Ltd. 12,569 12,593
It 75 A 2K A7 PR A ) Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd. 11,536 11,438
BB KB AR A Guizhou Capital Water Co., Ltd. 6,299 6,023
UL T RISE KB A R A R Honghu Capital Water Co., Ltd. 1,944 1,963
KHAE M A R Tianjin Capital New Materials Co., Ltd. 1,838 1,951
KA KA R A Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd. 1,149 1,075
TREERIZEAK TS AT IR A F Chibi Capital Water Co., Ltd. 64 59
FERBERB AT RA R Fuyang Capital Water Co., Ltd. 9 8
118,496 117,358

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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(BREFHIEWISY > S350 25 AR TIT0) 2008 4F %
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
L~ MR (90 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 BREAMBERA (18) INCOME FROM AND COST FOR OPERATIONS
i
Group
2008 2007
BRBA BRA EEIUN BRWA
Income from Cost for Income from Cost for
operations operations operations operations
TEEHIA Income from principal
(BF&E/L) operations (note 8) 1,135,101 497,541 978,953 399,202
HAWSEB A Other income 24,206 12,534 23,089 7,699
1,159,307 510,075 1,002,042 406,901
A
Company
2008 2007
BEBA BEA L ELIUN HEMA
Income from Cost for Income from Cost for
operations operations operations operations
EEEBIA Income from principal
operations 770,285 260,234 724,135 247,127
HABSER A Other income 20,010 9,666 23,496 6,598
790,295 269,900 747,631 253,725
() AN EEIER /5 KIE (a) The Company’s principal operations are substantially from
PR o processing of sewage.
(b)  HURASEEEA KB (b)  No geographical segment analysis is presented since all of the
B EEE > HOR AR B0 Group’s operations are in the PRC.
KR
(c) AEEFI LA HEMIK (¢ The total revenue of the Group’s top 5 customers are
AR R NI 988,982 T amounting to Rmb988,982 thousand for the year ended 31
TG AR RS A December 2008, which are accounting for about 85% of the
B 85% (2007 4 : NRHE Group’s total revenue (2007: Rmb927,752 thousand and
927,752 FILA1 93%)  ° 93%).
TR S BRI AT R A
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2008 4F & (BRRFE DO > BB AL Ly AR TI0)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
b~ WA R () 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19  BEBE KW m (19) BUSINESS TAX AND SURCHARGES

bk A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
EER Business tax 39,957 39,783 39,346 38,665
Wi A e 2 City construction and
maintenance fee 1,477 2,737 1,256 2,542
2E EHHm Education fee surcharge 663 1,190 538 1,089
42,097 43,710 41,140 42,296
20 WEEN - T8 (20) FINANCIAL EXPENSES — NET
ot N
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
R S Interest expenses of
bank borrowings 233,751 165,192 157,972 119,587
B EAMLALE Less: Capitalised interest (6,699) (4,227) — —
FR S Net interest expenses 227,052 160,965 157,972 119,587
B FLEA Less: Interest income from: (17,734) (18,670) (12,340) (16,258)
Hoep s RIAREMCEOR S A — long-term receivables (11,118) (10,820) (11,118) (10,820)
SATAE R Bl A — bank deposits (6,616) (7,850) (1,222) (5,438)
IR SRATHE K Fair value adjustments relating
N B R to restricted bank deposits — (6,933) — (6,933)
HoAs Others 5,171 101 5,072 66
214,489 135,463 150,704 96,462
21 AWK (21) ASSETS IMPAIRMENT LOSS
bk A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
R A Impairment provision for long-
(BiHEEE 7(c) term investment (note 7(7)(c)) — — — 22,000
frEEERL Provision for decline in the value
of inventories — (1,000) — —
JE B EHE Impairment provision for
fixed assets — 1,240 — —
BOEVE Impairment provision for
RS investment propert — 5,000 — —
— 5,240 — 22,000

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

£~ BB EME s 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
22 P& (22) INCOME TAX
il A

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
EHITARL Current income tax 67,461 92,461 63,189 84,949
TRAE IR Deferred income tax 9,292 6,763 4,027 4,411
76,753 99,224 67,216 89,360

AT (R R A AR AR
BB E T PTG BLam B 4
Bl

Reconciliation between taxation in the consolidated income

statement and the aggregate tax at the rates applicable to profits in

the respective entities concerned is set below:

APk A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
bRk Profit before taxation 310,238 309,592 274,787 262,226
el BRI 38 Calculated at applicable
income tax rates 76,011 96,326 68,697 83,899
EFG N Income not subject to tax (1,532) (918) (1,481) —
ATFHIBR A - Expenses not deductible
EASINIEEEN for taxation purposes 1,111 1,102 — 5,461
PRI A W R AR A Utilisation of previously
B R deductible tax losses for
EEi=i which no deferred income tax
asset was recognised (510) (555) — —
A DR AT Current year tax losses
JIr A B B 1 for which no deferred income
g ZiE tax asset was recognized 1,673 3,269 — —
Fir 58 22 1) Income tax expense 76,753 99,224 67,216 89,360
TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A

TRT R
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements

(BREFRINEBISN > SRR AL AR T D)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(23) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the profit attributable

to shareholders of the Company

of Rmb231 million (2007: Rmb209

million) and weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,427

million shares in issue during the year (2007: 1,387 million shares).

Diluted earnings per share is calculated using the same bases as

described above for calculating basic earnings per share as the

transactions of the Company’s Convertible Bonds is not applicable

for year 2008.

Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (million shares)

Adjustments for — assumed conversion
of convertible debt (million shares)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for diluted earnings per share
(million shares)

Diluted earnings per share (Rmb per share)

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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(BRAFHITEWISL - BRHALL AR T7T) 2008 4F-FE
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
£~ B RN () 7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
24 BEREFRHGE (24) NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
(@) IR o AR B (@)  Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating
LiE activities
i A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
A Net profit 233,485 210,368 207,571 172,866
B Adjust for:
FHERVEE BEMER  Provision for asset impairment — 5,240 — 22,000
B B TR Depreciation of fixed assets 110,896 116,044 101,570 105,141
ETE e A Amortisation of intangible assets 73,841 55,820 10,364 11,193
Ji B [ G R R S Losses on disposal of fixed assets 934 2,857 317 68

IBCEVER M EMRE  Services provided settled by
BB SR IRBHRNE  investment property in lieu of

cash payment — (10,040) — —

s Finance expenses-net 221,105 143,212 151,926 101,834
B Investment income (6,129) (2,693) (5,913) —
TIEFTSBLEE Y Decrease in deferred tax assets — 2,288 — 2,288
TRIEFT SR AN Increase in deferred tax liabilities 9,292 4,475 4,027 2,123
FEE&H () /Y (Increase)/decrease in inventories (2,814) 2,205 (326) (335)
KB YERECE H I Increase in operating receivables (342,370) (387,199) (337,645) (358,108)
KA EE R (Decrease)/increase in operating

(WD) /s payables 6,360 113,337 (6,714) (2,211)
SR I A Yy Net cash flows from

B4 B T operating activities 304,600 255,914 125,177 56,859
BETHM, (W) Net increase/(decrease) in

Wt cash and bank balances
BA MR Cash at end of year 887,047 324,971 262,440 80,633
B BUBRIAERIERE  Less: cash at beginning of year (324,971) (718,744) (80,633) (601,136)
TR/ Net increase/(decrease) in

(W) % cash and bank balances 562,076 (393,773) 181,807 (520,503)

PRIFIES Ve Sh ] S A]

TRT R
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£~ B EME (@0
24 BEREFEWE

WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

7. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(24) NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (Continued)

(b) FURRBERERNREE (b)  Cash and bank balances include the following for the purposes
1 of the cash flow statements:
ik A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
et Cash and bank balances 909,047 339,971 275,440 86,633
Wk RS Less: Restricted bank deposit (22,000) (15,000) (13,000) (6,000)
FIRIA B a R Cash and bank balances shown
HY Bl in the cash flow statements 887,047 324,971 262,440 80,633
(c) BEWERPATH AL ()  Cash paid relating to other operating activities in the cash
BEHAHNESTIER flow statements mainly includes:
1
Ak A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
TR 7 Proxy charge for project bids — 13,326 — 13,326
REHETE Jok B # Sewage processing charge
payment on behalf
of customers 3,334 15,129 2,016 10,810
R Expenses of board of directors 5,882 8,751 5,882 8,751
Al s 2 Audit and consulting fee 6,654 7,082 5,698 7,082
R AR Travelling, meeting and
EWIRHS entertainment expenses 5,743 8,304 2,665 5,720
At Others 14,445 9,559 5,395 4,750
36,058 62,151 21,656 50,439
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(BRESFITERISY > SR ARESTIT) 2008 4%
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
N~ SRR 8. SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) 2008 4EJE (a)  For year ended and as at 31 December 2008
) ke LR
HREH  RBBE  Recydled i
Sewage Road  water and HAA BB Sub-total of
processing toll  pipeline Tap water Construction  principle il b
services  collections  connection supply ~ materials  operation Others Group
BERA Income from
(BFsE-E18)) operations
(note 7(18)) 975,995 67,017 48,414 43,675 — 1,135,101 24,206 1,159,307
CEEN Cost for operations
(HE3EL(18)) (note 7(18)) (419,192)  (10,826)  (35512)  (32,011) —  (497,541)  (12,534) (510,075)
H 2 Other expenses (320125) 2531 (8407) (14794)  (388) (341,183)  (5686) (346,869
Wins yilhie Segment profit 236,678 58,722 4,495 (3,130) (388) 296,377 5,986 302,363
LMY Operating profit B6678 58722 4495 (3130)  (388) 296377 12115 308492
e Segment assets 6,211,058 350295 493,689 283811 22309 7,361,162 199,101 7,560,263
rE R Segment liabilities 3729579 22512 404792 148,593 16,136 4,321,612 12,453 4,334,065
W Depreciation 98,553 — 8,348 77 388 107,366 3,530 110,896
s Amortisation 05,788 — — 8,053 — 73,841 — 73,841
BRI, Capital expenditures 789,427 — 83,406 44 — 872,877 658 873,535
(b) 2007 4EJE (b)  For year ended and as at 31 December 2007
[P Sis ] ER-F3]
HREH  RKBE  Recycled it
Sewage Road  water and HEA B Sub-total of
processing toll  pipeline  Tap water Construction  principle Hds b
services  collections  connection supply  materials  operation Others Group
HEA Income from
(BEsE-E18)) operations
(note 7(18)) 853,080 67,685 28,671 27,879 1,638 978,953 23,089 1,002,042
HERA Cost for operations
(KifaE-£(18)) (note 7(18)) (348,803)  (9,964)  (19998)  (18780)  (1,657) (399,202)  (7,699) (406,901)
Hofth 22 Other expenses (250,149) 753 (8.856)  (13,102) (6,604)  (277,958) (8,825) (286,783)
SRR Segment profi 254128 58474 (183)  (4003)  (6623) 301793 6565 308,358
e il Operating profit 254,128 58,474 (183)  (4003)  (6,623) 301,793 9,258 311,051
T Segment assets 4,600,852 345366 425,947 238,070 3149 5613384 330,682 5,944,066
PV Segment liabilities 2382974 20383 323979 150,256 2,136 2879728 13,254 2,892,982
EiiN Depreciation 97,511 — 7,851 65 902 106,329 9715 116,044
G Amortisation 46,868 — — 8,053 39 54,960 860 55,820
(R HER TS Assets impairment loss — — — — 5,240 5,240 — 5,240
BAME S Capital expenditures 119,332 — 4188 — — 161,214 4213 165427
(c)  HIRAASE [ By A7 05 275 P B O () The geographical segment analysis is not applicable since all of the
> RIS R b 3 A 5 5L Group’s operations are in the PRC.
R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

9  Financial risk management

(a)

Financial risk factors:
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The
Group’s overall risk management seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the financial performance of the Group.

Foreign currency risk:

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk as the operations
and customers of the Group’s subsidiaries are located in the PRC
with most of the operating assets and transactions denominated and
settled in Renminbi. All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated

in Renminbi.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk:
The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,

other than bank deposits, long term receivables and borrowings.

The Group has significant bank borrowings. Those taken at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk, whilst those

taken at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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(#)
(a) MBHEBEHEE :

(%)

IR RA% SO T AR B A A R )
PR - BETELL T RIEPINE
FE MR RIRIE(E > LAEITE )

K o

2008412 431 H
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At 31 December 2008
Assets
Cash and bank balances

Long-term receivables

Liabilities
Current borrowings
Non-current borrowings

At 31 December 2007
Assets
Cash and bank balances

Long-term receivables

Liabilities
Current borrowings
Non-current borrowings
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A RTE T 1% > TR

HAB R A5 -

IR ER

R K/ T AR 26 B &
JC (20074 © NR¥E17THEIL) -

ALEEIE RS - B
FCHA ) B A ] % D61 55 7
FOHECR 2Bt

9  Financial risk management (Continued)

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

(a)  Financial risk factors: (Continued)
The table below sets out the Group’s and the Company’s exposure
to interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities
at carrying amounts, categorised by the maturity dates.
whk i
Group Company
3 3
Non- Non-
[ S VRS interest it WEAR FEAE interest it
Fixed  Floating bearing Total Fixed  Floating bearing Total
22,000 887,047 — 909,047 13,000 262,440 — 275440
331,254 — — 331,254 331,254 — — 331,254
606,254 726,790 151,127 1,484,171 606,254 621,000 48,000 1,275,254
332,609 2,116,460 — 2,449,069 288,909 1,101,000 — 1,389,909
9,000 330,971 — 339,971 — 86,033 — 86,033
326,980 — — 326,980 326,980 — — 326,980
132,727 471,250 106,135 710,112 132,727 389,000 — 521,727
305,273 1,488,250 — 1,793,523 305,273 877,000 — 1,182,273
At 31 December 2008, if interest rates on bank borrowings had
been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit
for the year would have been lower/higher by Rmb26 million (2007:
Rmb17 million).
The Group also analyses its interest rate exposure by considering
refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative financing.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

9  Financial risk management (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors: (Continued)

Credit risk:
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and credit exposures to

customers.

The Group manages credit risk on bank deposits by placing the
majority of its cash and bank balances with state owned/listed banks
in the PRC. The Group has not had any significant loss arising from
non-performance by these parties in the past and management does

not expect so in the future.

The credit risk on trade receivables is concentrated on a few
customers, all of which are PRC government bodies. Thus,

management considers that the risk is limited.

The maximum credit risk of the Company includes the carrying
value of its financial assets on books and is increased by the notional

amount of financial guarantees issued for its subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk:

The Group manages its liquidity risk based on a rolling working
capital forecast which comprises a 3-5 year long term plan and a 12
months monthly working capital forecast. The long term plan is
reviewed annually and the monthly working capital forecast is
prepared based on daily operating needs and capital expenditure

requirement from new and existing projects.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

9  Financial risk management (Continued)

ALENEMAR (BEHE) #%
R BRARBA R 2 AR - (I
B H BB A A B e ] )
B AR B SR

T

#*20084E12 H 31 H
FIRAT IS 3X

e IERT X

JRE AR} R e L At B A5 35K

2007412 H 31 H
FIRAT IS 3K

R HAREA K

JRE AR} R K e L At B £+ 35k

Financial risk factors: (Continued)

Liquidity risk: (Continued)

Generally, approximately 60% of budgeted capital expenditure for

new projects is projected for external financing. One of the

considerations for management to assess the feasibility of new projects

is whether the return can cover the cost of the project external

financing and provide a reasonable return to the shareholders.

The Group’s financial liabilities (inclusive of interests) are analysed

into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at

the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date, using the

contracted undiscounted cash flows, as follows:

VR LAERI2AE 24REIS AR
Less Between Between S4EML R
than 1 1 and 2 and Over it
year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
At 31 December 2008
Long-term bank borrowings 530,768 668,164 1,189,293 620,926 3,009,151
Long-term payables 17,182 17,182 50,344 67,122 151,830
Trade and other payables 117,689 — — — 117,689
At 31 December 2007
Long-term bank borrowings 445,322 318,225 1,026,038 414,594 2,204,179
Long-term payables 34,363 — — 154,637 189,000
Trade and other payables 169,008 — — — 169,008
R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

9  Financial risk management (Continued)

(b)

(©

Capital risk management

In managing its capital risk, management considers capital to include
paid up capital from shareholders and borrowings. The Group’s
objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue

as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure an optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements of
the Group and capital efficiency, projected operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment

opportunities.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio of about 40% -

50%. The gearing ratio of the Group is as follows:

r12H31H
As at 31 December
2008 2007
MEL
(Restated)
Total borrowings 3,933,240 2,503,635
Less: Cash (887,047) (324,971)
Net debt 3,046,193 2,178,664
Total equity 3,226,198 3,051,084
Total capital 6,272,391 5,229,748
Gearing ratio 49% 42%

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar

financial instruments.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

AR ON. L Vi LY %R

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

10. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS

1 BB BR (1)  RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS
(a)  TFTEFEIBIEAT B 77 (a)  Related parties that have controlling relationship
SUR B 7 i A# B BREREA
UL VRS AR ERS 2 Relationship with Type of Legal
Name of related party Registration address Principal activities the Company enterprise representative
K mB A R AT R THCEBE R LT AR IEES
(BB E) B Rk SR
Tianjin Municipal Investment Tianjin, the PRC Development, Controlling Limited company ~ Ma Bai Yu
Company Limited (“TMICL”) construction and shareholder of
management of the Company
municipal infrastructures
AR S B R IR BB SR B0 - AL AR THE
SEARAR GRBER) A TSRS B -
HA R RS i
S FREIR H 3 AR
Tianjin Infrastructure Tianjin, the PRC Investment and construction of ~ Ultimate holding Limited company ~ Wang Zhou Xi
Construction Investment Group urban environmental company
Co., Ltd. (“TICIG”) infrastructure, market
establishment and development
services, lease of private properties,
lease of infrastructures, and
development and operation of
public facilities projects
HH % A3 K A1 A o TSR > BTk A TAH AR o SO
Qu Jing Capital Water Co., Lid. Qujing, the PRC Sewage processing, Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ ZhangWen Hui
tap water supply Company
EMARAH AR AT R M 15K AL AR i Bl
Gui Zhou Capital Water Co., Ltd. Guizhou, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Gu Qi Feng
Company
BEAEKHARAE o B Tk S| HIRAF SO
Fu Yang Capital Water Co., Ltd. Fuyang, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Zhang Wen Hui
Company
BRI BT R A 7] B T3 K T4 AR MO
Bao Ying Capital Water Co., Ltd. Baoying, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Lin Wen Bo
Company
ARBERISE A AT PR A ) R R 15K AL AR o SO
Chi Bi Capital Water Co., Ltd. Chibi, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Zhang Wen Hui
Company
BT AT A R AR TPt Tk S| HIRF SO
Hong Hu Capital Water Co., Ltd. Honghu, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Zhang Wen Hui
Company
TRAER IR (i) AR s 15K T4 AR IR
Tianjin Capital Environmental Hong Kong, Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Ma Bai Yu
Protection (HK) Co., Lid. the PRC Company
UM RADKH A R ] LN 15K AL AR i Bl
Hang Zhou Tianchuang Hangzhou, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Gu Qi Feng
Capital Water Co., Ltd. Company
SCERBERBATRA R OB TSKER T HRAT M
Wen Deng Capital Water Co., Ltd. Wendeng, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Lin Wen Bo
Company

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
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2008 4 (BRRFE DO > BB AL Ly AR TI0)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

T+~ R TBAR KIS () 10 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

1 WBIGBE (50 (1)  RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS (Continued)
(a) 17 TE FE il B 1R 19 B 3 77 (a)  Related parties that have controlling relationship (Continued)
(%)
T HFHEASORB AT RA 7 R Tk S| AR Ll
Tianjin Jing Hai Capital Water Co., Ltd. Tianjin, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Gu Qi Feng
Company

KHERKATIRA T R KR T HIRAF e
KO FE R R
HOK

Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd. Tianjin, the PRC Production and sales of Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Liu Wen Ya
recycled water and Company

technical consulting for
water recycling business

PRI KH A R ] R % T3 K TAH AR e SCHE
Xi'an Capital Water Co., Ltd. Xi'an, the PRC Sewage processing Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Zhang Wen Hui
Company

TSRS TR R B TR T4 AR et

el A PR 7] Bl

Tianjin Kaiying Environmental Tianjin, the PRC Environmental engineering, Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Liu Wen Ya

EngineeringTechnology Consultant protection and Company

Co., Ltd. technical consultation

ZEAE KB AR AT % WImAEK - BEK > J5K R S| AR #3can

Anguo Capital Water Co., Ltd. Anguo, the PRC Sewage and tap water Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Liu Wen Ya
processing Company

RIERARRARA A R TSR BRI (AR ok T HIRAT SR ICHE

Wuhan Tianchuang Environmental Wuhan, the PRC Sewage and tap water Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Zhang Wen Hui

Protection Co.,Ltd processing Company

TR ATRAR K MELRFEPPRI B RSl A AR s

Tianjin Capital New Materials Co., Ltd.  Tianjin, the PRC Production and sales of Subsidiary of the Limited company ~ Luo Lian Fang
new types of construction Company

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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W E  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRI WIS > SR s N REET0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

o EABB AR RILRS ) 0.

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

1 BBTRIR (5 (1)  RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS (Continued)
(b) 7 TEEEHBE 19 B 7 19 (b)  Paid up capital of related parties that has controlling relationship
Al M & R H A L and their movements
2007 4 2008 4
12H31H 12H31H
31 December 0138 m 31 December
2007 Additions 2008
W g TMICL 1,820,000 — 1,820,000
WA TICIG 16,100,000 51,600,000 67,700,000
T 3K Bs A R Qu Jing Capital Water Co., Led. 120,000 — 120,000
BMANEATE A R Gui Zhou Capital Water Co., Ltd. 100,000 — 100,000
RBEERAT R F] Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd. 100,000 — 100,000
KEBIZEREM A RAH Tianjin Capital New Materials Co., Ltd. 37,500 — 37,500
R BRI AT A R Fu Yang Capital Water Co., Ltd. 45,000 — 45,000
AR EAFEARITAT  Bao Ying Capital Water Co., Led. 38,000 — 38,000
TREER AT A R ) Chi Bi Capital Water Co., Led. 35,000 — 35,000
TR B 2E KBS AT PR Hong Hu Capital Water Co., Ltd. 20,000 — 20,000
B R BIKH AT RS 7 Hang Zhou Tianchuang Capital Water Co., Ltd. 257,445 — 257,445
B BIZEKH A RAH Wen Deng Capital Water Co., Ltd. 48,000 — 48,000
KHFHEAIZEKTARAT  Tianjin Jing Hai Capital Water Co., Ltd. 2,000 10,000 12,000
PHLRIZEK B AT R Xi'an Capital Water Co., Ltd. — 270,000 270,000
KPS TRANART  Tianjin Kaiying Environmental Engineering
AR Technology Consultant Co., Ltd. — 2,000 2,000
B AT A R 7 Anguo Capital Water Co., Ltd. — 41,000 41,000
B ABR AR A R ) Wuhan Tianchuang Environmental
Protection Co., Ltd — 47,230 47,230
FILT It FILT It FILT It
usD’000 usD’000 usD’000
RHEBIZERM (i) Tianjin Capital Environmental
HIRATH Protection (HK) Co., Ltd. 7,840 — 7,840
(c) FFTEEEHIBIE 19 B 5 7 pr (¢)  Share or equity of the Company held by a related party and its
FEAR 4 Al R 3k FE 75 Je HE movements
1L
20074 12431 H AR Y #2008 4E 12 H 31 H
As at 31 December 2007 Reduction for the year As at 31 December 2008
NG ST Hath  ARBETT Hoth  ARMET G HArk
Rmb’000 % Rmb’000 % Rmb’000 %
KEMEREHRAR TMICL 774,985 54.3 — — 774,985 54.3
PRIFIES Ve Sh ] S A]
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WL EE  Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRAFPIEIAL > SBE A AN RETT)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

+ - AR T WA R IHA Y (#)  10. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
1 BBITRIE (8 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS (Continued)
(d) BB KR (d)  Related party transactions
AR RAMBIRE T In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere
PRI BITE T 215 B4 in the financial statements, the following is a summary of
A B BB O A H significant related party transactions entered into in the
AT B A R A2 B ordinary course of the business between the Group and its
K related parties during the year:
M A ()  Income:
B 84 5 1 1 A RHPET 2008 2007
Related parties Nature of transaction
PREAIE /NG| TSR BRI (HHE—(a))
TSC Revenue from sewage
processing services (note 1(a)) — 601,806

e HHE WA
TICIG Rental income 6,853 6,290

KRBT PR K 2 ) B A2 4 I
Fy TRl 52 R T B LR AR A )
(B L) EmE e
AR o MR TTE LA R &
o H20074E11 H5 HEER
KA AR PR A A
2 Bl

(VI F s UN=F 7. (ii)

TSC and the Group were both previously supervised by Tianjin
Municipal Engineering General Company (“TMEGC”).
Pursuant to the restructuring of TMEGC, effective 5

November 2007 TSC is no longer related to the Group.

Key management compensation: 6,439 4,689

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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(BREFRITEBISL > SRALL AR T0)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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COMMITMENTS

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

The Group’s capital commitments at the balance sheet date are as follows:

TR A JBE bR A
Contracted but not provided for ~ Authorised but not contracted for
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARWH#EL  ARWAET ARBEHEC  ARWEEL
Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million
Sewage processing plants in:
- Hang Zhou 341 341 — —
- Wendeng 60 96 — —
- Jing Hai 22 43 — —
- ChiBi — 12 - 7
- Wu Han 108 — — —
-Xi An — — — 643
- An Guo 24 — — —
Tap Water plant:
- An Guo 15 — 33 —
- E Zhou — — 95 95
Wiater recycling plants:
- Dong Jiao 8 50 48 59
- Bei Chen 11 14 51 59
- Xian Yang Lu — 10 48 50
589 566 275 913
12. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B A A RS @R 2000 4F 4

28 HAHLHER L o

The accounts were approved by the Directors of the Company on 28 April

2009.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R



FORKHA B0 GE BIBE B A7 B2 ]I ORE

(A i 2 A R A L A7 A FR 2 D)

AKGBAG (DU RS (3 ) Ca R
211 % 287 HRHAIEBR (R B A IR ]
(TEAR]) RIMEAF (UTEH [EHE
) A A IR > MeAs A IR AR
CEFNET A S BIEE S R B E
BEREBEZH IFEENGGREE - 55
EREHENGAHERER > UATEGH
MR B A B G i e o

S A S R ARUR I Y A

B R R B RO A O A 8 R Y
T s AR Y A R R R AU (8RR 9
R UE i T R AV B % S i i A
BHER  BRALEARSGET ~ Hl AR LA
T BB T 5 0 5 A R 12
il o LA BB SR A7 A ph R Bk T 2
B S BRAL 5 BRI Y ) R
W BARMEDUT R B e ettt

e i vy 9 £

e B BT AT AR TAMT B A8 A 0 S iy P
A R R > BRIEZ A
ARHAG I LA F ) o FeMAS e A i s 1 A
R T HA A £ 8 _E SURIALATRAT ©

BB, Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of
Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 211 to 287, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2008
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been propetly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 April 2009
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

HAEBEREAME Consolidated Balance Sheet

2008 4F 12 H31 H (BRFERITERAL - S8R0 2 AR T 0)

As at 31 December 2008 (All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

Note 2008 2007
(& E51)
(Restated)
W ASSETS
Fhei Bl Non-current assets
LERE SIS} Property, plant and equipment 7 2,192,537 2,185,826
BETE B Intangible assets 8 1,884,264 1,174,341
Tl T Land use rights 9 393,135 403,529
ig<C/E S Investment properties 10 118,692 137,588
fra-3 k- Nl Investment in an associate 12 39,878 63,979
ATk L B A O Available-for-sale financial assets 13 4,000 4,000
RHIRENGK Long-term receivables 14 331,254 326,980
T8 5 REsUER Trade receivables due after one year 17 697,763 697,763
oAb IR By B Other non-current assets 15 47,252 23,778
5,708,775 5,017,784
L Current assets
e Inventories 16 9,448 6,634
5 MK Trade receivables 17 798,869 442944
HoAth HE i3k Other receivables 18 52,137 78,769
FNHIE Prepayments 19 81,987 57,964
B4 T ARAT A5 R Cash and bank balances 20 909,047 339,971
1,851,488 926,282
g Total assets 7,560,263 5,944,066

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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(]
[\S]

T i U o ) A B 2

Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued) ZFHEEAMBR (&)

(BRFERE WAL - RN NRWETI0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated) 2008 4F 12 H 31 H
As at 31 December 2008

Note 2008 2007
(KEE)
(Restated)
g EQUITY
AR A RER AN Capital and reserves attributable to
HEEAY A B fik the Company’s equity holders
JheAs Share capital 21 1,427,228 1,427,228
oAb fili Other reserves 22 636,431 615,674
R E 2L Retained earnings 22 1,044,043 890,824
— RIS — Proposed final dividend 57,089 57,089
— KoL — Undistributed 986,954 833,735
3,107,702 2,933,726
AR B RR Minority interests 118,496 117,358
HuhEd: Total equity 3,226,198 3,051,084
it LIABILITIES
Fr it Non-current liabilities
3k Borrowings 23 2,449,069 1,793,523
RAE T3 8E B 1R Deferred income tax liabilities 23,640 14,348
2,472,709 1,807,871
VTLURER S Current liabilities
Z 5 REAT 3R Trade payables 24 17,841 12,469
TR R Advances from customers 24 228,716 171,341
B A5 T M Wages payables 5,054 6,674
EHIPTER B A 6 Income tax payable 18,783 62,299
HAb e B2 Other taxes payable 4,895 7,428
AR Dividend payable 2,048 842
HALTER R Other payables 24 99,848 113,946
fiax Borrowings 23 1,484,171 710,112
1,861,356 1,085,111
il Total liabilities 4,334,065 2,892,982
HURERE K £ 0% Total equity and liabilities 7,560,263 5,944,066
LA B Net current liabilities (9,868) (158,829)
H P R ) £ 4% Total assets less current liabilities 5,698,907 4,858,955
752 BOF S5 R 2 B 2 B i ) AL LT 4 The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Director Director
#H #H
TR S BRI AT R A
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

A EEANM  Company balance sheet

2008 412 A 31 A (BREIEDISN » Aty AR T7T)
As at 31 December 2008 (All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
Note 2008 2007
(& E51)
(Restated)
W ASSETS
Fhei Bl Non-current assets
LE R S} Property, plant and equipment 7 1,949,511 1,964,527
Tl Land use rights 9 389,561 399,925
4 U ES Investment properties 10 92,876 95,305
PG 2 A Investment in subsidiaries 11 1,090,981 720,751
A A T Available for sale financial assets 13 4,000 4,000
R Long-term receivables 14 331,254 326,980
RIME 5 BER Trade receivables due after one year 17 697,763 697,763
HoAth I i By & s Other non-current assets 15 43,700 20,525
4,599,646 4,229,776
L ¢ Current assets
e Inventories 16 3,360 3,034
B 5 FEIGK Trade receivables 17 742,879 401,905
oAb R Other receivables 18 300,769 82,459
B FRIE Prepayments 19 33,813 12,984
B4 KT HE R Cash and bank balances 20 275,440 86,633
1,356,261 587,015
¥ Total assets 5,955,907 4,816,791

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




(]

SN

S5 s T o U A R S

Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

Company balance sheet (Continued) AR EEAME (4)

(BREFRITEDISL > SFHALL AR TI0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
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—HEIRAR MBS
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Bk A
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fEa
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L RSN
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Flk iR
L A
EHBLA
JARERRL %
JREAT R
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B
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Director

#H

Note
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to
the Company’s equity holders
Share capital 21
Other reserves 22
Retained earnings 22
- Proposed final dividend
- Undistributed
Total equity
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 23
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade payables 24
Advances from customers 24
Wages payables
Income tax payable
Other tax payable
Dividend payable
Other payables 24
Borrowings 23

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

2008 4E 12 H 31 H

As at 31 December 2008

2008 2007
(== F)

(Restated)

1,427,228 1,427,228
633,881 613,124
990,501 860,776
57,089 57,089
933,412 803,687
3,051,610 2,901,128
1,389,909 1,182,273
12,258 8,231
1,402,167 1,190,504
7,277 6,139
61,130 28,099
3,587 5,753
17,160 56,334
4,028 5,308

766 842
132,928 100,957
1,275,254 521,727
1,502,130 725,159
2,904,297 1,915,663
5,955,907 4,816,791
(145,869) (138,144)
4,453,777 4,091,632

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Director

EH
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

AWM Consolidated income statement
(BRAESTHEIS - S 4M G A A T5E)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

Note 2008 2007
(& E51)
(Restated)
Revenue 6 1,135,101 978,953
Business tax (42,097) (42,384)
Cost of sales 25 (497,541) (399,202)
Gross profit 595,463 537,367
Other income 6 18,767 12,111
Administrative costs 25 (90,283) (107,711)
Operating profit 523,947 441,767
Finance costs - net 27 (214,489) (135,362)
Share of profits of an associate 12 780 3,187
Profit before income tax 310,238 309,592
Income tax expense 28 (76,753) (99,224)
Profit for the year 233,485 210,368
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 231,065 209,328
Minority interests 2,420 1,040
233,485 210,368
Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the equity holders of
the Company during the year (in Rmb Yuan) 30
- basic 0.16 0.15
- diluted 0.16 0.15
Proposed final dividend 31 57,089 57,089

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
HE R ER  Consolidated statement of changes in equity

(BRI Sl W P A AR B 0 oy R T 58)

(Prepared in accordance with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in Hong Kong)
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Balance at 1 January 2007
— as previously reported

— effect of
adopting
[FRIC 12

As restated
Profit for the year
Dividend declared

Conversion of
convertible bonds

Balance at 31 December 2007
(Restated)

Profit for the year
Dividend declared

Balance at
31 December 2008

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

AR THRRATA
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
PY
JBeAR JB 2R
{35 Share fi i /it Minority fit
Note capital Reserves Sub-total interests Total
1,330,666 1,056,192 2,386,858 116,111 2,502,969
3 — 15,043 15,043 207 15,250
1,330,666 1,071,235 2,401,901 116,318 2,518,219
— 209,328 209,328 1,040 210,368
— (56,105) (56,105) — (56,105)
96,562 282,040 378,602 — 378,602
1,427,228 1,506,498 2,933,726 117,358 3,051,084
— 231,065 231,065 2,420 233,485
31 — (57,089) (57,089) (1,282) (58,371)
1,427,228 1,680,474 3,107,702 118,496 3,226,198

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

HABIARHEFE  Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2008 4 (R FE 45 T3 B r A7 4 4 B 1 1 2 ARG To0)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

Note 2008 2007
(8E5)
(Restated)

AR B AR Cash flows from operating activities

EEEA B4 Cash generated from operations 32 408,961 345,602
Bt B A SE T AR R PRC income tax paid (110,977) (97,538)
RIS E A R4 Net cash generated from operating activities 297,984 248,064
BV WY B AR R Cash flows from investing activities

B - B AR Mt S e Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (884,747) (260,6006)
R —AFE IR H BAR R & Deposits for new project bids due over one year (10,000) (25,770)
Ty A T R S B Payment of other non-current assets — (11,146)
el TRES R 4 Release of deposit on project bids 22,770 6,000
A - B Rt T K Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 32 520 3,673
B T A i T AR K Proceeds from sale of available for sale financial assets — 1,506
H =GR A W A3 I T Proceeds from partial disposal of an associate 30,230 —
EALE Bank interest received 6,616 7,850
R Dividend received — 868
PO ) i O Net cash used in investing activities (834,611) (277,625)
AR B A Cash flows from financing activities

g I TR A i R A Release of deposits on convertible bonds — 47,000
LRt R & Deposits for entrusted loan (43,700) —
R Proceeds from borrowings 2,386,590 1,279,890
AR Repayment of borrowings (956,985) (1,472,140)
SAHEFALE Interest paid (224,980) (162,400) e
I A ) R SR S A RS Dividends paid (57,165) (56,562) ==
ST RET RS 9 e Hs 2 Payment of service fee in respective of bank borrowing (5,057) —
WESGEEL S ) B84 Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 1,098,703 (364,212)
B4 MR AT S 1B, () Net increase/(decrease) in cash and bank balances 562,076 (393,773)
NAEY) 2 B4 M SRAT B Cash and bank balances at beginning of the year 324,971 718,744
TRAERZ BL A B BT A5 Bk Cash and bank balances at end of the year 887,047 324,971

12 WA 5 SR B o A B R A AL R 2

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
BB Notes to the financial statements

(BREITE WIS > A2y AR To0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
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Plant Location

LURT4F RT3 TEBATHI 4 ] -

On-going agreements signed in prior years:

KBRS

Dong Jiao, Tianjin
KHEAIET

Ji Zhuang Zi, Tianjin
KRB

Xian Yang Lu, Tianjin
K

Bei Cang, Tianjin
M

Gui Yang, Guizhou
TLERE e

Bao Ying, Jiangsu
TR

Fu Yang, Anhui
Fra

Qu Jing, Yunnan

B aiia

Hong Hu, Hubei
WAL

Hang Zhou, Zhejiang
PR

Jing Hai, Tianjin

W R

Wen Deng, Shandong

20084F
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Company profile and principal activities

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established on 8 June 1993 in Tianjin, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) as a joint stock limited liability company.

In 2008, the name of the Company was changed to Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection Group Company Limited from Tianjin Capital

Environmental Protection Company Limited.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
include processing of sewage, tap water, recycled water and receipt of toll

road collection as described below:

(a)  Processing of sewage
Pursuant to relevant agreements (“Sewage Processing Agreements”),
the Group currently provides sewage processing services via the

following plants:

TRT R

TR 357 H W E I
Agreement date Customer
20004F 10 10H PNl A
10 October 2000 Tianjin Sewage Company (“TSC”)
20004107 10H KA Pk 2 vl
10 October 2000 TSC
20004107 10H K Pk 2 ]
10 October 2000 TSC
20004F 10 10H PNl A
10 October 2000 TSC
20044£9 1 16 H BBk
16 September 2004 Guiyang City Administration Bureau
200546113 H B AR R
13 June 2005 Baoying ConstructionBureau
20054F12J118H RS ZERG
18 December 2005 Anhui Fuyang Construction Committee
2005412125 i 44k PRk A
25 December 2005 Qujing City Water General Company
2005412129 H HE T
29 December 2005 Honghu Construction Bureau
20064F 11320 H BUHITT KA PR 7
20 November 2006 Hangzhou Sewage Company
2007491 12 F RFRHERE
12 September 2007 Tianyu Science Technology Park
20074121 19H SCE T RN
19 December 2007 Wendeng Construction Bureau
TR S BRI AT R A
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200841
For the year ended 31 December 2008
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Significant new agreement signed in 2008:
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Xi’an, Shanxi
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W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRAFIITEB A > S F 0 2 AR T 0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

1 Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

(a)  Processing of sewage (Continued)

T HERT H %P

Agreement date Customer

V% TR B il 2 S AR A )

Xi'an Infrastructure Investment Group

200843 18H
18 March 2008

The principal terms and the pricing formula as set out in the relevant

agreements are briefly summarised below:

Dong Jiao:

The Group will have full recovery of actual operating costs, including
depreciation of property, plant and equipment, excluding interest

expenses and foreign exchange gains or losses and at minimum:

(i)  earn areturn of 15% per annum of the average balances of
the monthly net book value of property, plant and equipment

(as defined in the agreement) of the plants; and

(ii)  incentive pricing adjustments will be made for cost saving and/
or when actual processing volume exceeds the minimum

processing volume stipulated in the agreement.

Ji Zbuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang:

Based on the supplementary agreement reached with TSC on 10
March 2006, the Company is entitled to a pre-determined sewage
processing fee from the completion date of construction to the
completion date of inspection of the Ji Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu
and Bei Cang plants. After the inspection of these three plants is
completed, processing fee will be collected from TSC based on the

same principle as for Dong Jiao plant as described above.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

WM SE  Notes to the financial statements

(BREFITEWISY > A2y AR To0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
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20084F
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Processing of sewage (Continued)

All other sewage processing plants:

Initial sewage processing prices are predetermined, thereafter
processing price may be revised after considering various factors
including renovation of equipment, additional investment, power
and energy and labour force, and other significant changes of

government policy;

All sewage processing plants outside Tianjin are guaranteed a
minimum processing volume by their respective customers except
for Gui Yang. If the actual volume is lower than the guaranteed

volume, processing fee will be settled using the guaranteed volume.

On 6 December 2006, Guiyang Price Bureau confirmed a new price
for the year 2007 which will allow full recovery of all actual costs,
including operating cost, depreciation, income tax and a return of

8% on budgeted net assets of the plant.

Processing of tap water

Pursuant to an agreement reached with Qujing City Water General
Company on 25 December 2005, a subsidiary of the Company,
Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd., will provide tap water supply service
to Qujing City via the Yunnan Qujing tap water processing plant at

pre-determined pricing. In addition:

(i)  Processing price as pre-determined above may be revised after

considering various cost factors based on contract terms; and

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRAFIITEB A > S F 0 2 AR T 0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

1 Company profile and principal activities (Continued)
(b)  Processing of tap water (Continued)
(i)  Qujing City Water General Company guarantees a minimum
supply volume. If the actual volume is lower than that
guaranteed, supply fee will be settled using the guaranteed

volume.

(c)  Toll road collections
Tianjin Municipality Engineering Bureau (“TMEB*) granted
collection right for six toll stations from 1 July 2003 to 28 February
2029 to the Company but it is not allowed to transfer, lease or pledge

the right to other parties without TMEB’s consent.

In tandem, the Company entered into an agreement (“Toll Collection
Agreement”) with Tianjin Toll Collection Office on 24 July 2003

with the following principal terms:

o the Company engaged the Toll Collection Office to collect
the tolls at the six toll stations on its behalf for which it will

pay a management fee;

. the Company is to receive the actual tolls collected from the
six stations for the corresponding period/year, subject to
minimum toll fee for each period/year based on the forecast
traffic flow and tolls for the corresponding period/year as
stipulated in a traffic flow and tolls forecast report for the six
toll stations issued by a professional consulting company in

July 2003; and

. any shortfall to the Company between actual and the agreed
minimum will be compensated to the Company by the Toll

Collection Office.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
WA LM HE  Notes to the financial statements
(BREERIEAN - SRR AR TI0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
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20084F
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have

been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) and have been prepared under the historical cost

convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed

in Note 5.
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I HE M EE  Notes to the financial statements

(BRAFIEBISL - SR A AR T D)

20084E (All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2 BEESBORME 5 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 SRR (%) 2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) 20084 12 A 31 H k&5t (b)  The following new interpretations are mandatory for the
AF B K T A A BT RT R financial year ended 31 December 2008:
B
il e RERI39 1) SRR - iR e M HKAS 39 & Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement & Financial
BEIABERT BT A LR 5% - EHase HKFRS 7 Instruments: Disclosures — Reclassification of financial assets
g (Amendments)
il (R A S A s P HHE 2 — S 1 % R HK(IFRIC) - Int 11 HKERS 2 — Group and treasury share transactions
ABERG) —RR FRBS
Al (R A S A MR R RE 2 BE HK(IFRIC) - Int 12 Service concession arrangements
AfEEE ) — R
it (0 PR A s G R 19— FEAE A HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
RHZAY) —@dBlY EERE REEeEk R requirements and their interaction.
T A B AR
N (BT The impact of adoption of HK (IFRIC) — Int 12 is detailed in
BLZEE) —RRRIEE Note 3 to the financial statements.
FLHR F LA S R T
30
223
WL R AR The adoption of the rest of new interpretations above had no
EEE SV 3 p 5 NVE TN significant impact on the results and financial position of the
iz Group.
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WM SE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRAFTITEIIAN > S F N 25 NRIET0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
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20084F
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)  The following new standards, amendments to the existing
standards and interpretations have been issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group:

HKFRS (Amendments) Improvement to HKFRS (effective from 1 January 2009 unless

otherwise specified)

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial statements (effective from 1 January 2009)

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs (effective from 1 January 2009)

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate financial statements (effective from 1 July
2009)
HKAS 1 and Presentation of financial statements & Financial Instruments:
HKAS 32 Presentation - Puttable financial instruments and obligations arising
(Amendments) on liquidation(effective from 1 January 2009)

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement -Eligible

hedged items (effective from 1 July 2009)

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time adoption of HKFRS (effective from 1 July 2009)

HKAS 27 & Consolidated and segaratc financial statements & First-time adoption
HKFRS 1 of HKFRS — Cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly controlled
(Amendments) entity or associate (effective from 1 January 2009)

HKEFRS 2 (Amendments) Share-based payment — Vesting conditions and cancellations
(effective from 1 January 2009

HKEFRS 3 (Revised)

Business combinations (effective from 1 July 2009)

HKEFRS 8 Operating segments (effective from 1 January 2009)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer loyalty programmes (effective from 1 July 2008)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

Agreements for the construction of real estate (effective from 1 January
2009)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedggs of a net investment in a foreign operation (effective from 1

October 2008)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to owners (effective from 1 July 2009

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfer of assets from customers (effective from 1 July 2009)

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these standards,
amendments and interpretations on the financial statements of the

Group in the initial application.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BREFRIEISL » SR80 2y N RWET0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 31

December.

()

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered

when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated

from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets acquired,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is

recognised directly in the income statement.
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(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
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20084F
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed, where
necessary, in the consolidated financial statements to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the

basis of dividend received and receivable.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains and losses
for the Group that are recorded in the consolidated income
statement. Purchases from minority interests result in goodwill,
being the difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of

the subsidiary.
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W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BREFRIEISL » SR80 2y N RWET0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

()

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill (net of any

accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.
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I LM R Notes to the financial statements

(FREFHIEMIS - SRR AL ARWET D)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated) 20084E i
For the year ended 31 December 2008
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2 BEAGBORBE 9 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
22 HAWH (5 2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(c) WELA (H) (¢)  Associates (Continued)
R y/NliDE LV i Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised in the
Al R o consolidated income statement.
2.3 SR 2.3 Segment reporting
S IR R B E T UM s ) A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in
—HEEERS - T S BURE Y providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns
FLMDIEI%&,\,JTB%%/WEW that are different from those of other business segments. A
(] o 3 88 7 P R e AR geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services
BT R R A i R ﬁlﬁ: within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks
S5 11 JE g o ] L LA A8 and returns that are different from those of segments operating in
B P 1 ) SRR R[] o other economic environments.
24 HhEERESR 2.4 Translation of foreign currencies
(a) DIREFIZYHR 1 (a)  Functional and presentation currency
AR B (R SR O BT AR Ttems included in the financial statements of each of the
JIr 3 S DA% B Group’ entities are measured using the currency of the primary
TE i T B ARG BRI 9 B WSt economic environment in which the entity operates (the
& ((ThReEw ) - &5 “functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
HEUNRERZH > AR are presented in Renminbi (“Rmb”), which is the Company’s
WA B RO W functional and presentation currency and also that of its
Al TR LR &K o principal subsidiaries.

(b)  Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the income statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of buildings and structures is calculated to write-off
their cost less estimated net residual value and accumulated
impairment losses, if any, on a straight-line basis over their expected
useful lives ranging from 10 to 50 years. Included in structures are
pipelines networks laid outside the plant which are depreciated over

their estimated useful lives of 25 years.

Other property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates
sufficient to write-off the cost less estimated residual value and
accumulated impairment losses, if any, over their estimated useful

lives on a straight-line basis estimated as follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-20 years

Mortor vehicles and others 5-10 years

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The asset’s carrying amount
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s

carrying value is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction or installation and is stated at cost. Cost comprises
all direct costs of acquisition or construction of buildings and plant
and machinery as well as interest expenses on the related funds
borrowed during the construction. Construction in progress is

transferred to property, plant and equipment upon completion.

Major costs incurred in restoring property, plant and equipment to
their normal working condition are charged to the income statement.
The expenses relating to improvements of property, plant and

equipment are capitalised over their expected useful lives to the Group.
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20084F
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the income statement.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent the rights to charge users of public service
that the Group obtained under service concession arrangements.
Intangible assets are recognised at cost less accumulated amortisation

and any impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated to write off their costs
on a straight-line basis over the terms of operation ranging from 25

to 30 years under the respective service concession arrangements.

Land use rights

Land use rights acquired are classified as operating lease, recorded at
cost and presented net of accumulated amortisation and impairment
provision. The prepaid lease payments are amortised on a straight-

line basis over the lease period ranging from 25 to 50 years.

Investment properties
Properties that are held for long-term rental yields and that is not
occupied by any of the companies within the Group, is classified as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment. Depreciation of investment properties are calculated
to write-off that cost, less estimated net residual value and
accumulated impairment losses, if any, on a straight-line basis over

estimated useful lives ranging from 25 to 50 years.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed (other than of temporary
nature), it is reclassified as investment property at net book value

and vice versa.
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2 FEGHIEORBE 5 2
29 MHBAW - BEAWRIEEBE 2.9

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates and non-
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financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each balance sheet date.

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
loans and receivable and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at

initial recognition.

(a)  Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘long-term receivables’, *trade and

other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’.
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2 BEAGBORBE 9 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2,10 & E ()
2.10.1 %1 (4

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.1 Classification (Continued)
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(b)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose of the investment within

12 months of the balance sheet date.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets is
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried

at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the consolidated income statement as ‘gains and losses

from investment securities’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of other income when

the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices.
If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted
securities), the Group established fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on

entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
in impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is
removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement. Impairment testing of trade

receivables is described in Note 2.11

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less provision for impairment.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement. When a trade or other receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade
and other receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited in the income statement.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with

original maturities of three months or less.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories comprise raw materials, finished goods and other
consumables and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. The cost of finished
goods comprise raw materials, direct labour and an allocation of all
production overhead expenditures incurred based on normal
operating capacity. Provisions for declines in the values of inventories
are determined on item-by-item basis when the carrying value of
the inventories is higher than their net realisable value. Net realisable
value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less

estimated distribution and selling expenses.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Inventories (Continued)
The Group adopts perpetual inventory system to maintain its

inventories.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the

period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

12 months after the balance sheet date.
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2 BEAGBORBE 9 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
217 HEWBIBGE B

2.17 Current and deferred income tax
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The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the regions where the Company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Taxation rates enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date are used to

determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same

fiscal authority.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

2.19

Retirement benefit obligation

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by relevant
municipal and provincial governments in the PRC. The
municipal and provincial governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligation of all existing and future
retired employees payable under these plans. Contributions

to these plans are expensed as incurred.

Housing fund

The Group provides housing fund based on certain percentage
of the wages and with no more than the upper limit of the
requirement. The housing fund is paid to government social
security organisation and corresponding costs are expensed or
included in the cost of sales for the current year. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefit relating to employee service in the

current and prior periods.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from sewage processing, provision of tap water and

toll fee income is recognised when services are rendered.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered to customers and

title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking
into account the principal amounts outstanding and the

interest rates applicable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or

sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement

in the year in which they are incurred.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the sharcholders of the Company is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the
shareholders of the Company.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary holder of the guarantee (i.e. the
holder) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms

of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised at their
fair values, and subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the
amount initially recognised less accumulated amortisation; and
(ii) the amount required to be settled by the guarantor in
respect of the financial guarantee contracts at the balance sheet

date.
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Summary of the effects of the adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service

Concession arr angements

In 2008, the Group adopted HK (IFRIC)-Int 12, “Service Concession

Arrangements”, (“IFRIC 12”) which is relevant to its operations.

IFRIC 12 applies to contractual arrangements whereby a private sector
operator participates in the development, financing, operation and
maintenance of infrastructure for public sector services. The adoption of
IFRIC 12 resulted in a change in accounting policy for the Group’s sewage

treatment, water supply and toll roads operations.

Before adoption of IFRIC 12, the Group’s sewage treatment, water supply
and toll roads assets were recorded as property, plant and equipment. In
accordance with IFRIC 12, the Group’s sewage treatment infrastructure
outside Tianjin and water supply infrastructure was recognised as intangible
assets, to the extent that the Group receives a right to charge users of the
public service. The toll road infrastructure was recognised as financial assets,
to the extent that the Group has an unconditional contractual right to

receive cash at the direction of the grantor.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




SR Y U 0 i B 0 A SR A S A
Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

WA LM HE  Notes to the financial statements

(FREFHIEMIS - SRR AL ARWET D)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated) 20084E i
For the year ended 31 December 2008

3 BHAS (EBEMEsERELEE 3 Summary of the effects of the adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service
ZHE) 212 — [IRERF Concession arrangements (Continued)
BZPE] BBIME (5

(a) TSR IR B0 w0 45 B (a) Restatement of prior years and opening balances
TREERARRE 2B The following tables illustrate the adjustments made to each of the
— AR C R W IR R financial statement line item as a result of the adoption of IFRIC 12
JHAEH 2% in respect of the each prior period presented:
(i) BRFE2007412H31H 4% (i) Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
ZEAHRR December 2007
2007 Increase/
(as previously (decrease) 2007
reported) ¥im (as restated)
(i 2. 58t) /(W) (%))
ELION Revenue 981,028 (2,075) 978,953
BRA Cost of sales (425,090) 25,888 (399,202)
B Gross profit 513,554 23,813 537,367
BEEAMN Operating profit 417,954 23,813 441,767
A Finance costs (146,182) 10,820 (135,362)
BRI B A Profit before income tax 274,959 34,633 309,592
Prisst Income tax expense (92,387) (6,837) (99,224)
ARAEBE A Profit for the year 182,572 27,796 210,368
JREA - Attributable to:
A FRERR AT N Equity holders of the Company 183,813 25,515 209,328
DR R £ Minority interests (1,241) 2,281 1,040
182,572 27,796 210,368

AEM AR u] BEZRFE A Earnings per share for profit attributable to
HEAG AW IR A  the equity holders of the Company

(A RHEIL) during the year (In Rmb Yuan)
— A - basic 0.13 0.02 0.15
— i - diluted 0.13 0.02 0.15
T A7) TR A L6 )

TRT R
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3 BHAS (EBEMERLEEE 3 Summary of the effects of the adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service
ZHE) 2B 12 - [IRERF Concession arrangements (Continued)
BEPE | BB BE (W)

(a) TERCRIEF WA () (a)  Restatement of prior years and opening balances (Continued)
(i) A20074EF12H3IHZERER (i) Balance sheets at 31 December 2007
ik
%M A
Group Company
2007 2007
(as previously Increase/ 2007 (as previously Increase/ 2007
reported) (decrease) (as restated) reported) (decrease) (as restated)
B/ B/
(i 238) (W5) (&%) (i 23%) (W5) (&%)
i ASSETS
#mﬁlgﬁ Non—currem assets
W% - Wi Gk Property, plant and equipment 3,061,450 (1,075,624) 2,185,826 2,095,138 (130,611) 1,964,527
&R Intangible assets — 1,174,341 1,174,341 — — —
Tl Land use rights 676,912 (273,383) 403,529 563,359 (163,434) 399,925
RMREGK Long-term receivables — 326,980 326,980 — 326,980 326,980
Hip s EE Other non-current assets 118,698 (94,920) 23,778 20,525 — 20,525
ERBERE AT Total non-current assets 4,960,390 57,394 5,017,784 4,196,841 32,935 4,229,776
Vi Total assets 5,886,672 57,394 5,944,066 4,783,856 32,935 4,816,791 241
W% EQUITY
AAWMERFAEA  Capital and reserves attributable to
RERTEARRBM  the Company’s equity holders
Htbfikfis Other reserves 613,203 2471 615,674 610,653 2471 613,124
N Retained earnings 852,737 38,087 890,824 838,543 22,233 860,776
BRMEATRR  Equity auribuable to the
Hediat shareholders of the Company 2,893,168 40,558 2,933,726 2,876,424 24,704 2,901,128
62 i3 Minority interests 114,870 2,488 117,358 — — —
bl 4] Total equity 3,008,038 43,046 3,051,084 2,876,424 24,704 2,901,128
il LIABILITIES
Jein s b Non-current liabilities
EEHEHAE Deferred income tax liabilities — 14,348 14,348 — 8,231 8,231
FRBAFEAT  Totl non-current liabilities 1,793,523 14,348 1,807,871 1,182,273 8,231 1,190,504
B Total liabilities 2,878,634 14,348 2,892,982 1,907,432 8,231 1,915,663
B R AN Total equity and liabilities 5,886,672 57,39% 5,944,066 4783856 32,935 4,816,791
BHEWRBAL  Total assets less current liabilities 4,801,561 57,394 4,858,955 4,058,697 32,935 4,091,632
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3 Summary of the effects of the adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service

Concession arrangements (Continued)

(a)  Restatement of prior years and opening balances (Continued)

(iii) Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31

December 2007
2007
(as previously Increase/ 2007
reported) (decrease) (as restated)
GiER) W (R5) (S TH)

Profit for the year 182,572 27,796 210,368
Adjustments for:

— Taxation 92,387 6,837 99,224

— Depreciation and amortisation 197,752 (25,888) 171,864

— Interest expense-net 154,032 (10,820) 143,212
Operating profit before working

capital changes 614,257 (2,075) 612,182
Increase in trade receivables,

other receivables and prepayments (389,274) 2,075 (387,199)
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3 Summary of the effects of the adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service

Concession arrangements (Continued)

(b)  Effect of changes in accounting policy on the current year

(i)  Effect on the income statement for the year ended 31

December 2008
Wi,/ ()
Increase/(decrease)
Revenue (6,843)
Cost of sales 32,893
Finance costs 11,118
Income tax expense (9,292)
Profit for the year 27,876
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 25,633
Minority interests 2,243
Earnings per share for profit attributable to
the equity holders of the Company during the year
(In Rmb Yuan)
— basic 0.02
— diluted 0.02

(i)  Effect on the balance sheets at 31 December 2008

Rm, (M4)
Increase/(decrease)
£ A
Group Company

Assets:
Property, plant and equipment (1,759,857) (123,160)
Intangible assets 1,884,264 —
Land use rights (269,579) (159,057)
Long-term receivables 331,254 331,254
Other non-current assets (91,520) —
Equity:
Other reserves 3,679 3,679
Retained earnings 62,512 33,100
Minority interests 4,731 —
Liabilities:
Deferred income tax liabilities 23,640 12,258
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3 Summary of the effects of the adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service

Concession arrangements (Continued)

(b)  Effect of changes in accounting policy on the current year
(Continued)

(iii) Effect on consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended

31 December 2008

Bim,/ (W4)
(increase/ (decrease)
Profit for the year 27,876
Adjustments for:
— Taxation 9,292
— Depreciation and amortisation (32,893)
— Interest expense-net (11,118)
Operating profit before working capital changes (6,843)
Decrease in trade receivables,
other receivables and prepayments 6,843

4 Financial risk management
(a)  Financial risk factors:
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The
Group’s overall risk management seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the financial performance of the Group.

Foreign currency risk:

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk as the operations
and customers of the Group’s subsidiaries are located in the PRC
with most of the operating assets and transactions denominated and
settled in Renminbi. All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated

in Renminbi.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
TRT R




20084F &

For the year ended 31 December 2008

4 WMEMEBEEE (g

5 U S o e S AR B B R
Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

W EE  Notes to the financial statements

(BRFFRIEMSY - SRERAA AR 0

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

(a) WMEEBEHEEK : (4) (a)  Financial risk factors: (Continued)
B < i B8 K 2 AR R B - Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk:
BREBATAE AR ~ R IIME MO A 3K The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
b > ASEE A AR S other than bank deposits, long term receivables and borrowings.
KA -
ASEBHA ER IS TIE - 28) The Group has significant bank borrowings. Those taken at variable
MIZAEH A BAZ BB E A rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk, whilst those
IR > T o AR A SR taken at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
TR SUE AR -
AT 3R SR T A B AR A wI Y The table below sets out the Group’s and the Company’s exposure
FISEBE o f 5 7E LA T RGP E to interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities
R B RIRTEE(E > DB H 2 at carrying amounts, categorised by the maturity dates.
K o
£ i
Group Company
£.3:8 3
Non- Non- 245
HEHE  FEAE interest mit HRAR RBAR interest it
Fixed  Floating bearing Total Fixed  Floating bearing Total

20084:12431H At 31 December 2008
B Assets
B JARTTERAR Cash and bank balances 22,000 887,047 — 909,047 13,000 262440 — 275440
RMRELGE Long-term receivables 331,254 — — 331254 331,254 — — 331254
At Liabilities
RE Current borrowings 606,254 726790 151,127 1484171 606254 621,000 48,000 1,275,254
FREER Non-current borrowings 332,609 2,116,460 — 2449069 288909 1,101,000 — 1,389,909
20074F12H31H At 31 December 2007
B Assets
B BRI TRE Cash and bank balances 9,000 330,971 - 339,971 - 86,033 - 86,033
RIRELGE Long-term receivables 326,980 — — 326980 326,980 — — 326,980
At Liabilities
RE R Current borrowings 132727 471250 106,135 710,112 132,727 389,000 — 5,777
B Non-current borrowings 305,273 1,488,250 — 1,793,523 305,273 877,000 — 1,182,273
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Annual Report 2008



S5 s T o U A R S

Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

WM SE  Notes to the financial statements

(BREFITEWISY > A2y AR To0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
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20084F
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Financial risk management (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors: (Continued)

Cash flow and fuir value interest rate risk: (Continued)

At 31 December 2008, if interest rates on bank borrowings had
been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit
for the year would have been lower/higher by Rmb26million (2007:
Rmb17 million).

The Group also analyses its interest rate exposure by considering

refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative financing.

Credit risk:
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and credit exposures to

customers.

The Group manages credit risk on bank deposits by placing the
majority of its cash and bank balances with state owned/listed banks
in the PRC. The Group has not had any significant loss arising from
non-performance by these parties in the past and management does

not expect so in the future.

The credit risk on trade receivables is concentrated on a few
customers, all of which are PRC government bodies. Thus,

management considers that the risk is limited.

The maximum credit risk of the Company includes the carrying
value of its financial assets on books and is increased by the notional

amount of financial guarantees issued for its subsidiaries.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
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W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BREFRIEISL » SR80 2y N RWET0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

(a)

J#2008412/331H At 31 December 2008
RIRITEK Long-term bank borrowings
RIAER K Long-term payables

A Bk B A A 5

Trade and other payables

JA20074£ 12 31H At 31 December 2007
RIEATEK Long-term bank borrowings
RIAER K Long-term payables

JEATRRF L MERT S Trade and other payables

Financial risk factors: (Continued)

Liquidity risk:

The Group manages its liquidity risk based on a rolling working
capital forecast which comprises a 3-5 year long term plan and a 12
months monthly working capital forecast. The long term plan is
reviewed annually and the monthly working capital forecast is
prepared based on daily operating needs and capital expenditure

requirement from new and existing projects.

Generally, approximately 60% of budgeted capital expenditure for
new projects is projected for external financing. One of the
considerations for management to assess the feasibility of new projects
is whether the return can cover the cost of the project external

financing and provide a reasonable return to the shareholders.

The Group’s financial liabilities (inclusive of interests) are analysed
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date, using the

contracted undiscounted cash flows, as follows:

EDH Vg4 2EFISHE
Less Between Between 54D E
than 1 1 and 2 and Over ot
year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
530,768 668,164 1,189,293 620,926 3,009,151
17,182 17,182 50,344 67,122 151,830
117,689 — — — 117,689
445,322 318,225 1,026,038 414,594 2,204,179
34,363 — — 154,637 189,000
169,008 — — — 169,008

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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WA LM HE  Notes to the financial statements
(BREERIEAN - SRR AR TI0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

(b)

(9

Capital risk management

In managing its capital risk, management considers capital to include
paid up capital from shareholders and borrowings. The Group’s
objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue

as a going concern in order to provide returns for sharcholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure an optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements of
the Group and capital efficiency, projected operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment

opportunities.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio of about 40% -

60%. The gearing ratio of the Group is as follows:

#12/31H
As at 31 December
2008 2007
(B E )
(Restated)

3,933,240
(887,047)

2,503,635
(324,971)

Total borrowings
Less: Cash

Net debt 3,046,193 2,178,664

Total equity 3,226,198 3,051,084

Total capital 6,272,391 5,229,748

49% 42%

Gearing ratio

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar

financial instruments.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
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W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRAFIITEB A > S F 0 2 AR T 0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

Ciritical accounting estimate and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The Group’s principle estimate and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next year is in relation to impairment of

trade and other receivables.

The Group determines the impairment of trade and other receivables based
on objective evidence of impairment and historical loss experience of the
respective individual balances. Management believes that trade and other

receivables as at 31 December 2008 are not impaired.

Revenue and segment information

An analysis of sales and contributions to operating profit for the year by

principal activities is as follows:

(a)  Analysis of the Group’s turnover and other income

2008 2007

(B 51)

(Restated)

Revenue from principal operation (note 6(b)) 1,135,101 978,953
Other income — net 18,767 12,111
1,153,868 991,064

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




S5 s T o U A R S

Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

WM SE  Notes to the financial statements

(BREFITEWISY > A2y AR To0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

6 BREERAWER ()
(b)  HBERB S B
(i)  #E20084F12 131 HIEAF
E
LELION Segment revenue
ERENA Segment expenses
I Segment results
/N Share of profits of
FH an associate

FRIFEBIAIAR  Profic before tax
PR A Income tax
SRR Profit for the year
S ERE Segment assets
B AT Associate
sribEfE Segment liabilities
HtbgH Other information
FERM Depreciation
HaHER Amortisation
BN S Capital expenditures

20084F &

For the year ended 31 December 2008

6 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(b)  Business segment analysis
(1) Foryear ended and as at 31 December 2008
TKEAE
ik jig it LG
ik BB ik Recycled HAK ik
Sewage B waterand ok REMB Sub-total of
processing  Road toll pipeline  Tapwater Construction ~ principle b %M
services  collections  connection supply ~ materials  operation Others Group
975,995 67,017 48,414 43,675 —  LI35101 18,767 1,153,808
(739,317) (8,295)  (43,919)  (46,805) (388)  (838,724) (5,686)  (844,410)
236,678 58,722 4,495 (3,130) (388) 296,377 13,081 309,458
780
310,238
(76,753)
233,485
6,211,058 350,295 493,689 283,811 22,309 7,361,162 159,223 7,520,385
— — — — — — 39,878 39,878
6,211,058 350,295 493,689 283,811 22,309 7,361,162 199,101 7,560,263
(3,729,579) (22512)  (404,792)  (148,593) (16,136)  (4,321,612) (12453)  (4,334,065)
98,553 - 8,348 77 388 107,366 3,530 110,896
65,788 - — 8,053 — 73,841 — 73,841
789,427 - 83,406 44 - 872,877 658 873,535
R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
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(BREFRIEISL » SR80 2y N RWET0)

20084F [ (All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
For the year ended 31 December 2008
6 BEERMEFR (H) 6 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(b) FEEHES WM (b)  Business segment analysis

(ii)  #LFE2007412 31 HIEE
JE (HEHE)

(i) For year ended and as at 31 December 2007 (Restated)

TKEAE
ik g (£ Ed:e i
SRR e Recycled HAK it
Sewage Bl waerand ok REMH  Sub-total of
processing  Road toll pipeline  Tapwater Construction ~ principle b %M
services  collections  connection supply ~ materials  operation Others Group
- ION Segment revenue 853,080 67,085 28,671 27,879 1,038 978,953 12,111 991,064
TS Segment expenses (598,952) 9211)  (2885%4)  (31.882) (8261)  (677,160) (7499)  (684,659)
HER Segment results 254,128 58,474 (183) (4,003) (6,623) 301,793 4612 306405
JEHG B A TR Share of profits of
an associate 3,187
BRITABIAIER Profic before tax 309,592
BrisBi 2 Income tax (99,224)
R Profit for the year 210,368
SR Segment assets 4600852 345366 425947 238,070 3,149 5613384 266,703 5,880,087
B A Associate — — — — — — 63,979 63,979
25
4,600,852 345,366 425947 238,070 3,149 5,613,384 330,082 5,944,066
SHbA Segment liabilities (2,382,974) (20383)  (323979)  (150,256) (2,136)  (2,879,728) (13,254)  (2,892,982)
HtbgH Other information
HEEH Depreciation 97,511 — 7,851 65 902 106329 9715 116,044
sl Amortisation 46,868 - - 8,053 % 54,960 860 55,820
EREWERL Assets impairment loss — — — — 5,240 5,240 — 5,240
BAR X Capital expenditures 119,332 — 41,882 — — 161,214 413 165,427

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




3]

(]

SR Y U 0 i B 0 A SR A S A
Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

WM SE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRAFTITEIIAN > S F N 25 NRIET0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

7

Yk ~ B Bt
(@ #HHE

WA

420071 T 1H
G
B ki3 AVra 7

EEH
EOMH
L
&y
i

#20074E 12731 H (4 5)

1R

(234 U/EL-IN
(FiFzE10)

i

HWE
2008412731 H
Rt

4200741 T 1H
G
B iikia i AVra 7

EEH
BN
AR
it

JR20074F 12131 H (B8 E 1)

KT
(234 U/EL-IN

(W10
i

J*20084F 12131 H

7 Property, plant and equipment

20084F &

For the year ended 31 December 2008

(a)  Group
il LA
A9 Bt i )2 ERTH
2B Machinery Motor  Construction
¥ Buildings and and vehicles  in progress it
Road structures  equipment  and others (“cIp”) Total
(Ei20) ()
(note (i) (note () )
Cost
At 1 January 2007
~as previously reported 185,418 2,033,937 608,997 118,979 415,418 3,962,749
— effect of adopting IFRIC 12 (185,418) (561,240) (353,958) (18,927) (37,582)  (1,157,125)
As restated — 2,072,697 255,039 100,052 377,836 2,805,624
Reclassification — 1,629 (1,629) — — —
Additions — 572 1,330 7,112 101,240 110,254
Transfer to investment properties — (23,746) — — — (23,746)
Transfers — 358,505 2,974 1,410 (362,889) —
Disposals — (37) (6,767) (3,317) — (10,121)
At 31 December 2007 (Restated) — 2,409,620 250,947 105,257 116,187 2,882,011
Additions — — 11 6,480 93,674 100,165
Transfer from investment properties
(note 10) — 23,746 — — — 23,746
Transfers — 105 1,119 1,515 (2,739) —
Disposals — (358) (713) (1,381) — (2,452)
At 31 December 2008 — 2,433,113 251,364 111,871 207,122 3,003,470
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2007
~as previously reported (46,354) (390,868) (177,118) (55,801) — (670,141)
— effect of adopting IFRIC 12 46,354 13,881 17,323 8,356 — 85,914
As restated — (376,987) (159,795) (47,445) — (584,227)
Reclassification — (59) 59 — — —
Charge for the year — (91,188) (13,851) (8,302) — (113,341)
Transfer to investment properties — 2,792 — — — 2,792
Disposals — — 1,134 2,457 — 3,591
At 31 December 2007 (Restated) — (465,442) (172,453) (53,290) — (691,185)
Charge for the year — (86,100) (11,949) (9,905) — (107,954)
Transfer from investment properties
(note 10) — (2,792) — — — (2,792)
Disposals — — 446 552 — 998
At 31 December 2008 — (554,334) (183,956) (62,643) — (800,933)
TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

7 VR - BRA R (A 7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
(a) M (&) (a)  Group (Continued)
L]
PR B yEN) TRTH
HEY  Machinery Motor ~ Construction
¥ Buildings and and vehicles  in progress it
Road structures  equipment  and others (“cIp”) Total
(FEREG) ()
(note (1)) (note () )
AEEVS Impairment
1200741 T 1H At 1 January 2007 — — (3,760) — — (3,760)
AR Charge for the year — — (308) (932) — (1,240)
#20074F 1231 H At 31 December 2007 — — (4,068) (932) — (5,000)
[Z53=t/E IN Transfer from investment properties
(10 (note 10) - (5,000) — — — (5,000)
1*20084F 12431 H At 31 December 2008 — (5,000) (4,068) (932) — (10,000)
I ¥ Net book value
J#20084:12/131H At 31 December 2008 — 1,873,779 63,340 48,296 207,122 2,192,537
20074121310 (EEF)  Ac 31 December 2007 (Restated) — 1,944,178 74,426 51,035 116,187 2,185,826

[\
N
(¥}
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

) 7  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
(b) Company
il LA
RER Bt i )2 TR
2B Machinery Motor  Construction
¥ Buildings and and vehicles  in progress it
Road structures  equipment  and others (“cIp”) Total
(Ei20) (i)
(note (i) (note () )
Cost
At 1 January 2007
~as previously reported 185,418 1,955,069 204,282 75,758 302,519 2,723,046
— effect of adopting IFRIC 12 (185,418) — — — — (185,418)
As restated — 1,955,069 204,282 75,758 302,519 2,537,628
Reclassification — 1,629 (1,629) — — —
Additions — — 175 4,705 88,943 93,823
Transfers — 357,784 2,159 1,262 (361,205) —
Disposals — — — (1,724) — (1,724)
At 31 December 2007 (Restated) — 2,314,482 204,987 80,001 30,257 2,629,727
Additions — — 198 2977 81,647 84,822
Transfers — 105 — 32 (137) —
Disposals — — (525) (795) — (1,320)
At 31 December 2008 — 2,314,587 204,660 82,215 111,767 2,713,229
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2007
~as previously reported (46,354) (369,744) (150,296) (43,879) — (610,273)
— effect of adopting IFRIC 12 46,354 — — — — 46,354
As restated — (369,744) (150,296) (43,879) — (563,919)
Reclassification — (59) 59 — — —
Charge for the year — (87,540) (8,977) (6,318) — (102,835)
Disposals — — — 1,554 — 1,554
At 31 December 2007 (Restated) — (457,343) (159,214) (48,643) — (665,200)
Charge for the year — (82,893) (7,736) (8,512) — (99,141)
Disposals — — 444 179 — 623
At 31 December 2008 — (540,236) (166,506) (56,976) — (763,718)
Net book value
At 31 December 2008 — 1,774,351 38,154 25,239 111,767 1,949,511
At 31 December 2007 (Restated) — 1,857,139 45,773 31,358 30,257 1,964,527
TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A
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7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

All of the Group’s buildings, structures and plants are located in the PRC.

The Group’s depreciation expense of Rmb99 million (2007:Rmb104 million)
has been included in cost of sales and Rmb9 million (2007: Rmb9 million) in

administrative expenses.

Of the Group’s net book value of property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2008, about Rmb231 million (2007: Rmb205 million) relates to
the Company’s subsidiary, Tianjin Water Recycling Co. Ltd. As at 31 December
2008, the accumulated loss is approximately Rmb11 million (2007: Rmb15
milion). However, given the promising prospects of water recycling industry
as encouraged by the PRC government, the Directors believe there is no

indication at the current stage that these assets may be permanently impaired.

Ownership of certain land and buildings included in property, plant and
equipment, investment properties (note 10) and land use rights (note 9) with
cost of Rmb311 million (2007: Rmb311 million) has yet to be or is in the
process of being transferred to the Group. As these assets are supported by
legal sale and purchase agreements, the Directors believe that the titles will be

received in due course without additional significant cost to the Group, if any.

Buildings and structures include pipeline networks with carrying value of

approximately Rmb690 million as at 31 December 2008.

As at 31 December 2008, property, plant and equipment includes the
Company’s sewage treatment infrastructure located in Tianjin with net book
value of RMB1,772 million (2007: RMB1,861million). The terms of the
related service concession arrangements are currently under negotiation, the

results of which will determine the eventual classification of these assets.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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(0 TERTHROFHEHAWT :
KR : Wiater recycling plant:
— 3 - Dong Jiao
— — Bei Chen
V57K IR FRH - Sewage processing plants:
— R - XianYang Lu
it Others
A=A Total - Company
oK PR - Water recycling plant:
— bk — Xian Yang Lu
His Others
i 10 Total - Group
i Including:
EAM i RRA Capitalised borrowing costs
—5H — Group

20084F
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(c)  Construction in progress comprised of the following projects:

THBMS
L HIEL RS B
#2007 4 BB RS 20084 Incurred
2A3H Transferto 121 31H costs to
B Asat property, Asat budget
Budget 31 December Bk plantand 31 December jige 3] costs
cost 2007 Additions  equipment 2008  Sources of funds ratio
(B E ) %
(Restated)
129,072 15,344 54,693 — 70,037 A% 54
Self-raised fund
97,000 14,639 19,554 — 34,193 EF 35
Self-raised fund
— 4,970 — 4,970 A%
Self-raised fund
274 2,430 (137) 2,567 A%
Self-raised fund
30,257 81,647 (137) 111,767
141,000 85,243 8,530 - 93,773 A% 67
Self-raised fund
687 3,497 (2,602) 1,582 HiE
Self-raised fund
116,187 93,674 (2,739) 207,122
1,072 1,373 — 2,445
TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A

TRT R
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SRR T

WA

200741 1H
BN

20074F12H31H
BN

20084F12H31H

]

20074F1H1H
AAF RS

20074F12H31H
AAF RS

20084F12H31H

Y i L

20084F12H31H

~20074F12A31H

FRFACERE T A T E S ARB272
T #IC (20074F © 282 & T) I
g 2 HAE By A SRR Y (B 5
23(a)(v)) °

20084F B MR RS HE ALY
RS Ay A RS 326 78 (2007
23,182 I0) - FIRNHEE R
AEAA BB EAAL R L%
7.7% (20074 : 7.5%) -

W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BREFRIEISL » SR80 2y N RWET0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

Intangible assets

(@)  The movements of the Group’s concession rights are as follows:

Cost

At 1 January 2007 1,196,420
Additions 54,299
At 31 December 2007 1,250,719
Additions 771,855
At 31 December 2008 2,022,574
Amortisation

At 1 January 2007 (32,5006)
Amortisation charge for the year (43,872)
At 31 December 2007 (76,378)
Amortisation charge for the year (61,932)
At 31 December 2008 (138,310)
Net book value

At 31 December 2008 1,884,264

At 31 December 2007 1,174,341

(b)  Certain of the concession rights with net book value of Rmb272
million (2007: 282 million) have been secured against loan facilities

(note 23(a)(v)).

(o) In 2008, borrowing cost of Rmb5,326 thousand (2007: 3,182
thousand) have been capitalized in concession right at an average

interest rate of 7.7%(2007: 7.5%).

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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WA LM HE  Notes to the financial statements

(BREFHITENISL > R B2 AN BRI T78)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated) 2008 4E
For the year ended 31 December 2008

9 - M BE 9  Land use rights
A [ KA RN A R RE S
AR BISERT - A 25 31 S04F « ARG
A A P RE A R £ 46 T
EHE > IR FES T

All of the Group’s and Company’s land use rights are located in the PRC
and are held on medium term leases of 25 to 50 years. The Group’s and
Company’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease

payments and their carrying values are analysed as follows:

£ AW
Group Company
Bk Cost
200711 H As at 1 January 2007
— T2 — as previously reported 815,097 680,703
-HRRRZY — Effect of adopting TFRIC 12 (321,559) (195,439)
CEHR As restated 493,538 485,264
IR Addition for the year 874 190
J4 2007 F 12 31 H (KE51) As at 31 December 2007 (Restated) 494,412 485,454
T Addition for the year 1,515 —
Ji* 2008 4F 12 1 31 H As at 31 December 2008 495,927 485,454
] Amortisation
#2007 1A 1H As at 1 January 2007
— QAT 24 — as previously reported (110,631) (101,962)
—HHRE R Y — Effect of adopting TFRIC 12 31,696 27,626
ELER As restated (78,935) (74,336)
ARAF R Amortisation charge for the year (11,948) (11,193)
2007 4 12 H 31 H (AHE5) As at 31 December 2007 (Restated) (90,883) (85,529)
ARAF R Amortisation charge for the year (11,909) (10,364)
42008 4 12 H 31 H As at 31 December 2008 (102,792) (95,893)
I i - f Net book value
Ji* 2008 4F 12 1 31 H As at 31 December 2008 393,135 389,561
JA 2007 F 12 131 H (K6 51) As at 31 December 2007 (Restated) 403,529 399,925

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

10 B&EWE

B
2007 4F 12 A 31 H #5348
T B R (FREE7)

2008 4F 12 H 31 HER%

Bt

2007 4 12 H 31 HER#

ARAF BT
Y - MR R (M)

2008 4F 12 H 31 HER%

A Al
2007 4F 12 H 31 HER%
LSELERS S ) 8¢ il

2008 4F 12 H 31 H R4

e v - f
2008 4F 12 A 31 H#3%H

2007 4F 12 H 31 HER%

(a)  #AE20084E12 731 HEARBAR
W26 BEITTIA TYECTEAA
A BE Sy OB B SO E ) B i
o MRS (LA K2 B i
Wi A R LY ER
2008 412 H 31 HIA P (HA 1
ANRHE28 HEC -

(b)  FHATRHEY IR ALK
NP NN it R
R BA o MR — 1 BEEAG (E
et o BRI B KM 2008 4F 12
H31HEATEL AR E169H
B0 MHBAS ANRE167HE
i o

() MREEMESARE 16 BEL (R
{H 1 247 EJ0) IS 7E20084F
WA E o fEER AR RHE - DL
P12 - WER SRS o

W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRAERITERSL » SN 2y AR T 0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

10  Investment properties

£ A

Group Company
Cost
At 31 December 2007 152,751 102,279
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 7) (23,7406) —
At 31 December 2008 129,005 102,279
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2007 (10,163) (6,974)
Charge for the year (2,942) (2,429)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 7) 2,792 —
At 31 December 2008 (10,313) (9,403)
Impairment provision
At 31 December 2007 (5,000) —
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 7) 5,000 —
At 31 December 2008 — —
Net book value
At 31 December 2008 118,692 92,876
At 31 December 2007 137,588 95,305

()

(©

The balance as at 31 December 2008 includes certain properties
with cost of RMB26 million transferred to the Group by a debtor as
settlement of trade receivable in lieu of cash. Based on the prevailing
market price of these properties located in Tianjin, the Directors
believe that their fair market value as at 31 December 2008 is

approximately Rmb28 million.

The Company’s investment property represents the apportioned cost
of its office building located in Tianjin leased to third parties. The
fair value of the entire office building at 31 December 2008 based
on independent professional valuation report was approximately

Rmb169 million against cost of Rmb167 million.

A building with net book value of Rmb16 million (Cost: 24 million)
has been changed to self-use in year of 2008. It has been accounted

for as property, plant and equipment since its change of use.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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WM SE  Notes to the financial statements

(BREFRITEDISL > SR AL ARK T0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

11

BE WA

BRR AR IR (Frits) AR R ME it
REMEAN > JEAt A2 ] 2 B 22w #7E H

I 852 AT i s

BT AT R & A R A IR AR A ] -

VG2 AT A R 7
BUM KRR A7 R A
555 1 2K 5 AT PR v
KK RE A A A
BB ATIRA A
KHAER R
(i) ATRRAF

SO RIHERTATIR A A
BT AN BRRAT IR A

BB AR H AR A
S RARKH AR A
TRRERIE KB WA 7]
]

BRI ATRITHE A 7
KHABEEMATRAR GER)
LT RSB A R A

LI R AR

KHEHE R ABE AT IR 7]

KSR TR
Pttt A A w

FEFE . E 2008412 131 HIE > fhFHAEER—%
B 2 R 4% (A e A 4 2 AN R 22
(2007 4%+ AR 22 F#0) ©

A B 1 1 I 24 7 B B e
W TR 0 L

11 Investment in subsidiaries

Ltd, which is registered in Hong Kong.

Xi'an Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Hangzhou Tianchuang Water Co., Ltd

Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd.

Guizhou Capital Water Co., Lid.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection
(HK) Co., Ltd.

Wendeng Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Wuhan Tianchuang Environmental Protection
Co.,Lud

Fuyang Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Anguo Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Chibi Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Baoying Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Capital New Materials Co., Ltd. (note)

Honghu Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Jinghai Capital Water Co., Ltd
Tianjin Kaiying Environmental Engineering
Technology Consultant Co., Ltd.

MinsE
JA
Investment
cost

270,000
180,212
108,081
98,000
95,000

62,988
48,000

47,230
44,100
41,000
33,250
26,600
26,500
18,020

12,000

2,000

interest in a subsidiary.

of return on Investment in subsidiaries.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

W o

Carrying Value
2007 4F 2008 4
12A31H AR 12A31H
2007 Additions 2008
— 270,000 270,000
180,212 — 180,212
108,081 — 108,081
98,000 — 98,000
95,000 — 95,000
62,988 — 62,988
48,000 — 48,000
— 47,230 47,230
44,100 — 44,100
— 41,000 41,000
33,250 — 33,250
26,600 — 26,600
26,500 — 26,500
18,020 — 18,020
2,000 10,000 12,000
— 2,000 2,000
742,751 370,230 1,112,981

All of the Company’s subsidiaries are registered and established in China

other than Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection (Hong Kong) Co.,

TR,
RIRHELL
Interest
held

%

100
70
90
98
95

100
100

100
99.9
100
99.75
70

71
90

100

100

Note: Provision for interest in a subsidiary of approximately Rmb22 million as at 31 December

2008 (2007: Rmb22 million) represents the estimated impairment of the Group’s

The Group is not exposed to significant restriction on recovery or remittance
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SERNE B

i

(FEFE(b))

it
FrisBi M
Deiliell

SR

(a)

(b)

(©)

KB AT R 7 2 — SRk
JAF T RSP T B S ) P A &
BARSE > HEHS i Sy BRI
RRBTERE M - BRI
ETEE K TR s -
MU 5~ 3w A A 1 4 -

HRAEI 2008 4F 1 A 2 HET M1
o A A 0 K P A
A7 R T 45% R 17.5% AN
R 30 | & o B EERRGS K
[ cde I NCRE ¢
T AR 2008 4F 12 16 H5E
R AL T AR E BT
(GRS o ASSE e e T
R B R A PR ) R AR 1)
AT RPE -

AL LB AT 2R B
EMARERAT

B
Bam
A
%
BRI

12

W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRAERITERSL » SN 2y AR T 0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

Investment in an associate

2008 2007
Beginning of the year 63,979 61,660
Disposal (note (b)) (24,881) —
Share of profit 1,040 5,261
Share of taxation (260) (2,074)
Dividends received — (868)
End of the year 39,878 63,979

(a)  Tianjin International Machinery Co., Ltd. (TIMC) is a sino-foreign
joint venture registered in the Tianjin Economics Development Area.
The principal activities of TIMC include research and development,
production and sale of environment protection equipment;
engineering technical consultation; trading; manufacturing and sale

of general equipment.

(b)  Pursuant to an agreement dated 2 January 2008, the Group disposed
17.5% out of 45% of its equity interest in TIMC at a consideration
of Rmb30 million to Tianjin Machinery and Electric Industry
Holding Group Company (TMEIC). The disposal was completed
on 16 December 2008 for which the Group recorded a Rmb5 million
gain. The Group still retains significant influence in TIMC after

this disposal.

(c)  The Group’s share of the results, assets and liabilities of its unlisted

associate are as fOllOWSZ

2008 2007
Total assets 123,805 174,163
Total liabilities 81,109 106,623
Revenue 311,774 471,700
Expenses 26,932 83,529
Net profit 1,502 3,989

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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WM SE  Notes to the financial statements
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(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

13 Wk B 4 i A

13  Available — for — sale financial assets

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

B A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
JAAS S 18 (9 1) 2% W 2~ I Unlisted equity investment,
F Bt at cost 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
14 I8 HEosk 14 Long-term receivables
M A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
(K851 (K851
(Restated) (Restated)
T B T RS HE T 7 A AR Receivables from toll
road concession 331,254 326,980 331,254 326,980

AL B T B T A MR R TR P TE A A
BT I LB R A A i R TR 2 2
JIT T8 1) P OO 2 % R Y f/ 1N
TTHA -

15 Fofib ki ) ¥

15 Other non-current assets

Receivables from toll road concession represent the minimum
guaranteed toll fee from Toll Collection Office, calculated with

reference to forecast traffic flow over the concession period.

M A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
3% IRERITAEX Total restricted bank deposits 65,700 34,770 56,700 25,770
W A B T SRAT A R Less: Due within one year
7R 0 — 4 N B 5 included in bank balance
(BHE 20) (note 20) (22,000) (15,000) (13,000) (6,000)
—AELL BRI (MEEE20)  Deposits due over one year (note 20) 43,700 19,770 43,700 19,770
HoAt Others 3,552 4,008 — 755
47,252 23,778 43,700 20,525

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R
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2008 4E (All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
For the year ended 31 December 2008

16 1 16 Inventories
B A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
JEM R Raw materials 8,458 5,186 3,257 2,931
JE L Finished goods 3,768 3,768 — —
T RARE S FE Spare parts and low cost consumables 222 680 103 103
12,448 9,634 3,360 3,034
W WE AT BFBUEA M Less: Write-down to net realisable value (3,000) (3,000) — —
9,448 6,634 3,360 3,034
17 ® 5 WK 17 Trade receivables
L A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
JEWCHEAK A ] Due from TSC for:
—T57K B PR A — Construction of sewage processing
plants 466,185 466,185 466,185 466,185
— 5K BB — Sewage processing service 955,992 616,043 955,992 616,043
1,422,177 1,082,228 1,422,177 1,082,228 263
Wk RIAE Less: Non-current portion (697,763) (697,763) (697,763) (697,763)
724,414 384,465 724,414 384,465
HoAth — S 4 Due from others - current 74,455 58,479 18,465 17,440
798,869 442,944 742,879 401,905
(a) MRABEALFEIR 2001 429 24 HER (@)  Pursuant to an agreement (“Construction Agreement”) between the
PRk A RIBTI QK iR (B ) Company and TSC dated 24 September 2001, the Company is to
TE g TRENCE Whak) ([ 2SO T provide construction services to TSC in respect of the three plants
i) o AR A E YK A Rl R R of Xian Yang Lu, Ji Zhuang Zi and Bei Cang. The principal terms of
a0 i a1 1 = e [ the Construction Agreement are summarised below:
K IEBRRA S o b At ) 2
e -
o MR ALEERSES . a fee will be paid by TSC during the period of construction as
JK i B R LR R a reward to remunerate the Company for accepting the
] BEoK 2wl & A8 responsibility to construct the sewage processing plants.

SRR - AR R A
AR RS K R IR
BT

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

17 ® SRR (5

T T TN
AR A A S AR
BRI 2 it
4 WA A e B
I+ SR AT B
R s, AR
B TR B e AR
i
AU RITRE 5 K R e
RTRIE AR L)
P

HRAEA A R BLBEK A R BT
(¥ ik > 1S 2e5 K R F R
BRI R > By RO RER B
T A IR TS K R S 5
i HL B E BT (TNt
i L(a)frit) o

(b) AR 2003 4F 8 H 25 HELPEK
NFEET T A EE (T A1E

k)

o RIEZ AR

A F A BT KRB &
THEABREG

BEK S A B BRI A IE A KA
R SR R I N Y5 K
R 5 0 [ 2 R 5

PEoK 2 IR AME B2 R %
% [8] 7  E 7E 5E BL 2 TG A%
A F BRI AR A — R
Pk oy mI LUK I E (A T
AT o 12004 H 4 A 17
H o Bk FIRERR BRI 1
il E RS R A IR K
JH -

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

17 Trade receivables (Continued)

. A fee is payable by TSC in advance on a monthly basis
according to the percentage of completion of the respective
construction projects estimated by the Company. The
percentage of completion of each project will be adjusted on a
quarterly basis according to the certifications issued by qualified

independent surveyors or engineers;

. the Company is responsible for the funding of the construction

cost of these plants, and

. upon commencement of operations of the these sewage
processing plants, the rights and obligations between the
Company and TSC will follow the terms as specified in the
Sewage Processing Agreement as applicable to the Tianjin

plants (notel(a)).

(b)  On 25 August 2003, the Company entered into an agreement with
TSC (“Co-operative Agreement”). The principal terms of which are:

o the Company would be responsible for the overall execution

of the construction of the three plants.

. TSC would be responsible for making use of the original loans
from two foreign banks (the “Foreign Loans”) to fund certain

property, plant and equipment used in these plants;

. TSC will sell to the Company these Foreign Loans funded
property, plant and equipment after their installation and the
receipt of the relevant verification reports, at their carrying
value. On 17 April 2004, TSC comfirmed its intention to

settle its debt due to the Company with these mentioned assets.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R
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17 SRR ()

K R B 2005 AR AR A
SERL > ARPE20074F 12 H 27 A
=7 RS KA T B BUR A
R TR Rl R
HEH M NRHE 698 5T

A

= KRBT AR AR S
(Y BURF T80 — KT
REBREZREG ([HEE])
200744 4 17 B Bk
bR > FERR TR L [ HEK
237 A (b) il ) 7 21
SRIL AL AR HS - I
FEHR0r BB AR

— 200844 H - WEZK L
LA BB A
FETE B R EIA B

— 20084 12 A 5 HEKA T
bl EE A AN F R
PEREAS I T R A -

— 200944 A - KumiHEKRA
FME IR T R AR A5 7K R R
BH N3 5ETT -

— B bk LB R E R
o ARt BE
2008 4F 12 H 31 H#H G
TR B A 25 A
M 6.98 57T AR RENL
R R SO B R
(2007 4F + AR 6.98 &
JE) e

W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRI RSN > SA 0 A NREET0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

17  Trade receivables (Continued)

As mentioned, the construction of these assets was completed in
late 2005,and based on the third party completion verification reports
dated 27 December 2007 which Tianjin Finance Bureau approved,
the verified value of these completed assets amounted to about

Rmb698 million.
(c)  Settlement plan:

—  On 17 April 2007, Tianjin Construction Administration
Committee, (“TJCAC”), the government body overseeing the
management of construction and operation of infrastructure
in Tianjin, reconfirmed that the Tianjin Municipality has
agreed to the settlement of the Company’s debts in manner as
agreed by TSC in (b) above. In addition, the remaining debt
outstanding after such assets settlement will be settled by way

of cash.

—  On 8 April 2008, TJCAC confirmed that there will be no

legal obstacle to the above mentioned assets settlement.

- In December 2008, Tianjin Finance Bureau approved TSC to

sell the assets above to the Company.

- Subsequent to year end, in April 2009, TSC settled Rmb350

million of its debts to the Company.

- Based on the procedures undertaken to recover the debts as
described above, the Directors believe that the amount due
from TSC is eventually fully recoverable. On the basis that
the assets settlement will eventually be finalized, about
Rmb698 million due from TSC as at 31 December 2008,
representing the verified cost of the assets has been reclassified

to non- current trade receivables (2007: Rmb698 million).

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




R A 2 ot 2 0 A R D

Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

I LM R Notes to the financial statements

(BREFHITENISL > R B2 AN BRI T78)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated) 2008 4E
For the year ended 31 December 2008

17 HBHEWRX (4 17 Trade receivables (Continued)
(d)  bali(c) TR E /AT 5 IE YK (d)  Aging of trade receivables prior to the reclassification mentioned in
MR (c) is as follows:
M Al
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
LAERLA Within one year 771,614 442,944 721,733 401,905
1 24 One to two years 27,255 — 21,146 —
24FLLE Over two years 697,763 697,763 697,763 697,763
1,496,632 1,140,707 1,440,642 1,099,668
18 Hofib i ek 18  Other receivables
M A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
FoAth REWSGR 45 Other receivables include:
THH & MRS & Project deposits 29,893 35,500 25,550 30,500
F& PR EE Other receivables from customers 8,914 19,836 — 10,810
JRENAC BEF e 2 ) ¥ 20 Receivable from subsidiaries — — 262,000 33,958
Hedts Others 13,330 23,433 13,219 7,191
52,137 78,769 300,769 82,459
S B A R OHR  0 Ar B T The ageing of the Group’s other receivables is analysed below:
2008 2007
ot | s H ot | Bkl
% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
—HELAK Within 1 year 14,060 27% 70,145 89%
—H| AR 1 to 2 years 32,067 61% 8,291 11%
TR =4 2 to 3 years 5,677 11% 333 0%
=AML Over 3 years 333 1% — 0%
52,137 100% 78,769 100%
PRIFIES Ve Sh ] S A]

TRT R
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2008 4EJiF (All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
For the year ended 31 December 2008

19 HfFkH 19  Prepayments

FAERF ARG T The ageing of prepayments is analysed below:
£ | gl
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
1 AR Within one year 59,303 57,964 30,391 12,984
1 #24 One to two year 22,684 — 3,422 —
81,987 57,964 33,813 12,984
iR 1R A RO B S The prepayments aged over one year were mainly for recycled water pipeline
KE BB TRR > WA LRM AR connection for which the projects have not complete and hence balance
T ZAkIH M AREET o remain outstanding.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated) 2008 4E
For the year ended 31 December 2008

20 BlERBUTHE B 20  Cash and bank balances
J#£ 2008 4 12 H 31 H FZRATEHE AT Majority of the bank balances as at 31 December 2008 were deposited
WORE G $R1T - with state owned banks.
£y A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
B4 RRIT A3k 4t Bk Cash and bank balances 952,747 359,741 319,140 106,403
W A IR ) Less: Restricted bank deposits
B ) % BRERAT A7 included in non-current
(i (a) assets (note (a)) (43,700) (19,770) (43,700) (19,770)
909,047 339,971 275,440 86,633
AR AT - Including:
— e LR — Special funds for construction
HEEE GER©b)) in progress (note (b)) 38,609 58,116 38,609 29,877
— BRI (GERE(C)) — Restricted bank deposits due
within one year: (note (c)) 22,000 15,000 13,000 6,000
(a) ®E20084F12H31H > ZREI[IT (@) Asat 31 December 2008, the restricted bank deposits represent
Frdr B — S 2T B R deposits for entrusted loan due after one year (note 15) (2007: project
W (FEE1S) (2007 4F - THH#% bids).

268
fRfRaEE) -

(b)y MHHEIBHAESFEAT5KER (b)  The special funds for construction in progress represent the unutilised
R AT (SRR 1 A O A 6 balances of the special loans for sewage processing projects.

ATAr kB -

(c) HEEH—FNIIWINIEH AR () The bank deposits represented deposits for project bids due within
b 3tEE AR 22,000 F 78 (2007 one year of Rmb22 million (2007:Rmb15 million).
0 NRM 15,000 T8

MESREERNT > Ha KR4S Cash and bank balances include the following for the purpose of the cash
PRAE I N EHE flow statement:
L
Group
2008 2007
& RT3 A iR Cash and bank balances 909,047 339,971
37 BRERIT A7 X Restricted bank deposits (22,000) (15,000)
887,047 324,971
TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A

TRT R
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

I HE M EE  Notes to the financial statements

(BRESIEISL > SxAp By AR T-o8)

2008 4EJiF (All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
For the year ended 31 December 2008

21 JBeAR 21  Share capital
AR AIRNEE - T 8T SR IRA i Movement of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully paid up capital
BIRANE o BT AL m A e 34 2 P is tabled below. All of the Company’s shares are ordinary shares with par
[TREPNE S i DR ¥ 1 value of one Renminbi.
A H &
A Share H Share
PR
L BBy
Restricted AR irk: 114
Circulating ~ Circulating /Nt Circulating it
shares shares Subtotal shares Total
20074 1 1 H At 1 January 2007 835,638 155,028 990,666 340,000 1,330,666
T e e Conversion of convertible bonds — 96,562 96,562 — 96,562
1% BRI R Release of restricted circulating shares (105,018) 105,018 — — —
20074 12 A 31 A At 31 December 2007 730,620 356608 1087228 340,000  1427,228
1% BRI R Release of restricted circulating shares (66,533) 66,533 — — —
2008412 731 H At 31 December 2008 664,087 423,141 1,087,228 340,000 1,427,228
INI SR o 2 LA O R “A” shares represent shares listed on the Shanghai Securities Exchange and
H B8 7E B el 438 5 I BT R 40y o “H?” shares represent shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
BT A B H BEAE & T =4 R 2 of Hong Kong. All the “A” and “H” shares rank pari passu in all respects.
%ﬁ o
AT K T U B A PR 7 T A 1 % The restricted circulating “A” shares relate to shares held by TMICL,
FRRAmAT A B > R B a4 BR A whereby TMICL can only sell a maximum of 10% of its total shares within
TE 2006 4F- 3 H 1 IHEA B 52 AR 11 = 4F 3 years after the stock reform in March 2006. During 2008, 67 million of
TN f £ ] A LR AR 10 % 1 IR these shares became non-restricted.

3 o AAERE > K947 67 B # A  IRE
Bty 5 R A A7

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
WA LM HE  Notes to the financial statements
(BREFIIEEMSL > S /s AR T o0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

22

i i

EHCISEEE 3 UL U

(a)

£ |

2007 4E 1 71 1 B &5R

o e
R il VP~

CEH

AR F

BAEE B AEER
BAGEL 1R
(FEREG))

AT

— g 1

— [ D) i A AR
B 2006 4 S,

2007 4E 12 71 31 H4&5R
(& F)

AAER A

BAERBAREMN
BRIy > VR
(FERGi))

H A 2007 4F S

2008 4F- 12 H 31 H &5

22 Reserves

The reconciliation and movement of the reserves are as follows:

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

(a)  Group
J %Nt W B
GiERR (i) et
Capital  —JBtf#fli  Convertible RE bR
reserve General bonds ik Retained i
(note (i) reserve reserves Subtotal earnings Total
1 January 2007
— as previously reported 75,209 220,356 26,089 321,654 734,538 1,056,192
— effect of adopting
[FRIC 12 — 761 — 761 14,282 15,043
As restated 75,209 221,117 26,089 322,415 748,820 1,071,235
Profit for the year — — — — 209,328 209,328
Profit appropriation to
statutory common reserve,
net (note (ii)) — 11,219 — 11219 (11,219) —
Convertible bonds
— Premium on conversion
of convertible bonds 308,129 — — 308,129 — 308,129
Reversal of prior year’s reserves — — (26,089) (26,089) — (26,089)
Dividend declared 2006 — — — — (56,105) (56,105)
31 December 2007
(Restated) 383,338 232,336 — 615,674 890,824 1,506,498
Profit for the year — — — — 231,065 231,065
Profit appropriation to
statutory Common reserve,
net (note (ii)) — 20,757 — 20,757 (20,757) —
Dividend declared 2007 — — — — (57,089) (57,089)
31 December 2008 383,338 253,093 — 636,431 1,044,043 1,680,474
PRIFIES Ve Sh ] S A]

TRT R



2008 4
For the year ended 31 December 2008

22 G ()

22

5 U S o e S AR B B R
Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
B HRAEMEE Notes to the financial statements
(BRAFRITERASE > S B/ A RWETo0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

Reserves (Continued)

b)) A5 (b)  Company
AL LY
iR () e
Capital  —JBtfifli  Convertible 4
reserve General bonds Y Retained e
(note (1)) reserve reserves Subtotal earnings Total
20074E 1 H 1 B&E8% 1 January 2007
B UGIEE — as previously reported 72,659 217,734 26,089 316,482 751,007 1,067,489
—RRR 12 25 % — effect of adopting IFRIC 12 — 761 — 761 6,849 7,610
EEHR As restated 72,659 218,495 26,089 317,243 757,856 1,075,099
AR Profit for the year — — — — 172,866 172,866
WA EBARESE  Profit appropriation to

B A 5B - statutory common reserve,

T GEREGE)) net (note (i) — 13,841 — 13,841 (13,841) —
s Convertible bonds
— W — Premium on conversion

of convertible bonds 308,129 — — 308,129 — 308,129
— W[ D) AR B A — Reversal of prior year’s reserves — — (26,089) (26,089) — (26,089)
EAHH 2006 EEBE Dividend declared for 2006 — — — — (56,105) (56,105)
2007 4 12 1 31 H45fk 31 December 2007

(B E51) (Restated) 380,788 232,336 — 613,124 860,776 1,473,900
AAER A Profit for the year — — — — 207,571 207,571
BARERBATE Profit appropriation to

i) LA 2 > statutory common reserve,

FE GEREGE)) net (note (i) — 20,757 — 20,757 (20,757) —
B 2007 FEME Dividend declared for 2007 — — — — (57,089)  (57,089)
2008 4F 12 7 31 H&58% 31 December 2008 380,788 253,093 — 633,881 990,501 1,624,382
(i) PR A AR R A A Ty () Capital reserve principally comprises share premium arising from the issuance

IR AR s 5 w] PR SR LA T4 B Js

T AA -

() — —MREETRERRANSE -

RERAR R P ARIVIE 2

(ii)

of shares. This reserve can be utilised to offset prior years losses or for issuance

of bonus shares.

General reserve [Cpl‘ESCHt the statutory common reserve.

Statutory common reserve: According to the PRC Companies Law and the

A A AR > AR AR
TR 10% SR E BB AT -
R AR B B
50% VA LIS > ATASFERIR o ke LR
ARG SRS W] R B AR > 3R
HRA

J4 2008 4F 12 7 31 H » R4 BRI
W ERB IR AR T A W AR A
484,598 To0 (20074512 H31 H -
2998 Tot) » Hep TAFAMEERHE
4 B O 7 2 W 2 BRA B 1,600 08
(2007 4F- : 1,185 T70) °

Company’s Articles of Association, it is required to transfer 10% of its net
profit for the year to the statutory common reserve, which can be ceased till
the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. This reserve shall only be
used to make up losses; or to increase the capital of the Company upon approval

from the shareholders.

As at 31 December 2008, undistributed profits include Rmb4,598 thousand
subsidiaries’ common reserve attributable to the Company (31 December 2007:
Rmb2,998 thousand), of which Rmb1,600 thousand has been appropriated

for the current year (2007: Rmb1,185 thousand).

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

I LM R Notes to the financial statements

(BREFHITENISL > R B2 AN BRI T78)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated) 2008 4E
For the year ended 31 December 2008

23 fiFak 23 Borrowings
B A
Group Company
i 2008 2007 2008 2007
Note
= Non-current:
RIASRITIE Long-term bank borrowings (a) 2,812,950 2,062,500 1,693,000 1,369,000
W — AR B Sy Less: Current portion (a) (494,790) (416,250) (434,000) (334,000)
2,318,160 1,646,250 1,259,000 1,035,000
HAbfE K Other loans payable (c) 130,909 147,273 130,909 147,273
2,449,069 1,793,523 1,389,909 1,182,273
T - Current:
— AN EIIY Current portion of
R long-term bank borrowings (a) 494,790 416,250 434,000 334,000
SEHBERAT 15 2 Short-term bank borrowings (b) 821,890 155,000 776,890 155,000
oAb ft 3k Other loans payable (© 167,491 138,862 64,364 32,727
1,484,171 710,112 1,275,254 521,727
(a) EWSUTHE (@@ Long-term bank borrowings
L A
Group Company
2 2008 2007 2008 2007
Note
AR E - Borrowings from:
B0 B BE 4R AT State Development Bank (i) 337,000 471,000 337,000 471,000
B LR RAT Industrial Commerce
Bank of China (i1) 683,000 399,000 158,000 158,000
LRI RRIT  Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank (iii) 320,000 320,000 300,000 300,000
o R 2R AT Agricultural Bank of China (iv) 668,000 300,000 548,000 190,000
PR R R AT China Construction Bank (v) 704,950 222,500 300,000 —
ifE AT China CITIC Bank — 200,000 — 200,000
JERERTT China Everbright Bank (vi) 50,000 95,000 50,000 50,000
o S Bank of China (vii) 50,000 55,000 — —
2,812,950 2,062,500 1,693,000 1,369,000
TR HE B 3 BR AR A 18 PR A B A A

TRT R



2008 4%

SR U I 5 o e ) AR P A

Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2008

23 Rk (4
@) EBSATE (4

)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

A A KT R AR A
PRall AL A T B AN 5 K
Jot PR W B RV S R o

Hrh AR 525,000,000 ¢

(20074F = AR 241,000,000
J0) HARA FIRAEER - 5

ARCEE 158,000,000 T4 E
FIfEZ (2007 4 0 AR
158,000,000 7C)  ©

Hrp AR 20,000,000 7T
(2007 % : AR¥
20,000,000 JC) A H#E
PR AR LB R - A AR
#300,000,000 7T (2007 4F
A E#300,000,000 70) £

FfE K -

Ho AR 548,000,000 7T
(20074F = AR190,000,000
J6) FA R 55,000,000 7T
(2007 4F :+ AR 60,000,000
J6) il e B A A
AR R > AN AR
65,000,0007C (20074 = AR
150,000,000 7C) TE—FF/
) g ] e A R 4R
PR - BN AL
kY VE S /NEEREN
TE IR 5 R A58 R T HE R

W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRI RSN > SA 0 A NREET0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

23 Borrowings (Continued)

(a) Long-term bank borrowings (Continued)

()

(iii)

Secured by TMEB’s guarantee together with its toll road and

sewage fee collection rights.

Includes Rmb 525 million(2007: Rmb 241 million) secured
by the Company’s guarantee and the remaining Rmb158

million (2007: Rmb 158 million) is unsecured.

Includes Rmb 20 million (2007: Rmb 20 million) secured by
the Company’s holding company’s guarantee and the
remaining Rmb300 million (2007: Rmb 300 million) is

unsecured.

Includes Rmb 548 million and Rmb 55 million (2007: 190
million and Rmb 60 million) secured by the guarantee of
Tianjin Municipal Infrastructure Construction Investment
Group Co., Ltd. and the Company, respectively. The remaining
balance of about Rmb 65 million(2007 Rmb 50 million) is
secured by the Company’s guarantee during the construction
period of a subsidiary together with certain of the subsidiary’s

concession right.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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WA LM HE  Notes to the financial statements
(BREFIIEEMSL > S /s AR T o0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

23 Rk (4
@ EESTE% (8

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

HA AR # 180,000,000 76
(2007 F: AR¥
185,000,000 ) FIfEFK » LA
B A KA RE RT3 7K i B
ANHERE B 44 (BEEE8(b)) 5
77 N R 150,000,000 TG
(2007 4F : &) M AR
31,250,000 ¢ (2007 4F = A
F# 37,500,000 7C) F 4k A%
5 B ANA L 7 43 1 4R At 4
5 8 F AR343,700,000
JC (2007 4F © ) F{5E G

o

BAE R NI
A 775 K g B e e it
BATHEIR -

el A TR R -

(viii ) = IR A7 1 R0 14 A8 A

T

LR Secured

— 4 — Pledge

— R — Guarantee
15 e K Unsecured

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

23 Borrowings (Continued)

(a)  Long-term bank borrowings (Continued)

(v)  Includes Rmb180 million (2007: Rmb 185 million) secured
by the right to receive tap water and sewage processing fees
(note 8(b) ). Includes Rmb150 million (2007: Nil) and Rmb
31.25 million (2007: 37.5 million) secured by the guarantee
of Tianjin Municipal Infrastructure Construction Investment
Group Co., Ltd and the Company, respectively. The remaining
balance of about Rmb 343.7 million (2007: Nil) is unsecured.

(vi)  Secured by the TSC's right to receive sewage processing fees.

(vii) Secured by the Company’s guarantee.

(viii) Summary of terms of long-term bank loans:

eS| A3
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
180,000 185,000 — —
1,831,250 1,219,500 935,000 711,000
801,700 658,000 758,000 658,000
2,812,950 2,062,500 1,693,000 1,369,000

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

I HE M EE  Notes to the financial statements

(BRESIEISL > SxAp By AR T-o8)

2008 4EJiF (All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)
For the year ended 31 December 2008

23 iR (&) 23 Borrowings (Continued)
(a) EWaUTR® (8 (a) Long-term bank borrowings (Continued)

(ix)  20084F B2 (& KA T (ix) These long term bank borrowings are all interest bearing with
PIAERIFRL56.9% (2007 4F - weighted average effective interest rate at the balance sheet
6.9%) - date of about 6.9% (2007: 6.9%).

(x) R HE O ELHE R O (x)  These borrowings mature as follows:

T
3G A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
—4E B S A Within one year 494,790 416,250 434,000 334,000
5B AR S In the second year 627,030 476,790 541,000 434,000
AR In the third to fifth year 1,115,070 791,820 718,000 601,000
S AR N ST
TAERIS St After the fifth year 576,060 377,640 — —
2,812,950 2,062,500 1,693,000 1,369,000

(xi) #WZE20084F12H31HIE (xi) Asat 31 December 2008, the fair value of the long-term fixed-
8] 2 | 2 B SRA T A5 Y 2 rate bank borrowing is Rmb199 million (2007: Rmb158 275
AAEEL 2 NRWE 199 5 # million).

JC (2007 4F : AR 158 F
H#7T)
(xii) i HE A TRTRR 2 1S S ) 40 (xii) Bank borrowings which are exposed to interest rate changes
IR A SRAT I AR T and the contractual repricing dates ares as follows:
bk A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
6 flil F JKILLLA 6 months or less 1,389,460 627,000 801,000 577,000
6% 1218 A 6-12 months 727,000 861,250 300,000 300,000

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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I LM R Notes to the financial statements

(BREFHIENISL > R B A AR TI0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated) 2008 4E
For the year ended 31 December 2008

23 Rk (4

23 Borrowings (Continued)

(]

(@)

(b)  BEEISRAT K (b)  Short-term bank borrowings
£ A
Group Company
R 2008 2007 2008 2007
Note
BRKE - Borrowings from:
R R AT China Construction Bank — 100,000 — 100,000
EEERAT Bohai Bank — 55,000 — 55,000
P R A SRAT China Minsheng Bank 187,000 — 187,000 —
R ERAT China CITIC Bank 200,000 — 200,000 —
LU fERE Jinggang Entrust Company (1) 299,890 — 299,890 —
Wi ARA T China Zheshang Bank (i1) 45,000 — — —
M7 Huaxia Bank 90,000 — 90,000 —
821,890 155,000 776,890 155,000
6) 4 AR (5 ST B 8 v R 7 AR (1) This is an entrusted loan from Jingang Entrust Company via China
TR HAERIR L 7% o Construction Bank. The loan bears interest at 7% per annum.
i)  WRHTBBE AR TR AR - (i)  Guaranteed by TMICL.
(i) BRGNS I 6E EK - 2008 (iii)  The remaining borrowings are unsecured except for those mentioned in (ii).
A ) SO RS AR R The weighted average interest rate of short-term borrowings in 2008 is 5.95%
5.95% (2007 4F : 6.50%) ° per annum (2007:6.50%).
(iv) 1k 2008 4 12 F 31 HIFAEE > @ik (iv) The carrying amounts of short-term bank borrowings approximate their fair
DA A A T 3 A s LA B values as at 31 December 2008 either due to their short-term maturity or because
T R E 5 MO T (A U they bear interest at prevailing market rates throughout their maturity period.
A
(v) SEIERAT I R AR T (v) Summary of terms of short-term bank borrowings:
B |
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
WEORE X Secured
— ik — Guarantee 45,000 — — —
{5 gk Unsecured 776,890 155,000 776,890 155,000
821,890 155,000 776,890 155,000
TR A 3 B DR R A R

TRT R
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Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRAERITERSL » SN 2y AR T 0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

23 Borrowings (Continued)

@

RHIRESS Non-current:
—RKEWE (GERG)) —TMEB (note (i)
JEIRELT - Current:

— KA - TMEB

o R * Current portion of

(0]

(i)

(iii)

B GERRG))
o Hifth (:ERGD)
— REWEUN (GERdii)

long term loan (note (i)
¢ Others (note (ii))
— Tianjin governmental

bodies (note (iii))

R T A O B
1.8 HEIC 4% 2005 45 7K i HE e s 8
TS S o ATRI R 2007 4L 5
TSR o IILIE 3507 2008
SRS BRI O3 40 3 B 16 171
JG (2007 4F : 33EHEIC) o MR
A6 45 5% » (e85 TR ST -
ER LY VAR RORI 3 0 0.3 18 B 43

B o

AT FR TR R FOH LA R4 93
HEIG (20074 0 96 B #T) > HA
A 6L 7 i AR RERR G
Ji 7R e

NRBESOT #IC (20074 « 11T # D)
Fof A R B HAB T AR
[CADNER ST R i R ER NN
ik AR T E T AL AR
AR BRI SR G 4 > R
SR A KRR A P-4 K Rt TR
i o LM EORFHE B H Ay
B LA R Y U T T o

1E Lh_E FEREG) N Giid) 1R N R
93T U RS9 T E O R
Ft MR R o R R R
HOIRL - 32 Lol SR A B A EEI
B -

Loans payable
L A

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
130,909 147,273 130,909 147,273
16,364 32,727 16,364 32,727
92,514 95,522 — —
58,613 10,613 48,000 —
167,491 138,862 64,364 32,727

0]

(i)

(i)

A Rmb180 million loan was taken from TMEB during 2005 specifically for
construction of sewage processing plants. The loan is repayable in equal
installments over eleven years from 2007. The current portion of the long-
term loan is Rmb16million at the end of year 2008. (2007: Rmb33 million)
The loan bears interest at 5% per annum for the first six years. From the
seventh year to maturity, the interest will be based on the one-year deposit

plus 0.3% premium.

Amount due to TMEB of Rmb93 million (2007: Rmb96 million) is specifically
for the same purpose and under same terms as the loan described in note (iii)

below.

The Rmb59 million (2007: Rmb11 million) was borrowed from other Tianjin
Municipal Governmental bodies. Rmb11million is used for the construction
of the water recycling plant of Ji Zhuang Zi. Rmb48 million was borrowed
from Tianjin Finance Bureau for the construction of the water recycling plant
of Dong Jiao and Bei Chen. The loan is interest free and the method and date
of repayment which is supposed to be determined after the completion of the

said plant has yet to be finalised.

The repayment scheme for the Rmb93 million and Rmb59 million loans
mentioned in (ii) and (iii) above is still being negotiated. As the terms are

uncertain, these loans have been classified as current liabilities.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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WM SE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRAFII AN > SERE N 2 AR T0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

23 Rk (4

(d)  BRIEARRR - ARBREAT TR ()
1y SRAT 4245 BURE -

2008 4%
For the year ended 31 December 2008

23 Borrowings (Continued)

As at year end, the Group has the following committed undrawn

banking facilities:

&M
Group
2008 2007
1 4R LA SIS0 77 T 5 Floating rate expiring within one year 250,000 505,000
24 BHHEATFK - FOBORX B IAE 24 Trade payables, advances from customers and other payables
HEAT %
£ | )
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
oA GERE ) Trade payables (note (a)) 17,841 12,469 7,277 6,139
TR (GERE(b)) Advances from customers (note (b)) 228,716 171,341 61,130 28,099
HALEA R GER ) Other payables (note (c)) 99,848 113,946 132,928 100,957
346,405 297,756 201,335 135,195
(a) JR20084F 12 131 H - & 5 JEAT SRS 1245 (@ Asat 31 December 2008, the majority of trade payables are aged within one year.
—AELLA -
(b) TR AR - (b) Advances from customers comprise:
£ | )
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
KR T TR For pipeline connection 167,586 143,092 — —
BT HOR Received from project Han Gu 32,220 — 32,220 —
Pk Rl IR Received from TSC 27,385 27,385 27,385 27,385
HoAth R Other advances 1,525 864 1,525 714
228,716 171,341 61,130 28,099
(c) HAbREST AT (c) Other payables comprise:
£ A
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
JREASH i A Construction costs payable 53,708 066,555 34,823 45,562
MERTREE I - #E5aHH ) Payable for purchase of property,
R RPHEROR plant and equipment and
concession rights of plants 26,610 29,532 — —
HeAts Others 19,530 17,859 98,105 55,395
99,848 113,946 132,928 100,957

AR B H R o R S R 3 L
SUIR T A (B (A L) o

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximates their fair value due to

their short-term maturities.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
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25 RPEE S B B
B 5 B A RN TR R R 2
ST

E R Y %]
LG ~ AWK

T RS £ 2
LDk

BTARMBZ (F5E26)
Hefs R A
6 FR A SRR R BT AR
LS9 Kt

KT HE AT OO B
A5 B 4

HAbBL 4
HLEEE Y SRR S
K A MR B B
B BAEER

B - B e
HoAh

26 @ EL A A B S
(@) (REARABET :

T R

L PR A
BIRE A — S ot
oA 3

(b) ARG AL R S AL AR
wr

g
W S 4
BIRAE AR R

AR B ST JE U T A
Fy N 544,000 7€ (2006 4F = A
R# 561,000 0) RGN R
B o

25

26

W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRAERITERSL » SN 2y AR T 0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

Expense by nature

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative costs are analysed as

follows:
2008 2007
(BE=E=5)
(Restated)
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 110,896 116,044
Amortisation of intangible assets,
investment properties and land use right 73,841 55,820
Utlities 133,244 104,410
Employee benefits (note 26) 86,013 67,523
Repair and maintenance expenses 46,364 28,739
Raw materials and consumables used 30,506 27,298
Construction for water recycling facilities 19,426 —
Management fee to Toll Fee Collection Office 7,120 9,308
Auditors’ remuneration 3,500 3,400
Other taxes 4,757 —
Outgoings in relation to investment properties 1,612 920
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings 1,180 115
Impairment of assets — 5,240
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 934 2,857
Others 68,431 85,239
587,824 506,913
Employee benefits

(a)  The analysis of employee benefits is as follows:

2008 2007

Wages and salaries 65,866 48,999
Social security costs 8,999 6,615
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 7,589 6,189
Other benefits 3,559 5,720
86,013 67,523

(b)  The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the Directors

during the year are as follows:

2008 2007
Fees 1,194 1,211
Salaries and other emoluments 902 713
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme 33 27
2,129 1,951

Emoluments paid to the Company’s independent non-executive
directors amounted to Rmb 544,000 during the year have been

included in the above balance (2007: Rmb 561,000).

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

26 REHAMEE 4

(©

()

BEREFMUT

AT
BHE
A
FH
TG
L

it EH i
ey
HEW
[EEsE
FHIR
gl

T PR T 52 I A i
1,000,000 T

AR AR B b s e At
LG AL (20074 ZA0) AAH
EH > MAIEETE - R
Hrep B o AERE AT HAR =00
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

26  Employee benefits (Continued)

() Details of emoluments of individual directors and supervisors are

set out as below:

2008 2007
Executive Directors:
Ma Baiyu 150 150
Gu Qifeng 650 562
Tan Zhaofu 100 100
Wang Zhanying 100 100
An Pindong 100 100
Fu Yana 484 378
Non-executive Directors:
Gao Baoming 177 187
Gao Zongze 52 187
Wang Xiangfei 52 187
Di Xiaofeng 132 —
Xie Rong 132 —

2,129 1,951

None of the Directors received emoluments in excess of

HK$1,000,000 during the year.

(d)  The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include 2 (2007: 2) Directors of the Company whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining 3 (2007: 3) individuals during

the year are as follows:

2008 2007
Salaries and other emoluments 1,463 1,112
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme 49 41
1,512 1,153

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR
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27 RUEWK — S 27

Finance costs- net

28

EH
Group
2008 2007
(&)
(Restated)
RS Interest expenses of bank borrowings 233,751 165,192
W EAEAE Less: Capitalised interest (6,699) (4,227)
AR Net interest expenses 227,052 160,965
W FEIEAE ¢ Less: Interest income from: (17,734) (18,670)
— RN — long-term receivables (11,118) (10,820)
—4RITAER — bank deposits (6,616) (7,850)
S BRI SRATAE R AAE R Fair value adjustments relating
to restricted bank deposits — (6,933)
HA Others 5,171 —
214,489 135,362
FEBMEGEA(L R Interest rate per annum at which
finance costs were capitalised 6.5% 7.3%

Pi i3 8L

F A AR SE B 77 3% 2008 4F 12 A 31 H Ik
A JEE NG A E A s M IR O RERR B BRI (—
FEL W) o AR AT
Bl o BB A 2 B TR B R
7.5% BT 25% (2007 FF : 7.5%
£33%) HKiEHH -

28

Income tax expense

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group has no assessable

profit in Hong Kong (2007: Nil). PRC income tax ranges from the

concessionary rate of 7.5% to the statutory rate of 25% (2007: 7.5% to

33%).

2008 2007
(E5)
(Restated)

FLIR P S MBI T Tax charge comprises:
AR TR Current PRC income tax 67,461 92,461
IEAE TSR Deferred income tax 9,292 6,763
76,753 99,224

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
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29 AAuRERFEAENSERN 0 29
AAEBEAR N R RE G R A A B A v B
WMEANMBELEBMNH S AR
208,000,000 JC (2007 4 = ARH
173,000,000 7€)

2008 4F-&
For the year ended 31 December 2008

Income tax expense (Continued)
Reconciliation between taxation in the consolidated income statement and
the aggregate tax at the rates applicable to profits in the respective entities

concerned is set below:

2008 2007
(KEE51)
(Restated)
Profit before taxation 310,238 309,592
Calculated at applicable income tax rates 76,011 96,326
Income not subject to tax (1,532) (918)
Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 1,111 1,102
Utilisation of previously deductible tax
losses for which no deferred income tax
assets was recognised (510) (555)
Current year tax losses for which no deferred
income tax asset was recognized 1,673 3,269
Income tax expense 76,753 99,224

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of

approximately Rmb208 million (2007: Rmb173 million).
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30 HRAR 30 Earnings per share
FEAG IR i DB A B ) 2 R P Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the profit attributable to
WA PRI 231 B#TT (2007 4F - equity holders of the Company of Rmb231 million (2007: Rmb209
NRW209H #T) BrARE RIEEATAESD million) and weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,427 million
e SR IR 2 B 14.27 1R (2007 shares in issue during the year (2007: 1,387 million shares).

1387 ) FHE o

H A A B B A A7 A AT A 5 A0 B = Diluted earnings per share is calculated using the same bases as described
B WM R B R A A ) R O BB A above for calculating basic earnings per share as the transactions of the
Wedi ARl o Company’s Convertible Bonds is not applicable for year 2008.
2008 2007
(#EE71)
(Restated)
AN FIRERS B A RELL 2R Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 231,065 209,328
CLERAT A B -2 Weighted average number of ordinary
(A& shares in issue (million shares) 1,427 1,387
R — (B TR R R S Adjustments for — assumed conversion of
(H 8% convertible debt (million shares) — 40
P R 2 R P 248 P o T4 Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
(%) diluted earnings per share (million shares) 1,427 1,427 283
B ER (BRARET) Diluted earnings per share (Rmb per share) 0.16 0.15
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31

2008 4F &
For the year ended 31 December 2008
Dividends
Dividend declared:
A dividend in respect of year ended 31 December 2007 of Rmb0.4 (gross
tax) every 10 shares, total shares of 1,427 million shares on 31 July 2008,
amounting to a total dividend of Rmb57 million, was proposed at the
Annual General Meeting on 17 June 2008 (2007: Rmb0.4 (gross tax) every

10 shares, amounting to a total dividend of Rmb56 million).

Dividend proposed:

On 28 April 2009, the Directors proposed a dividend of Rmb0.4 for every
10 shares held. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable
in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of

retained earnings for the year ending 31 December 2009.

R HE RS ER R AR IR A7 PR

TRT R



2008 4
For the year ended 31 December 2008

32 BEEAENBS

AFBE B A
PR
—BiA
— T e AN
— B
s ESYEw RS AR TN
— MEG — ZRIE 2 7 B R
— R A F R iR
— s E SRR (kdE) ki
— S - RS A I

—FLEHA
— IR —

B S BRT A E EA
ey (s Wb
B0 B A ME SR TR SR IE A 48

HERT AN FE A HEAT I Y
(W) Hm

BEELRE A

TEBERBERA - HEYSE - B
{GIODRES KTk T

WRTEVFE (BiaE7)
B - BRI
R Bk 25)

YIS ~ B A DTS K

5 U S o e S AR B B R
Financial statements prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

W EE  Notes to the financial statements
(BRAERITERSL » SN 2y AR T 0)

(All amounts in Rmb thousand unless otherwise stated)

32 Cash generated from operations

Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
— Taxation
— Depreciation and amortisation
— Impairment of assets
— Sale of service settled by investment properties in
lieu of cash
— Share of profit of an associate
— Gain on disposal of share of an associate
— Investment (income)/loss from available for sale
financial assets
— Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
— Interest income
— Interest expense-net

Operating profit before working capital changes
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
Increase in trade receivables, other receivables and
prepayments
(Decrease)/increase in trade and
other payable

Cash generated from operations

2008 2007
(E5)
(Restated)
233,485 210,368
76,753 99,224
184,737 171,864
— 5,240
— (10,040)
(780) (3,187)
(4,949) —
(400) 494
934 2,857
(6,616) (7,850)
221,105 143,212
704,269 612,182
(2,814) 2,205
(342,370) (387,199)
49,876 118,414
408,961 345,602

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of property, plant and

equipment comprise:

Net book amount (note 7)
Loss on sale of property, plant and
equipment (note 25)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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33

34

7R3 38
BEEEAREA > AEBNEARSLE
Wr s

33 Commitments

2008 4

For the year ended 31 December 2008

The Group’s capital commitments at the balance sheet date are as follows:

[B¥:FpSdi] [REIRIZ S 3]
Contracted but not Authorised but not
provided for contracted for
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARWHEL NGNS oW ARWHEL AR H G
Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million
15K B BORH Sewage processing plants in:
—HLM - Hang Zhou 341 341 — —
—3E — Wendeng 60 96 — —
— g — Jing Hai 22 43 — —
— R EE - Chi Bi - 12 — 7
— R — Wuhan 108 — — —
— 7% — Xian — — — 643
—% — An Guo 24 — — —
HACKRIER Tap Water plant:
—% - An Guo 15 — 33 —
— SR - E Zhou — — 95 95
HOKBIEH Water recycling plants:
— R - Dong Jiao 50 48 59
—dtx — Bei Chen 11 14 51 59
— kB — Xian Yang Lu — 10 48 50
589 566 275 913
B0k 34  Financial guarantee contracts

i 2008 4F 12 H 31 H » AN FIE A2
Wi 2 W] B SRAT (8 SRR B AR th IR R AN
K776 BT (20074 + AR¥ES3SH
Hor) o HA o NRW726 H E T &K
C B 2 R4 K o

SRS W 2w AR LA 25 R B B )
R HC T -

As at 31 December 2008, the Company has given guarantees of

approximately Rmb776 million (2007: Rmb835 million) to bankers of

certain subsidiaries in respect of their bank facilities, of which, Rmb726

million of the facilities have been drawn by the subsidiaries.

The Directors consider the subsidiaries to be financially resourceful to

settle their own obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

35 BBGRY 35 Related party transactions
AGEIE > BRAS BB R P s B B M In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere in the financial
T E BN AR W BT A H statements, the following is a summary of significant related party
B PET A R I transactions entered into in the ordinary course of the business between

the Group and its related parties during the year.

L yiEy AW
Related parties Nature of transaction 2008 2007
(i) A (i) Income:
PREE % A 5K BRI A
TSC Revenue earned from TSC for sewage processing services — 601,806
IR AW *
TICIG Rental income* 6,583 6,290
* L 9 2 2 A AR A A B P BRIy 2 * The lease agreement had been signed with TICIG before it became
Hi o to the related party of the Company.
KPR 2w BA S [ 5 fy ] 52 K TSC and the Group were both previously supervised by Tianjin Municipal
W TR (TE LR R) BB Engineering General Company (“TMEGC”). Pursuant to the restructuring
BRE -mMRTHIERNEL A of TMEGC, effective 5 November 2007 TSC is no longer related to the 287
2007 4 11 71 5 B R HEK 2 RIS Group.
AT Z BT o
(i) BASEE T B (ii)  Key management compensation
P BN 3B I I R 5 26(d) B8 Key management compensation is disclosed in Note 26 (d).
& o
36 #ERATH 36  Holding companies
WA 20084 12 H 31 Hik » AQFIEF As at 31 December 2008, the Directors regard Tianjin Municipal
MR T B A PR A 25 A A F Y Investment Company Limited (“TMICL”) as the immediate holding
TR IR ) > R R T 2k R it A i A% company and Tianjin City Infrastructure Construction and Investment
EABRA R AL B IR A ) o Group Company Limited (“TICIG”) as the ultimate holding company.
37 WHEREBWE 37  Approval of financial statements
ABABE R A R EF G 2009 4F 4 The accounts were approved by the Directors of the Company on 28 April
128 Rtk - 2009.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




KEARN R R R A2 0 2008 FEAF L

IESCRHARE

BANFEEINEN > FEGF THEN
BEANMETHHEEEEARZTEEDN
WBH A

S Ak 00 R 7 Rl R T B
PEBPTA SCIFIEA B A 5

AN EERE

i X H$%  List of Documents Available for Inspection

The 2008 Annual Report and its summary signed by the Chairman of the Company;

The financial statements signed and sealed by the legal representatives of the
Company, the officer-in-charge of the accounting work and the Officer-in-charge

of the Accounting Department;

Originals of all documents and announcements publicly disclosed in newspapers

designated by the CSRC during the reporting period;

The Articles of Association of the Company.
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